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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this anneabrt that are subject to risks and uncertainiéese forwardeoking statemen
include information about possible or assumed &utigsults of our business, financial conditionyikity, results of operations, plans i
objectives. When we use the words “believe,” “expet@nticipate,” “estimate,” “intend,” “should,” thay,” “plans,” “projects,” “will,” or
similar expressions, or the negative of these wowds intend to identify forwartboking statements. Statements regarding the fatig
subjects are forward-looking by their nature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our expected operating results;

« our ability to acquire investments on attractivers;

« the effect of the U.S. Federal Reserve’s and tl& Ureasury’s recent actions on the liquidity ef tapital markets;

« the federal conservatorship of Fannie Mae and keebithc and related efforts, along with any change$aws and regulatiol
affecting the relationship between Fannie Mae ardidie Mac and the U.S. Governme

« mortgage loan modification programs and futurediegive action;

« our ability to access the capital markets;

« our ability to obtain future financing arrangements

« our ability to successfully hedge the interest ratie and prepayment risk associated with our pbatf

« our ability to make distributions to our stockhalslen the future;

« our understanding of our competition and our abttit compete effectively;

« our ability to qualify and maintain our qualificati as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

« our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act;

« our ability to maintain the listing of our commatosk on the NYSE MKT;

« market trends;

- changes in interest rates;

« changes in the yield curve;

« changes in prepayment rates;

« changes in market value of our assets;

« changes in business conditions and the generabetgn

« expected capital expenditures; and

« the impact of technology on our operations andrimss.

The forwardlooking statements are based on our beliefs, agsomspand expectations of our future performanaking into account ¢
information currently available to us. You shoulat place undue reliance on these forwkmking statements. These beliefs, assumption
expectations can change as a result of many pessitdnts or factors, not all of which are knowruso Some of these factors are desci
under the caption “Risk Factors” in this Annuakport on Form 10-K and any subsequent QuarterlyoRemn Form 1@. If a chang
occurs, our business, financial condition, liquickind results of operations may vary materiallyrfrthose expressed in our forwdabking
statements. Any forwarliboking statement speaks only as of the date owtwiiiis made. New risks and uncertainties arisenftime to time
and it is impossible for us to predict those evemtéiow they may affect us. Except as requiredawy, lwe are not obligated to, and do
intend to, update or revise any forward-lookingesteents, whether as a result of new informatioturtuevents or otherwise.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Our Company

Orchid Island Capital, Inc., a Maryland corporat{p@rchid,” the “Company,” “we” or “us”)js a specialty finance company that inv
in Agency residential mortgage-backed securiti@®&MBS”). Our investment strategy focuses on, and our pastimnsists of, two categories
Agency RMBS: (i) traditional pastwough Agency RMBS and (ii) structured Agency RMBS8ch as CMOs, 10s, 110s and POs, among
types of structured Agency RMBS. Our website isted at http://www.orchidislandcapital.com.

We were formed by Bimini Capital Management, Ineonfetimes referred to herein as “Biminit) August 2010 and comment
operations on November 24, 2010. At December 312 2Bimini was our sole stockholder. On February2B13, we listed our common st
on the NYSE MKT and trade under the symbol “ORC.”

Bimini managed our portfolio from our inception almgh the completion of our initial public offeriren February 20, 2013. Up
completion of the offering, we became externallynaged by Bimini Advisors, LLC (“Bimini Advisors,”rdhe “Manager”) Our Manager is ¢
investment advisor registered with the Securitied Bxchange Commission (“SEC”). Additionally, ouaNager is a whollpwned subsidial
of Bimini, which has a long track record of managinvestments in U.S. government agency mortgagkeduhsecurities.

We are organized and conduct our operations tafguahd will elect to be taxed, as a real estate@stment trust, or “REITTor federa
income tax purposes commencing with our initialrst@xable period from February 20, 2013 and endbegember 31, 2013. We gener
will not be subject to income taxes on our net tdsxancome to the extent we distribute our net béexéncome to our shareholders and mait
our REIT election.

Our Manager

Upon completion of our public offering, we becameeenally managed and advised by Bimini Advisorsl @s experienced RME
investment team pursuant to the terms of a manageaggeement. Our Manager is a Maryland corpanatiat is a whollyswned subsidial
of Bimini. We believe our relationship with our Mager enables us to leverage our Managestablished portfolio management resource
each of our targeted asset classes and its infcaiste supporting those resources. Additionallg, vave benefitted and expect to contint
benefit from our Manages’finance and administration functions, which addriegal, compliance, investor relations and ojmrat matter:
including portfolio management, trade allocationd aexecution, securities valuation, risk managememd information technologies
connection with the performance of its duties. ®Wanagers parent, Bimini commenced active investment mamage operations in 2003,
it self-manages its own portfolio.

Our Manager is responsible for administering owiess activities and day-tay operations. Pursuant to the terms of the n&meag
agreement, our Manager provides us with our managetaam, including our officers, along with appiage support personnel. Our Mane
is at all times subject to the supervision and sighit of our board of directors (the “Board of RQiters”) and has only such functions
authority as we delegate to it.




Our Investment and Capital Allocation Strategy
Investment Strategy

Our business objective is to provide attractivé&-adjusted total returns to our investors over theglterm through a combination
capital appreciation and the payment of regular tiMgndistributions. We intend to achieve this oltjee by investing in and strategice
allocating capital between pafsough Agency RMBS and structured Agency RMBS. $¥ek to generate income from (i) the net int
margin on our leveraged patsough Agency RMBS portfolio and the leveragedtiparof our structured Agency RMBS portfolio, ani the
interest income we generate from the unleveragetiopoof our structured Agency RMBS portfolio. Wis@seek to minimize the volatility
both the net asset value of, and income from, outfqio through a process which emphasizes capitatation, asset selection, liquidity
active interest rate risk management.

Our target asset categories and principal assethith we intend to invest are as follows:
Pas«-through Agency RMBS

We invest in pasthrough securities, which are securities securedelsidential real property in which payments oftbiitterest an
principal on the securities are generally made mgnin effect, these securities pass through tleathly payments made by the individ
borrowers on the mortgage loans that underlie ¢leargties, net of fees paid to the issuer or guarasf the securities. Pasisrough certificate
can be divided into various categories based orthlagacteristics of the underlying mortgages, saglthe term or whether the interest ra
fixed or variable.

The payment of principal and interest on mortgaagsghrough securities issued by Ginnie Mae, but netrttarket value, is guarantt
by the full faith and credit of the federal govermh Payment of principal and interest on mortgaagsthrough certificates issued by Far
Mae and Freddie Mac, but not the market valueu@ganteed by the respective agency issuing theigecu

A key feature of most mortgage loans is the abditghe borrower to repay principal earlier thahestuled. This is called a prepaym
Prepayments arise primarily due to sale of the dyitdg property, refinancing or foreclosure. Pregents result in a return of principal to pass
through certificate holders. This may result iroaér or higher rate of return upon reinvestmenprirficipal. This is generally referred to
prepayment uncertainty. If a security purchased ptemium prepays at a higher-thexpected rate, then the value of the premium wbe
eroded at a faster-than-expected rate. Similaflg, discount mortgage prepays at a lower-tegpected rate, the amortization towards
would be accumulated at a slower-than-expected Téate possibility of these undesirable effectisistimes referred to as “prepayment risk.”

In general, declining interest rates tend to ineeeprepayments, and rising interest rates tendot grepayments. Like other fixed-
income securities, when interest rates rise, theevaf Agency RMBS generally declines. The rat@m#payments on underlying mortgages
affect the price and volatility of Agency RMBS amdhy shorten or extend the effective maturity ofskeurity beyond what was anticipate
the time of purchase. If interest rates rise, aldings of Agency RMBS may experience reduced nstuf the borrowers of the underlyi
mortgages pay off their mortgages later than grdteid. This is generally referred to as extengii r




The mortgage loans underlying pass-through ceatiig can generally be classified into the followtimgee categories:

« Fixed-Rate Mortgage:. Fixed+ate mortgages are those where the borrower payderest rate that is constant throughout the tef
the loan. Traditionally, most fixedhte mortgages have an original term of 30 yeaosvé¥er, shorter terms (also referred to as
maturity dates) have become common in recent y&asause the interest rate on the loan never ceaegen when market inter
rates change, over time there can be a divergestee=bn the interest rate on the loan and curreritehaterest rates. This in turn «
make fixedrate mortgages price sensitive to market fluctuetion interest rates. In general, the longer theairing term on tF
mortgage loan, the greater the price sensiti

« ARMs. ARMs are mortgages for which the borrower paysgarest rate that varies over the term of the.Idde interest rate usue
resets based on market interest rates, althougddjistment of such an interest rate may be sutgezgrtain limitations. Traditionall
interest rate resets occur at regular set interffalsexample, once per year). We will refer to lsu8RMs as “traditional’ARMSs.
Because the interest rates on ARMs fluctuate bagegharket conditions, ARMs tend to have interettgahat do not deviate frc
current market rates by a large amount. This in 6an mean that ARMs have less price sensitiviiptirest rates

« Hybrid Adjustable-Rate Mortgages Hybrid ARMs have a fixedate for the first few years of the loan, ofterethrfive, or seven yea
and thereafter reset periodically like a traditiohRBM. Effectively, such mortgages are hybrids, dining the features of a pure fixed-
rate mortgage and a traditional ARM. Hybrid ARMsvlarice sensitivity to interest rates similar batt of a fixedrate mortgag
during the period when the interest rate is fixad gimilar to that of an ARM when the interest ritén its periodic reset sta
However, because many hybrid ARMs are structurel svrelatively short initial time span during whithe interest rate is fixed, e\
during that segment of its existence, the priceisigity may be high

Structured Agency RMBS

We also invest in structured Agency RMBS, whichlude CMOs, IOs, 110s and POs. The payment of ppalciand interest,
appropriate, on structured Agency RMBS issued byniiMae, but not the market value, is guarantsetthd full faith and credit of the fede
government. Payment of principal and interest,pgsapriate, on structured Agency RMBS issued bynkeaMae and Freddie Mac, but not
market value, is guaranteed by the respective ggesting the security. The types of structured yeRMBS in which we invest &
described below.

« CMOs. CMOs are a type of RMBS the principal and intexfswhich are paid, in most cases, on a monthlyidhaCMOs may t
collateralized by whole mortgage loans, but areartgpically collateralized by portfolios of mortgagasshrough securities issu
directly by or under the auspices of Ginnie Maesdgie Mac or Fannie Mae. CMOs are structured intdtipte classes, with ea
class bearing a different stated maturity. Monitdyments of principal, including prepayments, @& feturned to investors holdi
the shortest maturity class. Investors holding ldmger maturity classes receive principal only raftee first class has been retit
Generally, fixed-rate mortgages are used to collile CMOs. However, the CMO tranches need nohalle fixedrate coupon
Some CMO tranches have floating rate coupons tjastbased on market interest rates, subjectrmedomitations. Such tranchi
often callec* CMO floaters” can have relatively low price sensitivity to intereates

« 1Os. 10s represent the stream of interest payments ool of mortgages, either fixedte mortgages or hybrid ARMs. Holders of
have no claim to any principal payments. The valulOs depends primarily on two factors, which prepayments and interest ra
Prepayments on the underlying pool of mortgageaaedhe stream of interest payments going forwaedce 10s are highly sensit
to prepayment rates. I0s are also sensitive togegeam interest rates. An increase in interessregduces the present value of fu
interest payments on a pool of mortgages. On therdtand, an increase in interest rates has ariepde reduce prepayments, wt
increases the expected absolute amount of futteeest payment:




« 1IOs . 11Os represent the stream of interest paymenta paol of mortgages, either fixedte mortgages or hybrid ARMs. Holder:
[10s have no claim to any principal payments. Th&g of 110s depends primarily on three factorsjolhare prepayments, LIBC
rates and term interest rates. Prepayments onnitherlying pool of mortgages reduce the stream w@fr@st payments, hence 1I0s
highly sensitive to prepayment rates. The couporllOs is derived from both the coupon interest ratethe underlying pool
mortgages and 36ay LIBOR. IIOs are typically created in conjunctiovith a floating rate CMO that has a principalarale an
which is entitled to receive all of the principayments on the underlying pool of mortgages. Thepoa on the floating rate CMO
also based on 3@ay LIBOR. Typically, the coupon on the floatingga&CMO and the 110, when combined, equal the coupoiihe
pool of underlying mortgages. The coupon on thd pbainderlying mortgages typically represents p oaceiling on the combin
coupons of the floating rate CMO and the 110. Actingly, when the value of 38ay LIBOR increases, the coupon of the floating
CMO will increase and the coupon on the IO wiltdsase. When the value of 8ay LIBOR falls, the opposite is true. Accordini
the value of lIOs are sensitive to the level ofd23- LIBOR and expectations by market participamtEsimre movements in the level
30-day LIBOR. 1IOs are also sensitive to changes terast rates. An increase in interest rates redthmpresent value of futt
interest payments on a pool of mortgages. On therdtand, an increase in interest rates has ariepde reduce prepayments, wk
increases the expected absolute amount of futteeest payment:

« POs. POs represent the stream of principal payments pool of mortgages. Holders of POs have no ctaiany interest paymen
although the ultimate amount of principal to beeieed over time is known -t equals the principal balance of the underlyioglppoi
mortgages. What is not known is the timing of teeeipt of the principal payments. The value of RI@pends primarily on tv
factors, which are prepayments and interest r@epayments on the underlying pool of mortgageslacate the stream of princi|
repayments, hence POs are highly sensitive toateeat which the mortgages in the pool are pret are also sensitive to char
in interest rates. An increase in interest ratdsices the present value of future principal paymenta pool of mortgages. Further
increase in interest rates also has a tendencgdce prepayments, which decelerates, or pusht#®fusut in time, the ultima
receipt of the principal payments. The oppositielis when interest rates declil

Our investment strategy consists of the followinghponents:

« investing in passhrough Agency RMBS and certain structured AgentBS, such as fixed and floating rate tranches ofGZMani
POs, on a leveraged basis to increase returnseorafital allocated to this portfoli

« investing in certain structured Agency RMBS, susH@s and IIOs, on an unleveraged basis in ord€) tocrease returns due to
structural leverage contained in such securiti@serithance liquidity due to the fact that theseusiies will be unencumbered and |
diversify portfolio interest rate risk due to thiéfekent interest rate sensitivity these securitiegse compared to patsough Agenc
RMBS;

« investing in Agency RMBS in order to minimize criedsk;

- investing in assets that will cause us to maintain exclusion from regulation as an investment camypunder the Investme
Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the Investi@enipany Act; an

« investing in assets that will allow us to qualifydamaintain our qualification as a REIT.

We rely on our Manages’expertise in identifying assets within our taggdet class. Our Manager makes investment desibesed ¢
various factors, including, but not limited to, ate value, expected cash yield, supply and demeosts of hedging, costs of financi
liquidity requirements, expected future interesé neolatility and the overall shape of the U.S.a&ary and interest rate swap yield curves
do not attribute any particular quantitative sigrdihce to any of these factors, and the weight ive tp these factors depends on me
conditions and economic trends.

Over time, we will modify our investment strategy market conditions change to seek to maximizergharns from our investme
portfolio. We believe that this strategy, combinveith our Manager’'s experience, will enable us tovde attractive longerm returns to ol
stockholders.




Capital Allocation Strategy

The percentage of capital invested in our two asatsgories will vary and will be managed in aroeffo maintain the level of incor
generated by the combined portfolios, the stabdftyhat income stream and the stability of theueadf the combined portfolios. The alloca
of capital between the two portfolios will be a €tion of several factors:

« The relative durations of the respective portfoliesve generally seek to have a combined duratiar akar zero. If our paskrougt
securities have a longer duration, we will allocaitere capital to the structured security portfaticachieve a combined duration cl
to zero.

« The relative attractiveness of pahsaugh securities versus structured securitiesthEoextent we believe the expected returns o
type of security are higher than the other, we alilbcate more capital to the more attractive sdesr subject to the caveat thai
combined duration remains at or near z

« We seek to maintain adequate cash and unencumbecedities relative to our repurchase agreemenbWirgs to ensure we ¢
meet any price or prepayment related margin cedis four lenders. To the extent we feel price oppyenent related margin calls v
be higher/lower, we will allocate less/more capitalthe pass-through Agency RMBS portfolio. Our safisough Agency RMB
portfolio likely will be our only source of pricer prepayment related margin calls because we gignerniél not apply leverage to ol
structured Agency RMBS portfoli

Typically, passhrough Agency RMBS and structured Agency RMBS bithmaterially different sensitivities to movemeitsinteres
rates. Declines in the value of one portfolio maydifset by appreciation in the other, althoughoaenot assure you that this will be the ¢
Additionally, our Manager will seek to maintain gdiate liquidity as it allocates capital.

We allocate our capital to assist our interest riatemanagement efforts. The unleveraged portfidties not require unencumbered
or cash equivalents to be maintained in anticipatibpossible margin calls. To the extent more tedjs deployed in the unleveraged portfc
our liquidity needs will generally be less.

During periods of rising interest rates, refinagcapportunities available to borrowers typicallycomse because borrowers are not
to refinance their current mortgage loans with me@rtgage loans at lower interest rates. In sudamtgs, securities that are highly sensiti
refinancing activity, such as I0s and IIOs, typigahcrease in value. Our capital allocation stggtallows us to redeploy our capital into s
securities when and if we believe interest ratdsbeihigher in the future, thereby allowing ushld securities the value of which we beliey
likely to increase as interest rates rise. Alsobbing able to redlocate capital into structured Agency RMBS, sashiOs, during periods
rising interest rates, we may be able to offsetlitedy decline in the value of our patsough Agency RMBS, which are negatively impa
by rising interest rates.

Financing Strategy

We use leverage to increase potential returns tatoeckholders. We fund our patsseugh Agency RMBS and certain of our structi
Agency RMBS, such as fixed and floating rate traschf CMOs and POs, through shiatm repurchase agreements. Our borrowings cuy
consist of shorterm repurchase agreements. We may use other saifré®=verage, such as secured or unsecured dédguamnces of preferr
stock. We do not have a policy limiting the amoahteverage we may incur. However, we generallyeexphat the ratio of our total liabiliti
compared to our equity, which we refer to as ouelage ratio, will be less than 12 to 1. Our amainéverage may vary depending on ms
conditions and other factors that we deem relevant.

We do not intend to employ leverage on our strgctiukgency RMBS that have no principal balance, aghOs and 110s. We do t
intend to use leverage in these instances becheseturities contain structural leverage. Thecsiral leverage is derived as follows:




« A structured security is defined as a security veheash flows are derived from the cash flows of anmore underlying securities.

« The structured security will only receive a portufrthe cash flows from the underlying securitywlli either receive a fractional portion
the cash flows from the underlying securities otrer life of the underlying security, or it will reive all of the cash flows from t
underlying securities, but only for a fraction béttime such securities are producing cash f

« In the case of our structured Agency RMBS portfotlee underlying securities in question are AgeRMBS. There are two prima
factors that affect the timing and amount of cdstv$ of Agency RMBS

« movements of interest rates, and
« actual or expected prepayments of the underlyingdo

« Since a structured security only receives a pomibthe cash flows of the underlying security, aesin the cash flows of the underly
security may have a far greater impact on the waah flows to the structured security. For instantwe own a security that is ol
entitled to the interest portion of the cash fldvesn an underlying pool of amortizing loans, welwihly receive such cash flows as lon
the underlying loans remain outstanding. If thearhdng loans are paid off at a faster rate thas wticipated, the total interest cash fl
received will be lower than anticipated. In thistamce the total principal cash flows will be ueaféd, but if the loans are paid off soc
than anticipated, the total interest cash flowd el reduced. Therefore, while the total princigatl interest cash flows of the underly
loans may not be materially reduced, the cash flmnhe security only entitled to receive the iestrportion of such cash flows will
reduced by a far greater amot

« Since the price of a security is a function of éxpected cash flows over the life of such secutlitg,structural leverage is the result of
fact the structured security is likely to experiemqrice movements larger than those experiencetlébgecurities underlying the struct.
security.

Risk Management

We invest in Agency RMBS to mitigate credit riskdditionally, our Agency RMBS are backed by a diVfegd base of mortgage loe
to mitigate geographic, loan originator and otlypes of concentration risks.

Interest Rate Risk Managem:

We believe that the risk of adverse interest rat@aments represents the most significant risk tgooutfolio. This risk arises because
the interest rate indices used to calculate therést rates on the mortgages underlying our assashe different from the interest rate ind
used to calculate the interest rates on the reladedbwings, and (ii) interest rate movements dfifgcour borrowings may not be reason:
correlated with interest rate movements affectingassets. We attempt to mitigate our interestriskeby using the following techniques:

Agency RMBS Backed by ARM&e seek to minimize the differences between @sterate indices and interest rate adjustment g
our Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and related borrginAt the time of funding, we typically align e underlying interest rate inc
used to calculate interest rates for our Agency RMiacked by ARMs and the related borrowings andh@ interest rate adjustment peri
for our Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and the interes¢ adjustment periods for our related borrowirs our borrowings mature or i
renewed, we may adjust the index used to calcultteest expense, the duration of the reset peaadshe maturities of our borrowings.

Agency RMBS Backed by Fixed-Rate Mortgagesinterest rates rise, our borrowing costs iaseg however, the income on our Age
RMBS backed by fixedate mortgages remains unchanged. Subject to gualiind maintaining a qualification as a REIT, may seek t
limit increases to our borrowing costs through tise of interest rate swap or cap agreements, @ptor or call agreements, futures contr.
forward rate agreements or similar financial instemts to effectively convert our floating-rate lmwings into fixed-rate borrowings.




Agency RMBS Backed by Hybrid ARMBuring the fixedrate period of our Agency RMBS backed by hybrid ARNhe security
similar to Agency RMBS backed by fixedte mortgages. During this period, subject to ifging and maintaining a qualification as a RE
we may employ the same hedging strategy that wdogmnipr our Agency RMBS backed by fixgdte mortgages. Once our Agency RM
backed by hybrid ARMs convert to floating rate s#@s, we may employ the same hedging strategwegmploy for our Agency RME
backed by ARMs.

Additionally, our structured Agency RMBS generadiyhibit sensitivities to movements in interest satiéferent than our pagkrougt
Agency RMBS. To the extent they do so, our striedtubgency RMBS may protect us against declinesiénnharket value of our combir
portfolio that result from adverse interest rateveraents, although we cannot assure you that thibaithe case.

Prepayment Risk Manageme

The risk of mortgage prepayments is another sicanifi risk to our portfolio. When prevailing intereates fall below the coupon rate
a mortgage, mortgage prepayments are likely toeas®. Conversely, when prevailing interest ratesease above the coupon rate
mortgage, mortgage prepayments are likely to dserea

When prepayment rates increase, we may not bet@l&nvest the money received from prepaymentgedds comparable to those
the securities prepaid. Also, some ARMs and hyBfRMs which back our Agency RMBS may bear initis¢dser’interest rates that are lov
than their fully-indexed interest rates. If thesertgages are prepaid during this “teageetiod, we may lose the opportunity to receiveried
payments at the higher, fulipdexed rate over the expected life of the secufitiditionally, some of our structured Agency RMBS8¢ch as IC
and II0s, may be negatively affected by an increag@aepayment rates because their value is wraahtingent on the underlying mortg:
loans having an outstanding principal balance.

A decrease in prepayment rates may also have arsedeffect on our portfolio. For example, if wedst in POs, the purchase prici
such securities will be based, in part, on an assuevel of prepayments on the underlying mortdaga. Because the returns on POs dec
the longer it takes the principal payments on theeulying loans to be paid, a decrease in prepaynages could decrease our returns on
securities.

Prepayment risk also affects our hedging activitid¢hen an Agency RMBS backed by a fixede mortgage or hybrid ARM is acqui
with borrowings, we may cap or fix our borrowingst®for a period close to the anticipated averdgef the fixedrate portion of the relat
Agency RMBS. If prepayment rates are different tban projections, the term of the related hedgimgjrument may not match the fixeake
portion of the security, which could cause us tuirlosses.

Because our business may be adversely affectedphgment rates are different than our projectiamesseek to invest in Agency RM
backed by mortgages with welbcumented and predictable prepayment historierdect against increases in prepayment ratesnwest ir
Agency RMBS backed by mortgages that we believeless likely to be prepaid. For example, we inviesAgency RMBS backed |
mortgages (i) with loan balances low enough suahahborrower would likely have little incentive riefinance, (ii) extended to borrowers v
credit histories weak enough to not be eligibleetinance their mortgage loans, (iii) that are newriginated fixedrate or hybrid ARMs or (ix
that have interest rates low enough such that sower would likely have little incentive to refine@ To protect against decrease
prepayment rates, we may also invest in Agency RNbBE&ed by mortgages with characteristics oppdsitéhose described above, wt
would typically be more likely to be refinanced. Wry also invest in certain types of structured dyeRMBS as a means of mitigating
portfolio-wide prepayment risks. For example, certain traa@dfeCMOs are less sensitive to increases in prapayrates, and we may inv
in those tranches as a means of hedging againseises in prepayment rates.




Liquidity Management Strategy
Because of our use of leverage, we manage liquidityeet our lenders’ margin calls using the follggymeasures:

« Maintaining cash balances or unencumbered ass#itsvescess of anticipated margin calls; and
« Making margin calls on our lenders when we havexaess of collateral pledged against our borrowings

We also attempt to minimize the number of margilsaae receive by:

« Deploying capital from our leveraged Agency RMBStfmio to our unleveraged Agency RMBS portfolio;

« Investing in Agency RMBS backed by mortgages thatbwlieve are less likely to be prepaid to decréaseisk of excessive marg
calls when monthly prepayments are announced. PPmegats are declared, and the market value of théetksecurity declines, befi
the receipt of the related cash flows. Prepaymestaglations give rise to a temporary collateralidiieficy and generally results
margin calls by lender:

« Obtaining funding arrangements which defer or waikgpaymentelated margin requirements in exchange for paysnenthe lendt
tied to the dollar amount of the collateral defizig and a predetermined interest rate;

« Reducing our overall amount of leverage.

Tax Structure

We will elect and intend to qualify to be taxedaaREIT commencing with our initial short taxablaipd ending December 31, 20
Our qualification as a REIT, and the maintenanceuwafh qualification, will depend upon our ability ineet, on a continuing basis, vari
complex requirements under the U.S. Internal Resdbode (“the Code”)elating to, among other things, the sources ofgvass income, tt
composition and values of our assets, our disiohuevels and the concentration of ownership of @apital stock. We believe that we will
organized in conformity with the requirements foatification and taxation as a REIT under the Caael we intend to operate in a manner
will enable us to meet the requirements for quedifibn and taxation as a REIT commencing with utial short taxable period endi
December 31, 2013.

As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to Uf&deral income tax on the REIT taxable income thatcurrently distribute to o
stockholders. Taxable income generated by anybtex@EIT subsidiary (“TRS”"}hat we may form or acquire will be subject to fedestat:
and local income tax. Under the Code, REITs argestito numerous organizational and operationalireqents, including a requirement 1
they distribute annually at least 90% of their REdXable income, determined without regard to tha@udtion for dividends paid and exclud
any net capital gains. If we fail to qualify as EIR in any calendar year and do not qualify fortaier statutory relief provisions, our inco
would be subject to U.S. federal income tax, anduweeld likely be precluded from qualifying for tte@ent as a REIT until the fifth calens
year following the year in which we failed to qfaliEven if we qualify as a REIT, we may still bebgect to certain federal, state and I
taxes on our income and assets and to U.S. feideahe and excise taxes on our undistributed income




Investment Company Act Exemption

We operate our business so that we are exemptrigistration under the Investment Company Act. g on the exemption provid
by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company,Aghich applies to companies in the business othmsing or otherwise acquiri
mortgages and other liens on, and interests ihestate. In order to rely on the exemption proditdg Section 3(c)(5)(C), we must maintai
least 55% of our assets in qualifying real estatets. For the purposes of this test, structureehéy RMBS are noxualifying real esta
assets. We monitor our portfolio periodically antbpto each investment to confirm that we continoigualify for the exemption. To qual
for the exemption, we make investments so thatadt|55% of the assets we own on an unconsolidhatsid consist of qualifying mortgay
and other liens on and interests in real estat&haie refer to as qualifying real estate assetd,so that at least 80% of the assets we ov
an unconsolidated basis consist of real estatéetklssets, including our qualifying real estasetss

We treat whole-pool pass-through Agency RMBS adifyireg real estate assets based onaction letters issued by the Staff of the £
In August 2011, the SEC, through a concept releasgiested comments on interpretations of Sectio){5(C). To the extent that the SEC
its staff publishes new or different guidance wigispect to these matters, we may fail to qualifytfis exemption. Our Manager intend:
manage our pass-through Agency RMBS portfolio sthet we will have sufficient whole-pool pagsough Agency RMBS to ensure
maintain our exemption from registration under ingestment Company Act. At present, we generallyndbexpect that our investment:
structured Agency RMBS will constitute qualifyingal estate assets but will constitute real estdtged assets for purposes of the Invest
Company Act.

Employees

We are externally managed and advised by our Manpgesuant to a management agreement as discusded.bWe have r
employees other than our officers, each of whorgs an employee of our Manager or one of itsiafés. Our Manager is not obligatet
dedicate any of its employees exclusively to ug, isoit or its employees obligated to dedicate apgcific portion of its time to o
business. Our Manager uses the proceeds fromaitgigement fee in part to pay compensation to fiseo$§ and employees who receive
cash compensation directly from us.

Competition

Our net income largely depends on our ability tquiie Agency RMBS at favorable spreads over ourdvang costs. When we invi
in Agency RMBS and other investment assets, we etenwith a variety of institutional investors, inding other REITS, insurance compar
mutual funds, pension funds, investment bankingdirbanks and other financial institutions thatestvin the same types of assets ani
Federal Reserve Bank. Many of these investors feaater financial resources and access to lowés odgapital than we do. The existenc
these competitive entities, as well as the possilof additional entities forming in the futureamincrease the competition for the acquis
of mortgage related securities, resulting in highréces and lower yields on assets.

Distributions

To maintain a qualification as a REIT, we mustritistte substantially all of our REIT taxable incotfes defined in the Code) to «
stockholders for each year. We plan to declarepaydregular monthly dividends.




Available Information

Our investor relations website is www.orchidislaapital.com. We make available on the website urilarancial Information/SE
filings," free of charge, our annual report on FalBiK, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our eatrreports on Form B-and any othe
reports (including any amendments to such repagsgoon as reasonably practicable after we elécaiynfile or furnish such materials to 1
SEC. Information on our website, however, is nat pathis Annual Report on Form 10- All reports filed with the SEC may also be read
copied at the SEG’public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Whagbn, D.C. 20549. Further information regardihg bperation of tt
public reference room may be obtained by calli®p0-SEC-0330. In addition, all of our filed remodan be obtained at the SE@Vebsite ¢
WWW.SEC.gov.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks describetblv and all other information contained in this Al Report on Form 16
including our annual financial statements and rethinotes thereto, before making an investmentidaciegarding our common stock. C
business, financial condition or results of opesat could be harmed by any of these risks. Simgijlénese risks could cause the market prit
our common stock to decline and you might losergfiart of your investment. Our forwatdeking statements in this annual report are sut
to the following risks and uncertainties. Our adttesults could differ materially from those angiated by our forwardeoking statements as
result of the risk factors below.

Risks Related to Our Business

Although the immediate effect of “QE®/as an increase of Agency RMBS prices, there ernainty what effect QE3 and other rece
announced governmental actions might have in theduon the price and liquidity of the securiti@svihich we invest. However,
confluence of such factors as QE3 and further gowental efforts to increase home loan refinancipgastunities could simultaneou
raise Agency RMBS prices and increase prepayméivitgcwhich could place downward pressure on pat interest margin.

On September 13, 2012, the Federal Reserve anmbanttérd round of quantitative easing, or QE3, akhis an opemnded progra
designed to expand the Federal Reserve’s holdihfgsg-term securities by purchasing an additional $4fobilof Agency RMBS per mon
until key economic indicators, such as the unemplayt rate, show signs of improvement. When combinéd programs to extend t
average maturity of the Federal Reserve’s holdivfgsecurities, which was known as “Operation Twiatid described below, and rein
principal and interest payments from the FederaleRees holdings of agency debt and Agency RMBS into AgeRMBS, QE3 was expect
to increase the Federal Reserve’s holdings of teng- securities by $85 billion each month througé ¢nd of 2012. The Federal Reserve
announced that it would keep the target rangelferRederal Funds Rate between zero and 0.25% thraulgast mid2015, which was s
months longer than previously expected.

The Federal Reserve provided further guidancedaonthrket in December 2012 by stating that it ineehtb keep the Federal Funds |
close to zero while the unemployment rate is al®®86 and as long as inflation does not rise aboB&62In December 2012, the Fed
Reserve also announced that it would initially belguying $45 billion of longerm Treasury bonds each month and noted that aunciun
may increase in the future. This bond purchaserprogeplaced the program known as “Operation TWist,which the Federal Resel
repurchased approximately $45 billion of long-téfreasury bonds each month and sold approximatelgdme amount of shagrm Treasur
bonds. The Federal Reserve expects these measymesdownward pressure on long-term interest rates
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The immediate impact of the announcement of QE3amamicrease in Agency RMBS prices. This effect esgecially pronounced
Agency RMBS that the Federal Reserve was expectédrget for acquisition under QE3. Since the ahipirice spike, prices for all but 1
target securities have receded below the pricdddkat existed before the announcement of QE3d@iot anticipate targeting for acquisit
the same securities the Federal Reserve has tdngetiate, although the securities targeted byFdderal Reserve could change. To the e
that the scope and effectiveness of governmspatisored refinancing programs increases, prepagne@nour target securities could incre
accordingly. The combination of higher prices aighbr refinancing activity on our target securitgesild decrease our net interest margir
the extent QE3 decreases the liquidity in the ntaokeur target securities, which has yet to bedhse, we might not be able to acquire
securities we target or acquire them in the quastive desire.

Adverse developments in the broader residentialtgage market may materially adversely affect owsifess, financial condition a
results of operations and our ability to pay distriions to our stockholders.

The residential mortgage market in the United States experienced a variety of difficulties andngfeal economic conditions, includ
defaults, credit losses and liquidity concerns abwer past few years. In addition, certain comméiteéaks, investment banks and insur:
companies have announced extensive losses fromsepgto the residential mortgage market. Thesee¢ohave reduced financial indut
capital, leading to reduced liquidity for some ingtons. These factors have impacted investorggroen of the risk associated with real estat
related assets, including Agency RMBS. As a resalijes for RMBS, including some Agency RMBS anldeotAAA-rated MBS assets, he
been negatively impacted at times. Further inciaséatility and deterioration in the broader resital mortgage and RMBS markets t
adversely affect the performance and market valdlesoAgency RMBS in which we invest.

We rely on our Agency RMBS as collateral for ourafiicings. Any decline in their value, or perceivedrket uncertainty about th
value, would likely make it difficult for us to adih financing on favorable terms or at all or maintour compliance with terms of ¢
financing arrangements already in place. Additinale have elected to account for our investmarl®RMBS under the fair value option a
therefore, such investment will be reported on financial statements at fair value with unrealizgdns and losses included éarnings. |
market conditions result in a decline in the vadfi®eur Agency RMBS, our business, financial positamd results of operations and our ak
to pay distributions to our stockholders could teemially adversely affected.

Interest rate mismatches between our Agency RMBSanborrowings may reduce our net interest mamming periods of changit
interest rates, which could materially adverselfeef our business, financial condition and reswatoperations and our ability to p
distributions to our stockholders.

Our portfolio includes Agency RMBS backed by ARMgprid ARMs and fixed-ate mortgages, and the mix of these securitid¢he
portfolio may be increased or decreased over tiflitionally, the interest rates on ARMs and hybABRMs may vary over time based
changes in a short-term interest rate index, ottvtiiere are many.

We finance our acquisitions of pass-through AgeR84BS with short-term financing. During periods dding shortterm interest rate
the income we earn on these securities will nohgkgwith respect to Agency RMBS backed by fixate mortgage loans) or will not incre
at the same rate (with respect to Agency RMBS bditke ARMs and hybrid ARMSs) as our related financowsgts, which may reduce our
interest margin or result in losses.
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The federal conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddac and related efforts, along with any changedaws and regulatior
affecting the relationship between Fannie Mae aneldBie Mac and the U.S. Government, may adverdédgtaour business, financ
condition and results of operations and our abititypay distributions to our stockholders.

The payments we receive on the Agency RMBS in whighinvest depend upon a steady stream of paynmmmtdhe mortgage
underlying the securities and are guaranteed byi€iMae, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. Ginnie Maeaid pf a U.S. Government agency
its guarantees are backed by the full faith anditd the United States. Fannie Mae and Freddie &fa U.S. Government sponsored ent
or GSEs, but their guarantees are not backed biglhfaith and credit of the United States.

Since 2007, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac have repsrbstantial losses and a need for substantialat®@f additional capital.
response to the deteriorating financial conditibri-annie Mae and Freddie Mac and the credit madtistiption several years ago, Cong
and the U.S. Treasury have undertaken a seriestmna to stabilize these GSEs and the financiatketa generally. The Housing ¢
Economic Recovery Act was signed into law on July 3008, and it established the Federal Housingrieie Authority, or the FHFA. C
September 7, 2008, the FHFA placed Fannie Mae aeddie Mac into conservatorship, which is a statufmrocess pursuant to which
FHFA operates Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac in antetffostabilize the entities. The FHFA, togethethathe U.S. Treasury and the Fed
Reserve, has also undertaken actions designedsi investor confidence in Fannie Mae and Freddae,Mupport the availability of mortge
financing and protect taxpayers. In addition, th&.Urreasury has taken steps to capitalize andd®dinancing to Fannie Mae and Frec
Mac and agreed to purchase direct obligations ayehfy RMBS issued or guaranteed by Fannie Maeeatdie¢ Mac.

Shortly after Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were plandederal conservatorship, the Secretary ofutfe Treasury, in announcing
actions, noted that the guarantee structure ofiEaviae and Freddie Mac required examination antddhanges in the structures of the ent
were necessary to reduce risk to the financialesystin February 2011, the U.S. Treasury and theaBewnt of Housing and Urb
Development released a White Paper titled “Refogrimerica’s Housing Finance Markett the Housing Report, in which they propose
reduce or eliminate the role of GSEs in mortgagarfting. The Housing Report calls for phasing icréased pricing of Fannie Mae
Freddie Mac guarantees to help level the playietdffor the private sector to take back market sheeducing conforming loan limits
allowing the temporary increase in Fannie Mae’s Brelldie Macs conforming loan limits to reset as scheduled atofer 1, 2011 to ti
lower levels set in the Housing and Economic Repoyet of 2008 and continuing to wind down Fanniaé/s and Freddie Mag’investmer
portfolio at an annual rate of no less than 10%ygear. The future roles of Fannie Mae and Freddie Bbuld be significantly reduced and
nature of their guarantees could be eliminatedamsiderably limited relative to historical measuesits. Any changes to the nature of
guarantees provided by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mald cedefine what constitutes Agency RMBS, haweatradverse market implicatic
and negatively impact us.

The problems faced by Fannie Mae and Freddie Msuwltieg in their being placed into Federal constmship have stirred debi
among some federal policy makers regarding theimoed role of the U.S. Government in providing ldjty for the residential mortga
market. If federal policy makers decide that th&.UGovernmens role in providing liquidity for the residentialarigage market should
reduced or eliminated, each of Fannie Mae and keellidc could be dissolved and the U.S. Governmentdcdecide to stop providil
liquidity support of any kind to the mortgage markéFannie Mae or Freddie Mac were eliminatedthair structures were to change radic.
we may not be able to acquire Agency RMBS from éhesmpanies, which could drastically reduce thewarhand type of Agency RME
available for investment, thereby increasing theepof these assets. Additionally, the current itreapport provided by the U.S. Treasur
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and any additionalicsegport it may provide in the future, could hate effect of lowering the interest r
we receive from Agency RMBS, thereby tightening #8pead between the interest we earn on our piortiohd our financing cos
Additionally, the U.S. Government could elect topsproviding credit support of any kind to the ngaige market. If any of these events we
occur, our business, financial condition and resaoft operations and our ability to pay distribuaie our stockholders could be materi
adversely affected.
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As indicated above, recent legislation has chanlgedelationship between Fannie Mae and Freddie &facthe U.S. Government ¢
requires Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to reducerttmuat of mortgage loans they own or the amountgéey RMBS for which they provi
guarantees. The effect of the actions taken bytise Government remains uncertain. Furthermorestiope and nature of the actions tha
U.S. Government will ultimately undertake are unknoand will continue to evolve. Future legislatioould further change the relations
between Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the U.Sei@ment and could also nationalize or eliminats¢h@SEs entirely. Any law affecti
these GSEs may create market uncertainty and haveffect of reducing the actual or perceived ¢rgdality of securities issued or guaran
by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. As a result, suclslemuld adversely impact the market for such stéesrand the spreads at which they tr
All of the foregoing could materially adversely edf the pricing, supply, liquidity and value of otarget assets and otherwise mater
adversely affect our business, financial conditamg results of operations and our ability to peyrithutions to our stockholders.

We cannot predict the impact, if any, on our eagsiror cash available for distribution to our stooktters of the FHFAS propose
revisions to Fannie Mae’s, Freddie Mac’s and GinMae’s existing infrastructures to align the standardsl goractices of the thri
entities.

On February 21, 2012, the FHFA releasedSitstegic Plan for Enterprise Conservatorshipshich set forth three goals for the r
phase of the Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac conseslapsr These three goals are to (i) build a nevagtfucture for the secondary mortg
market, (ii) gradually contract Fannie Mae and HiedVac's presence in the marketplace while simplifying ahdnking their operations, a
(iii) maintain foreclosure prevention activitiesdacredit availability for new and refinanced mogga. On October 4, 2012, the FHFA rele
its white paper entitleBuilding a New Infrastructure for the Secondary Maige Market which proposes a new infrastructure for Fannie
and Freddie Mac that has two basic goals.

The first such goal is to replace the current, atgd infrastructures of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mile a common, more efficie
infrastructure that aligns the standards and prestof the two entities, beginning with core fuoes performed by both entities suct
issuance, master servicing, bond administratiofiatesal management and data integration. The skgwal is to establish an operai
framework for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac that isstsient with the progress of housing finance rafand encourages and accommoc
the increased participation of private capital$swaning credit risk associated with the secondamtgage market.

The FHFA recognizes that there are a number of dinpents to their goals which may or may not be sumtable, such as the abse
of any significant secondary mortgage market meishasm beyond Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie M@ that their proposals are in
formative stages. As a result, it is unclear if piheposals will be enacted. If such proposals aeeted, it is unclear how closely what is eng
will resemble the proposals from the FHFA White &apr what the effects of the enactment will béeinms of our net asset value, earning
cash available for distribution to our stockholders

Mortgage loan modification programs and future Bgtive action may adversely affect the value af] ¢the returns on, our Ager
RMBS, which could materially adversely affect owssibess, financial condition and results of opams and our ability to pe
distributions to our stockholders.

During the second half of 2008, the U.S. Governneemimenced programs designed to provide homeowvitrassistance in avoidi

residential mortgage loan foreclosures. The programolve, among other things, the modificationnudrtgage loans to reduce the princ
amount of the loans or the rate of interest payabléhe loans, or to extend the payment termseofdans.
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In addition, in February 2008, the U.S. Treasumgaamced the Homeowner Affordability and Stabilita®, or HASP, which is a multi-
faceted plan intended to prevent residential mgedareclosures by, among other things:

« allowing certain homeowners whose homes are encwtdb®y Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac conforming morégai refinance tho
mortgages into lower interest rate mortgages wittiee Fannie Mae or Freddie Me

- creating the Homeowner Stability Initiative, whiishintended to utilize various incentives for baaksl mortgage servicers to mo
residential mortgage loans with the goal of redgcmonthly mortgage principal and interest paymeiats certain qualifie
homeowners; an

« allowing judicial modifications of Fannie Mae andeBdie Mac conforming residential mortgages loamsindg bankruptc
proceedings

In September 2011, the White House announced libgitare working on a major plan to allow some ef 11 million homeowners wi
owe more on their mortgages that their homes amthvito refinance. In October 2011, the FHFA annaghproposed changes to the Hi
Affordable Refinance Program, or HARP, that woulgpand access to refinancing for qualified individuand families whose homes have
value by, among other things, increasing the HA&&hitovalue ratio above 125%. However, this would onlplggo mortgages guarante
by the GSEs. There are many challenging issuesiggtoposal, notably the question as to whethean with a loan-toralue ratio of 125¢
qualifies as a mortgage or an unsecured consuraer Tthe chances of this initiatigesuccess have created additional uncertaintyeifRiB S
market, particularly with respect to possible ims®s in prepayment rates.

On January 4, 2012, the Federal Reserve issued it whper outlining additional ideas with regard refinancings and lo:
modifications. It is likely that loan modificationsould result in increased prepayments on some &g&MBS. As described elsewhe
prepayments could negatively affect the value afAgency RMBS, which could result in reduced eagsiir losses and negatively affect
cash available for distribution to our stockholdefer more information relating to the impact of pagment on our business. These initiati
any future loan modification programs and futurgidkative or regulatory actions, including amendiseo the bankruptcy laws, that resul
the modification of outstanding mortgage loans radyersely affect the value of, and the returngtm Agency RMBS in which we invest.

The downgrade of the U.S.’s and certain Europeamtiies’ credit ratings, any future downgrades lo¢ tU.S.$ and certain Europe:
countries’ credit ratings and the failure to resolve futuresuss related to the U.S. debt ceiling may materiativersely affect o
business, liquidity, financial condition and resudtf operations.

Recent U.S. debt ceiling and budget deficit consetagether with signs of deteriorating sovereigftdconditions in Europe, he
increased the possibility of additional crediting downgrades and economic slowdowns, or ssstme in the U.S. Although U.S. lawmak
passed legislation to raise the federal debt ggilin2011, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services leaéts longterm sovereign credit rating
the U.S. from “AAA” to “AA+" in August 2011. The imact of any further downgrades to the U.S. Goventtaesovereign credit rating or
perceived creditworthiness could adversely affeetW.S. and global financial markets and economiditions. In addition, some econom
predict the U.S. economy could fall into recessfaie U.S. Government fails to achieve a plantoid continuing budget deficits. The U
Government adopted legislation in December 201Zkimcluded tax increases, but deferred many ofatitematic spending cuts for t
months. In January 2013, the U.S. Government addetgslation to suspend the debt ceiling for thmeenths. Further, Moodyg’and Fitc
have each warned that they may downgrade the W8er@ment’s rating if the federal debt is not diabd. If the U.S$ credit rating wel
downgraded it would likely impact the credit risksaciated with Agency RMBS in our portfolio. A dograde of the U.S. Governmesntredi
rating or a default by the U.S. Government to §aiiis debt obligations likely would create broadigrancial turmoil and uncertainty, whi
would weigh heavily on the global banking systerbsént further quantitative easing by the FederaeRe, these developments, along
the European sovereign debt crisis, could causedst rates and borrowing costs to rise and a tieduic the availability of credit, which m
negatively impact the value of the assets in outf@@, our net income, liquidity and our abilitg finance our assets on favorable terms.
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The downgrade of numerous European banks and eedideterioration of economic conditions in the @hgan Union generally m
materially adversely affect our business, financ@ahdition and results of operations.

Over the past several years, economic conditiorssathe European Union have continued to detée@smthe effects of financial cri
linger. Domestic banks in many countries includ®ggin and Italy face constrained access to cagitdl have, or may, seek bailts fron
either their respective governments or other parepean agencies. Exacerbating the problem idaittethat many of the sovereigns ar
similar conditions with excessive fiscal deficitégh borrowing costs and facing external pressareadnstrain their external debt and fi
deficits. The perceived inability of the variousvepeign governments, the European Central Banlerdational Monetary Fund or ofl
agencies to adequately address these issues haSvabgimpacted markets across Europe and theegldb the extent these conditi
continue or worsen, we could be adversely impatbethe extent borrowing costs increase due togisilBOR levels or security mark
liquidity deteriorates, constraining our abilitydaoquire and finance our portfolio.

Prepayment rates could negatively affect the vafusur Agency RMBS, which could result in reducachi@gs or losses and negativ
affect the cash available for distribution to otockholders.

In the case of residential mortgage loans, thexesaidom any restrictions on borroweabilities to prepay their loans. Homeowners
to prepay mortgage loans faster when applicabldgage interest rates decline. Furthermore, both PARd QE3 could cause an increas
prepayment rates. Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Gihtde guarantees of principal and interest relatethé¢ Agency RMBS we own do 1
protect us against prepayment risks. Consequemtipers of the loans have to reinvest the moneyiveddrom the prepayments at the lo
prevailing interest rates. Conversely, homeownensl thot to prepay mortgage loans when mortgageestteates remain steady or incre
Consequently, owners of the loans are unable tovest money that would have otherwise been receir@d prepayments at the hig
prevailing interest rates. This volatility in prepaent rates may affect our ability to maintain tegl amounts of leverage on our Age
RMBS portfolio, result in reduced earnings or Ies&® us and negatively affect the cash availatedistribution to our stockholders.

We invest in structured Agency RMBS, including CMOs, 110s and POs. Although structured Agency RB\iBe generally subject
the same risks as our paggough Agency RMBS, certain types of risks magrenced depending on the type of structured As
RMBS in which we invest.

The structured Agency RMBS in which we invest aeeuwsitizations (i) issued by Fannie Mae, FreddiecMa Ginnie Mae, (i
collateralized by Agency RMBS and (iii) divided antarious tranches that have different charactesigsuch as different maturities or differ
coupon payments). These securities may carry greigtethan an investment in paggough Agency RMBS. For example, certain type
structured Agency RMBS, such as IOs, [IOs and R@smore sensitive to prepayment risks than gassigh Agency RMBS. If we were
invest in structured Agency RMBS that were moresgime to prepayment risks relative to other typéstructured Agency RMBS or pass-
through Agency RMBS, we may increase our portfalide prepayment risk.

Increased levels of prepayments on the mortgagesrlying our Agency RMBS might decrease net inténesme or result in a net lo:
which could materially adversely affect our buss)dmancial condition and results of operationgdasur ability to pay distributions
our stockholders.

In the case of residential mortgages, there amdoselany restrictions on borrowerability to prepay their loans. Prepayment r
generally increase when interest rates fall andedse when interest rates rise. Prepayment rasesnahy be affected by other fact
including, without limitation, conditions in the tising and financial markets, governmental actiarclisas HARP and QE3), general econc
conditions and the relative interest rates on ARMd&rid ARMs and fixed-rate mortgage loans. Withprect to pastirough Agency RMB!
faster-thanexpected prepayments could also materially adweedédct our business, financial condition and hessof operations and our abil
to pay distributions to our stockholders in varieusys, including the following:
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« A portion of our passhrough Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and hybrid ARMay initially bear interest at rates that are lother
their fully indexed rates, which are equivalenthe applicable index rate plus a margin. If a ghssugh Agency RMBS backed
ARMs or hybrid ARMs is prepaid prior to or sooneafthe time of adjustment to a fuligdexed rate, we will have held that Age
RMBS while it was less profitable and lost the oppioity to receive interest at the fullgdexed rate over the remainder ol
expected life

« If we are unable to acquire new Agency RMBS toaeplthe prepaid Agency RMBS, our returns on capiay be lower than if v
were able to quickly acquire new Agency RME

When we acquire structured Agency RMBS, we antteighat the underlying mortgages will prepay at@geted rate, generating
expected yield. When the prepayment rates on th#égages underlying our structured Agency RMBS aghdr than expected, our returns
those securities may be materially adversely agfbdEor example, the value of our IOs and IIOseateemely sensitive to prepayments bec
holders of these securities do not have the rightteive any principal payments on the underlymgtgages. Therefore, if the mortgage I¢
underlying our IOs and 110s are prepaid, such sgesrwould cease to have any value, which, in,teould materially adversely affect «
business, financial condition and results of openstand our ability to pay distributions to ousdtholders.

While we seek to minimize prepayment risk, we mbeance prepayment risk against other risks andptiential returns of ea
investment. No strategy can completely insulatéars prepayment or other such risks.

A decrease in prepayment rates on the mortgagesrlyinly our Agency RMBS might decrease net inténesime or result in a net lo!
which could materially adversely affect our buss)dmancial condition and results of operationgdasur ability to pay distributions
our stockholders.

Certain of our structured Agency RMBS may be addgraffected by a decrease in prepayment ratesefample, because POs
similar to zeroeoupon bonds, our expected returns on such sesunitill be contingent on our receiving the printipayments of th
underlying mortgage loans at expected intervalsdbhaume a certain prepayment rate. If prepaynades are lower than expected, we will
receive principal payments as quickly as we ardigig and, therefore, our expected returns on teagities will be adversely affected, wh
in turn, could materially adversely affect our mgsis, financial condition and results of operatiand our ability to pay distributions to «
stockholders.

While we seek to minimize prepayment risk, we mbefance prepayment risk against other risks andptiential returns of ea
investment. No strategy can completely insulatérars prepayment or other such risks.

The U.S. Governmestpressing for refinancing of certain loans maeffprepayment rates for mortgage loans underlypingAgenc
RMBS.

In addition to the increased pressure upon resalenbrtgage loan investors and servicers to engalgess mitigation activities, the U
Government is pressing for refinancing of certaians, and this encouragement may affect prepayratd for mortgage loans underlying
Agency RMBS. To the extent these and other econataibilization or stimulus efforts are successfuiricreasing prepayment speeds
residential mortgage loans, such as those in AG&MBS, our income and operating results could lrenkd, particularly in connection w
our 10s and IIOs, which, in turn, could materiadighversely affect our business, financial conditima results of operations and our abilit
pay distributions to our stockholders.
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Interest rate caps on the ARMs and hybrid ARMs ingokur Agency RMBS may reduce our net interesgmaturing periods of risin
interest rates, which could materially adverselfeef our business, financial condition and resatoperations and our ability to p
distributions to our stockholders.

ARMs and hybrid ARMs are typically subject to peliioand lifetime interest rate caps. Periodic ies¢rate caps limit the amount
interest rate can increase during any given petiddtime interest rate caps limit the amount ateiiest rate can increase through the ma
of the loan. Our borrowings typically are not subj® similar restrictions. Accordingly, in a pedi@f rapidly increasing interest rates,
financing costs could increase without limitatiohil® caps could limit the interest we earn on tiRMs and hybrid ARMs backing our Ager
RMBS. This problem is magnified for ARMs and hybA&RMs that are not fully indexed because such piimterest rate caps prevent
coupon on the security from fully reaching the sfied rate in one reset. Further, some ARMs andridyBRMs may be subject to perio
payment caps that result in a portion of the irtiebeing deferred and added to the principal oudite. As a result, we may receive less
income on Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and hybrid ARttlan necessary to pay interest on our relatesbborgs. Interest rate caps
Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and hybrid ARMs coulduee our net interest margin if interest rates vieriecrease beyond the level of
caps, which could materially adversely affect ousibess, financial condition and results of operetiand our ability to pay distributions to
stockholders.

We rely on analytical models and other data to gmelpotential asset acquisition and disposition aspmities and to manage ¢
portfolio. Such models and other data may be inectrrmisleading or incomplete, which could causgougurchase assets that do
meet our expectations or to make asset manageraeisiahs that are not in line with our strategy.

We rely on analytical models, and information atfteo data supplied by third parties. These modaisdata may be used to value as
or potential asset acquisitions and dispositiorts @&ro in connection with our asset managementites. If our models and data prove tc
incorrect, misleading or incomplete, any decisiorgle in reliance thereon could expose us to palaigks.

Our reliance on models and data may induce us rtchpse certain assets at prices that are too tuglell certain other assets at pr
that are too low or to miss favorable opportunitdtegether. Similarly, any hedging activities tlaaé based on faulty models and data
prove to be unsuccessful.

Some models, such as prepayment models, may b&tpredn nature. The use of predictive models mderent risks. For examp
such models may incorrectly forecast future behaveading to potential losses. In addition, thedictive models used by us may di
substantially from those models used by other niapketicipants, resulting in valuations based oeséhpredictive models that may
substantially higher or lower for certain assetmtactual market prices. Furthermore, becauseqiieglimodels are usually constructed bi
on historical data supplied by third parties, thiecess of relying on such models may depend heanmilthe accuracy and reliability of -
supplied historical data, and, in the case of mtedj performance in scenarios with little or nathrical precedent (such as extreme broa
based declines in home prices, or deep economissams or depressions), such models must empéategrdegrees of extrapolation anc
therefore more speculative and less reliable.

All valuation models rely on correct market datput If incorrect market data is entered into esenellfounded valuation model, t
resulting valuations will be incorrect. However eavif market data is inputted correctly, “modelcps” will often differ substantially frot
market prices, especially for securities with comxptharacteristics or whose values are particukselysitive to various factors. If our mai
data inputs are incorrect or our model prices digigbstantially from market prices, our businessrfcial condition and results of operati
and our ability to make distributions to our stockters could be materially adversely affected.
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Valuations of some of our assets are inherenthettam, may be based on estimates, may fluctuate short periods of time and
differ from the values that would have been usedéady market for these assets existed. As dt rése values of some of our assets
uncertain.

While in many cases our determination of the failue of our assets is based on valuations provigetthirdparty dealers and prici
services, we can and do value assets based upgadmment, and such valuations may differ from ehpsovided by thirgparty dealers ar
pricing services. Valuations of certain assets aften difficult to obtain or are unreliable. In g#al, dealers and pricing services hes
disclaim their valuations. Additionally, dealers ynelaim to furnish valuations only as an accommimtiaind without special compensat
and so they may disclaim any and all liability &y direct, incidental or consequential damagesnayiout of any inaccuracy or incompletet
in valuations, including any act of negligence ogdzrh of any warranty. Depending on the complexitst illiquidity of an asset, valuations
the same asset can vary substantially from onedealpricing service to another. The valuationcpss has been particularly difficult rece
because market events have made valuations ofrcaedsets more difficult and unpredictable anddisparity of valuations provided by third-
party dealers has widened.

Our business, financial condition and results cérafions and our ability to make distributions to stockholders could be materi
adversely affected if our fair value determinatiaristhese assets were materially higher than theesathat would exist if a ready matr
existed for these assets.

An increase in interest rates may cause a decreasiee volume of newly issued, or investor demandAgency RMBS, which col
materially adversely affect our ability to acquiassets that satisfy our investment objectives amcbasiness, financial condition a
results of operations and our ability to pay distriions to our stockholders.

Rising interest rates generally reduce the demanddnsumer credit, including mortgage loans, authé higher cost of borrowing.
reduction in the volume of mortgage loans may affee volume of Agency RMBS available to us, whaduld affect our ability to acqui
assets that satisfy our investment objectivesnBisiterest rates may also cause Agency RMBS tbkat vg@sued prior to an interest rate incr
to provide yields that exceed prevailing markeeiast rates. If rising interest rates cause usetarable to acquire a sufficient volume
Agency RMBS or Agency RMBS with a yield that exceedir borrowing costs, our ability to satisfy onvéstment objectives and to gene
income and pay dividends, our business, finandatition and results of operations and our abtlitpay distributions to our stockholders r
be materially adversely affected.

Because the assets that we acquire might experipadeds of illiquidity, we might be prevented framlling our Agency RMBS
favorable times and prices, which could materiatwersely affect our business, financial conditord results of operations and ¢
ability to pay distributions to our stockholders.

Agency RMBS might experience periods of illiquiditguch conditions are more likely to occur for sttmed Agency RMBS becat
such securities are generally traded in marketshnhegs liquid than the pasisrough Agency RMBS market. As a result, we maybable ti
dispose of our Agency RMBS at advantageous timdspgices or in a timely manner. The lack of ligtiydnight result from the absence ¢
willing buyer or an established market for thessets as well as legal or contractual restrictiomgesale. The illiquidity of Agency RME
could materially adversely affect our businessarfitial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to o
stockholders.
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Our use of leverage could materially adversely @ffeur business, financial condition and resultsop€rations and our ability to p
distributions to our stockholders.

We calculate our leverage ratio by dividing ountdiabilities by total equity at the end of eadripd. Under normal market conditio
we generally expect our leverage ratio to be leaa 12 to 1, although at times our borrowings maghbove or below this level. We incur -
indebtedness by borrowing against a substantidgigpoof the market value of our paggough Agency RMBS and a portion of our structi
Agency RMBS. Our total indebtedness, however, isexpressly limited by our policies and will depeor our and our prospective lenders
estimates of the stability of our portfolotash flow. As a result, there is no limit on #meount of leverage that we may incur. We face ik
that we might not be able to meet our debt serofdgations or a lendes’margin requirements from our income and, to ttierg we cannc
we might be forced to liquidate some of our AgeiVMBS at unfavorable prices. Our use of leveragddcouaterially adversely affect ¢
business, financial condition and results of openaand our ability to pay distributions to ourcahbolders. For example:

« Our borrowings are secured by our pH#esugh Agency RMBS and a portion of our structufggency RMBS under repurchs
agreements. A decline in the market value of thesffaough Agency RMBS or structured Agency RMBS ugedecure these d¢
obligations could limit our ability to borrow orselt in lenders requiring us to pledge additior@lateral to secure our borrowings
that situation, we could be required to sell AgeRiyBS under adverse market conditions in ordertitaio the additional collatel
required by the lender. If these sales are madwieds lower than the carrying value of the AgeRiyIBS, we would experien
losses

« To the extent we are compelled to liquidate qualifyreal estate assets to repay debts, our conegliawith the REIT rules regardi
our assets and our sources of gross income coulédmetively affected, which could jeopardize oualfication as a REIT. Losing o
REIT qualification would cause us to be subjectt&. federal income tax (and any applicable statk lacal taxes) on all of o
income and would decrease profitability and casdilable for distributions to stockholde

If we experience losses as a result of our usewsrage, such losses could materially adversegctéiur business, results of operat
and financial condition and our ability to maketdisutions to our stockholders.

We may incur increased borrowing costs, which coulaterially adversely affect our business, finahaandition and results
operations and our ability to pay distributionsdar stockholders.

Our borrowing costs under repurchase agreementgeaerally adjustable and correspond to stert: interest rates, such as the Lor
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, or a shtatm U.S. Treasury index, plus or minus a marghe margins on these borrowings over or u
short-term interest rates may vary depending upamnaber of factors, including, without limitation:

« the movement of interest rates;
« the availability of financing in the market; and
« the value and liquidity of our Agency RMBS.

All of our current shorterm borrowings are collateralized borrowings ia form of repurchase agreements. If the interéssran thes
repurchase agreements increase, our businesscifiharondition and results of operations and ouilitgbto pay distributions to ot
stockholders could be materially adversely affected
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We may incur increased borrowing costs or declintogipons on our IO securities as a result of irsed levels of LIBOR resulti
from manipulation of the index by member banksamsible for fixing the index on a daily basis. Botinditions would decrease ¢
profitability and reduce our capacity to pay diswitions to our stockholders.

Most of our borrowing costs under repurchase agestsrare adjustable and correspond to dleomt-interest rates, such as LIBOR, |
or minus a margin. Additionally, many of our stuwetd securities are 110s, which typically have ammn that varies as the level of LIB!
varies. The coupon is usually the difference betwt® weighted average net coupon on the underlgioggage loans and LIBOR, &
sometimes a multiple of LIBOR. Over the past selvgears there have been episodes where membehng d&ritish Bankers Association,
entity whose members are responsible for settisgvttiue of the various LIBOR indices, including enenth LIBOR, the relevant index |
many of our repurchase agreement borrowings anaf dtle coupons on our 110s, have manipulated ¢hellof the indices. To the extent 1
practice occurs again, it could impact our borraposts or reduce our capacity to pay distributionsur stockholders.

Failure to procure adequate repurchase agreemeamdmniting, or to renew or replace existing repurchaggeement financing as
matures, could materially adversely affect our hass, financial condition and results of operatians! our ability to make distributio
to our stockholders.

We intend to maintain master repurchase agreemstitseveral counterparties. We cannot assure lyauany, or sufficient, repurchs
agreement financing will be available to us in fhure on terms that are acceptable to us. Anyimedh the value of Agency RMBS,
perceived market uncertainty about their value, ldrooake it more difficult for us to obtain finangron favorable terms or at all, or main
our compliance with the terms of any financing agements already in place. Additionally, our lesderay have owned or financed RV
that have declined in value and caused the lemdsuffer losses as a result of the recent dowrituthe residential mortgage market. If th
conditions persist, these institutions may be fdrte exit the repurchase market, become insolverfugher tighten lending standards
increase the amount of equity capital, or haircrgguired to obtain financing, and in such eveatyld make it more difficult for us to obt:
financing on favorable terms or at all. Additioiyalve may be unable to diversify the credit riskasated with our lenders. In the event
we cannot obtain sufficient funding on acceptalglens, our business, financial condition and resoft®perations and our ability to [
distributions to our stockholders may be materiattyersely effected.

Furthermore, because we intend to rely primarilysbiortierm borrowings to fund our acquisition of AgenciMBS, our ability tc
achieve our investment objective will depend ndyam our ability to borrow money in sufficient aonmts and on favorable terms, but als:
our ability to renew or replace on a continuousidbasir maturing shorerm borrowings. If we are not able to renew orlaep maturin
borrowings, we will have to sell some or all of cassets, possibly under adverse market conditionaddition, if the regulatory capi
requirements imposed on our lenders change, thgybmaequired to significantly increase the costhef financing that they provide to us. !
lenders also may revise their eligibility requirertsefor the types of assets they are willing tafice or the terms of such financings, base
among other factors, the regulatory environmenttaed management of perceived risk.
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Adverse market developments could cause our lengergquire us to pledge additional assets as tetk. If our assets we
insufficient to meet these collateral requirements, might be compelled to liquidate particular dssat inopportune times and
unfavorable prices, which could materially adveysaffect our business, financial condition and tesof operations and our ability
pay distributions to our stockholders.

Adverse market developments, including a sharprolopged rise in interest rates, a change in pneyeay rates or increasing mai
concern about the value or liquidity of one or miygges of Agency RMBS, might reduce the market @atiour portfolio, which might cau
our lenders to initiate margin calls. A margin agakans that the lender requires us to pledge additicollateral to restablish the ratio of tl
value of the collateral to the amount of the boirmy The specific collateral value to borrowingioahat would trigger a margin call is not
in the master repurchase agreements and not detmnintii we engage in a repurchase transactioeruthegtse agreements. Our fixede
Agency RMBS generally are more susceptible to nmacgils as increases in interest rates tend to megatively affect the market value
fixed-rate securities. If we are unable to satisfy mamgilts, our lenders may foreclose on our collateéFak threat or occurrence of a ma
call could force us to sell either directly or thgh a foreclosure our Agency RMBS under adversé&eta@onditions. Because of the signific
leverage we expect to have, we may incur substdontaes upon the threat or occurrence of a margilh which could materially advers:
affect our business, financial condition and reswit operations and our ability to pay distributoto our stockholders. Additionally,
liquidation of collateral may jeopardize our alyilib qualify or maintain our qualification as a RElas we must comply with requireme
regarding our assets and our sources of gross mcbme are compelled to liquidate our Agency RMB& may be unable to comply w
these requirements, ultimately jeopardizing oulitgbio qualify or maintain our qualification asREIT. Our failure to qualify as a REIT
maintain our qualification would cause us to bejetthto U.S. federal income tax (and any applicaltéde and local taxes) on all of our
taxable income.

Our use of repurchase agreements may give our tengesater rights in the event that either we oryamf our lenders file fc
bankruptcy, which may make it difficult for us &@over our collateral in the event of a bankrufiting.

Our borrowings under repurchase agreements mayfygé@l special treatment under the bankruptcy ¢ageing our lenders the abili
to avoid the automatic stay provisions of the baptay code and to take possession of and liquidatecollateral under the repurch
agreements without delay if we file for bankruptByrthermore, the special treatment of repurchgseements under the bankruptcy code
make it difficult for us to recover our pledged etssin the event that any of our lenders files Bankruptcy. Thus, the use of repurct
agreements exposes our pledged assets to risk evint of a bankruptcy filing by either our lergder us. In addition, if the lender is a brc
or dealer subject to the Securities Investor Ptmied\ct of 1970, or an insured depository instdntsubject to the Federal Deposit Insur:
Act, our ability to exercise our rights to recowrr investment under a repurchase agreement a@ tmimpensated for any damages rest
from the lender’s insolvency may be further limitegthose statutes.

If we fail to maintain our relationship with AVM,R. or if we do not establish relationships withet repurchase agreement tradi
clearing and administrative service providers, domsiness, financial condition and results of operas and our ability to pe
distributions to our stockholders could be matdyiadversely affected.

We have engaged AVM, L.P. to provide us with certa@purchase agreement trading, clearing and asirative services. If we ¢
unable to maintain our relationship with AVM, L.Br we are unable to establish successful relatipasiith other repurchase agreen
trading, clearing and administrative service previl our business, financial condition and resoftooperations and our ability to
distributions to our stockholders could be matbriativersely affected.
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If our lenders default on their obligations to réétbe Agency RMBS back to us at the end of tharodyase transaction term, or if t
value of the Agency RMBS has declined by the enideofepurchase transaction term or if we defaultaur obligations under tt
repurchase transaction, we will lose money on thesmgsactions, which, in turn, may materially adsely affect our business, financ
condition and results of operations and our abititypay distributions to our stockholders.

When we engage in a repurchase transaction, wallyisell securities to the financial institutiamder one of our master repurct
agreements in exchange for cash, and our countgiisasbligated to resell the securities to ushaténd of the term of the transaction, whic
typically from 24 to 90 days but may be up to 3&¢slor more. The cash we receive when we initelythe securities is less than the valt
those securities, which is referred to as the haitdany financial institutions from which we maltain repurchase agreement financing |
increased their haircuts in the past and may dagsin in the future. As of December 31, 2012, aairduts were approximately 5.6%
average, which means that we will be required edgé Agency RMBS the value of which equals appratéty 105.9% of the princig
amount of the borrowings. If these haircuts aregased, we will be required to post additional caskecurities as collateral for our Age
RMBS. If our counterparty defaults on its obligatim resell the securities to us, we would incloss on the transaction equal to the amou
the haircut (assuming there was no change in theeaf the securities). We would also lose moneyaaapurchase transaction if the valu
the underlying securities had declined as of the @frthe transaction term, as we would have to n&mase the securities for their initial ve
but would receive securities worth less than tmadant. Any losses we incur on our repurchase tciwses could materially adversely aff
our business, financial condition and results afragions and our ability to pay distributions ta stockholders.

If we default on one of our obligations under aurghase transaction, the counterparty can termihatéransaction and cease ente
into any other repurchase transactions with ugh&t case, we would likely need to establish aagghent repurchase facility with anot
financial institution in order to continue to leage our portfolio and carry out our investmenttstig. There is no assurance we would be
to establish a suitable replacement facility oreatable terms or at all.

Hedging against interest rate exposure may not detely insulate us from interest rate risk and ebuiaterially adversely affect ¢
business, financial condition and results of opiera and our ability to pay distributions to ouoskholders.

To the extent consistent with qualifying and maimtay our qualification as a REITwe may enter into interest rate cap or s
agreements or pursue other hedging strategiesidimg) the purchase of puts, calls or other optams futures contracts in order to hedge
interest rate risk of our portfolio. In generalrdwedging strategy depends on our view of our emgortfolio consisting of assets, liabilities .
derivative instruments, in light of prevailing matkconditions. We could misjudge the condition of mvestment portfolio or the market. (
hedging activity will vary in scope based on theeleand volatility of interest rates and principaepayments, the type of Agency RMBS
hold and other changing market conditions. Hedgiray fail to protect or could adversely affect usdiese, among other things:

« hedging can be expensive, particularly during msiof rising and volatile interest rates;

« available interest rate hedging may not correspbrettly with the interest rate risk for which pection is sought;

« the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifahe related liability;

« certain types of hedges may expose us to riskssf beyond the fee paid to initiate the hedge;

« the amount of gross income that a REIT may earm foertain hedging transactions is limited by fetlénaome tax provisior
governing REITs

« the credit quality of the counterparty on the hedgs be downgraded to such an extent that it ilspair ability to sell or assign ¢
side of the hedging transaction; &

« the counterparty in the hedging transaction magulebn its obligation to pay.
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There are no perfect hedging strategies, and stteate hedging may fail to protect us from loskeratively, we may fail to propel
assess a risk to our investment portfolio or méytderecognize a risk entirely, leaving us exposetbsses without the benefit of any offset
hedging activities. The derivative financial instrents we select may not have the effect of redusingnterest rate risk. The nature and tin
of hedging transactions may influence the effeciidss of these strategies. Poorly designed strategienproperly executed transactions c
actually increase our risk and losses. In additr@ulging activities could result in losses if tver® against which we hedge does not occur.

Because of the foregoing risks, our hedging agtieituld materially adversely affect our businegsaricial condition and results
operation and our ability to pay distributions tar stockholders.

Our use of certain hedging techniques may expose csunterparty risks.

If an interest rate swap counterparty cannot parfonder the terms of the interest rate swap, we moayeceive payments due under
swap, and thus, we may lose any unrealized gaiocided with the interest rate swap. The hedgdillitia could cease to be hedged by
interest rate swap. Additionally, we may also tis& loss of any collateral we have pledged to gour obligations under the interest rate <
if the counterparty becomes insolvent or filesdankruptcy. Similarly, if an interest rate cap cuwparty fails to perform under the terms of
interest rate cap agreement, we may not receive@ats due under that agreement that wouldeffeur interest expense and then could
a loss for the then remaining fair market valu¢hefinterest rate cap.

Hedging instruments often are not traded on regudagxchanges, guaranteed by an exchange or a otg&ouse, or regulated by ¢
U.S. or foreign governmental authorities and ineofisks and costs.

The cost of using hedging instruments increaséiseaperiod covered by the instrument increasedaridg periods of rising and volat
interest rates. We may increase our hedging agtart thus increase our hedging costs during pefidten interest rates are volatile or rit
and hedging costs have increased.

In addition, hedging instruments involve risk sirtbey often are not traded on regulated exchargesanteed by an exchange o
clearing house, or regulated by any U.S. or forgigmernmental authorities. While the recently eedddoddFrank Wall Street Reform a
Consumer Protection Act, or the DoBidank Act, among other current or proposed pie€ésgislation, may add regulatory oversight or reg
counterparty risk among market participants, litifesuch oversight currently exists. Consequeritigre are no requirements with respe
record keeping, financial responsibility or segtemaof customer funds and positions. Furthermtire enforceability of agreements underly
derivative transactions may depend on compliandk applicable statutory and commodity and otheul&gry requirements and, depenc
on the identity of the counterparty, applicablesinational requirements. The business failure bédging counterparty with whom we el
into a hedging transaction most likely will resinita default. Default by a hedging counterparty megult in the loss of unrealized profits
force us to cover our resale commitments, if ahyha then current market price. In addition, weymat always be able to dispose of or ¢
out a hedging position without the consent of thdding counterparty, and we may not be able torénte an offsetting contract to cover
risk. We cannot assure you that a liquid secondaayket will exist for hedging instruments purchasedsold, and we may be requirec
maintain a position until exercise or expirationhi@h could materially adversely affect our businefasancial condition and results
operations and our ability to pay distribution®to stockholders.

23




Our ability to achieve our investment objectivel e#@pend on our ability to manage future growtfeefively.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectived @epend on our ability to grow, which will deperid turn, on our Manages’ability
to identify and invest in securities that meet mwestment criteria. Accomplishing this result onasteffective basis largely will be a functi
of our Manages structuring and implementation of the investmpotess, its ability to provide competent, attemtwd efficient services to
and our access to financing on acceptable terms.Maunager has substantial responsibilities, andgroter to grow, needs to hire, tri
supervise and manage new employees successfulfyfaflore to manage our future growth effectivebutd have a material adverse effec
our business, financial condition and results afrafions and our ability to pay distributions ta stockholders.

We may change our investment strategy, investmedelqnes and asset allocation without notice ayckholder consent, which
result in riskier investments. In addition, our ctea provides that our Board of Directors may reeodr otherwise terminate our RE
election, without the approval of our stockholders.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to change investment strategy or asset allocation attang without notice to or conse
from our stockholders. To the extent that our itwesnt strategy changes in the future, we may makesiments that are different from,
possibly riskier than, the investments describethis annual report. A change in our investmeratsegly may increase our exposure to int
rate and real estate market fluctuations. Furthegme change in our asset allocation could resutuir allocating assets in a different mai
than as described in this annual report.

In addition, our charter provides that our Boardiafectors may revoke or otherwise terminate outTR&ection, without the appro\
of our stockholders, if it determines that it islonger in our best interests to qualify as a RHIAese changes could materially adversely ¢
our business, financial condition, results of ofiers, the market value of our common stock and ahility to make distributions to ¢
stockholders.

Competition might prevent us from acquiring AgeRiyBS at favorable yields, which could materiallweaisely affect our busine
financial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders

We operate in a highly competitive market for inmesnt opportunities. Our net income largely depesmsur ability to acquire Agen
RMBS at favorable spreads over our borrowing costsacquiring Agency RMBS, we compete with a varief institutional investor
including other REITSs, investment banking firmsyiags and loan associations, banks, insurance coegmamutual funds, other lenders
other entities that purchase Agency RMBS, many littv have greater financial, technical, marketing ather resources than we do. Se\
other REITs have recently raised, or are expedadise, significant amounts of capital, and mayehiavestment objectives that overlap \
ours, which may create additional competition foreistment opportunities. Some competitors may laal@ver cost of funds and acces
funding sources that may not be available to ushsas funding from the U.S. Government. Additiopathany of our competitors are
subject to REIT tax compliance or required to mamtan exemption from the Investment Company Attaddition, some of our competit
may have higher risk tolerances or different riskessments, which could allow them to considerdemwariety of investments. Furtherme
competition for investments in Agency RMBS may I¢lagl price of such investments to increase, whialy farther limit our ability to genere
desired returns. As a result, we may not be abéetpire sufficient Agency RMBS at favorable spseader our borrowing costs, which wo
materially adversely affect our business, financ@idition and results of operations and our abibtpay distributions to our stockholders.
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Actions of the U.S. Government for the purposealfilizing the financial markets may adversely effeur business, financial conditi
and results of operations and our ability to pagtdbutions to our stockholders.

The U.S. Government, through the Federal ResemeeUtS. Treasury, the SEC, the Federal Housing Awtnation, or the FHA, tt
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or the FIZ] other governmental and regulatory bodies teken or are considering taking vari
actions to address the recent financial crisis. &ample, on July 21, 2010, President Obama sigmedlaw the Dodd-rank Wall Stres
Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or the DoddikrAct. Many aspects of the Doditank Act are subject to rulemaking and will t
effect over several years, making it difficult totigipate the overall financial impact on us andyrengenerally, the financial services
mortgage industries. Additionally, we cannot préaibether there will be additional proposed lawsedorms that would affect us, whethe
when such changes may be adopted, how such charayebe interpreted and enforced or how such chamggsaffect us. However, the cc
of complying with any additional laws or regulationould have a material adverse effect on our kssinfinancial condition and results
operations and our ability to pay distributionoto stockholders.

In addition to the foregoing, the U.S. Congress/@ndarious state and local legislatures may endditional legislation or regulatc
action designed to address the current econonsis @i for other purposes that could have a matdizerse effect on our ability to execute
business strategies. To the extent the market doesespond favorably to these initiatives or tldeynot function as intended, our busin
financial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholdexuld be materially adversely affected.

We are an “emerging growth companyhd we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosaggirements applicable to emerging gro
companies will make our common stock less attra¢tvinvestors.

We are an “emerging growth compangs defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startgp®#2012, or the JOBS Act, and as such
are not being required to comply with the audittbestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sabaxley Act of 2012, or the Sarbanes
Oxley Act, we have reduced disclosure obligatiegarding executive compensation in our periodiorepand proxy statements, and we
exempt from the requirements of holding a nonbigdaulvisory vote on executive compensation and btder approval of any gold
parachute payments not previously approved. Althoug are an emerging growth company under the J&&Sw~e have elected to opt oul
the extended transition period for complying witanor revised accounting standards, and such efediirrevocable. We cannot predic
investors will find our shares of common stock lasisactive because we may rely on these provisibrsome investors find our shares
common stock less attractive as a result, therelveayless active trading market for our sharesoamghare price may be more volatile.

We will be subject to the requirements of the SagelsaOxley Act of 2002.
As long as we remain an emerging growth companyhasterm is defined in the JOBS Act, we will bermitted to gradually comg

with certain of the on-going reporting and discl@sabligations of public companies pursuant toShebane®©xley Act. We cannot be certi
if the reduced disclosure requirements applicablenerging growth companies will make our ordinstrgres less attractive to investors
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However, after we are no longer an emerging graethpany under the JOBS Act, management will beireduo deliver a report tk
assesses the effectiveness of our internal cordx@sfinancial reporting, pursuant to Section 80the Sarbane®©xley Act. Section 404 of tl
Sarbane®©xley Act may require our auditors to deliver atestiation report on the effectiveness of our irgkoontrols over financial reporti
in conjunction with their opinion on our auditedhdincial statements in future years. Substantiakveor our part is required to implem
appropriate processes, document the system ohaiteontrol over key processes, assess their dagigrediate any deficiencies identified
test their operation. This process is expectecetbdih costly and challenging. We cannot give asueances that material weaknesses wi
be identified in the future in connection with cecwmpliance with the provisions of Section 302 afd 4f the Sarbane®xley Act. The
existence of any material weakness described abawdd preclude a conclusion by management and wndependent auditors that
maintained effective internal control over finaddiaporting. Our management may be required to weggnificant time and expense
remediate any material weaknesses that may bewdised and may not be able to remediate any matsgakness in a timely manner. -
existence of any material weakness in our intecoaltrol over financial reporting could also resulterrors in our financial statements |
could require us to restate our financial statesyar@use us to fail to meet our reporting obligatiand cause investors to lose confidence i
reported financial information, all of which codkhd to a decline in the trading price of our comratock.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or waay materially adversely affect our business, rfaial condition and results
operations and our ability to pay distributionsdar stockholders.

We cannot assure you that there will not be furteenorist attacks against the United States or. buSinesses. These attacks or al
conflicts may directly impact the property undemyiour Agency RMBS or the securities markets inegeh Losses resulting from these ty
of events are uninsurable. More generally, anyne$é¢ events could cause consumer confidence andisgdo decrease or result in incree
volatility in the United States and worldwide firgal markets and economies. They also could résuticonomic uncertainty in the Unit
States or abroad. Adverse economic conditions coatch the value of the property underlying our AQeRMBS or the securities market:
general, which could materially adversely affect business, financial condition and results of afiens and our ability to pay distribution
our stockholders.

We are highly dependent on communications andnmdtion systems operated by third parties, and syst®ilures could significant
disrupt our business, which may, in turn, adversélgct our business, financial condition and réswolf operations and our ability to
distributions to our stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatéorg information systems that allow us to monitalue, buy, sell, finance a
hedge our investments. These systems are openatbitd parties and, as a result, we have limiteitity to ensure their continued operation
the event of a systems failure or interruption,witt have limited ability to affect the timing argliccess of systems restoration. Any failui
interruption of our systems could cause delaystleeroproblems in our securities trading activitiesluding Agency RMBS trading activitie
which could have a material adverse effect on ausiness, financial condition and results of operetiand our ability to pay distributions
our stockholders.

If we issue debt securities, our operations magelsericted and we will be exposed to additionakris

If we decide to issue debt securities in the futitrés likely that such securities will be govedhby an indenture or other instrum
containing covenants restricting our operatingifidity. Additionally, any convertible or exchandaa securities that we issue in the future
have rights, preferences and privileges more fdlerthan those of our common stock. We, and indirewr stockholders, will bear the cos
issuing and servicing such securities. Holdersetft decurities may be granted specific rights,uidicig but not limited to, the right to hol
perfected security interest in certain of our asdie right to accelerate payments due undemienture, rights to restrict dividend payme
and rights to approve the sale of assets. Suchiaadi restrictive covenants and operating restnict could have a material adverse effec
our business, financial condition and results afragions and our ability to pay distributions ta stockholders.
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Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest in Our Relaibnship with Our Manager and Bimini

The management agreement with our Manager waseggitiated on an arm’tength basis and the terms, including fees payabtéou
inability to terminate, or our election not to remgethe management agreement based on our Maragedr performance withc
paying our Manager a significant termination fegcept for a termination of the Manager with caus@y not be as favorable to us ¢
it were negotiated with an unaffiliated third party

The management agreement with our Manager was intggbbetween related parties, and we did not llaeédenefit of arm’dengtt
negotiations of the type normally conducted with waraffiliated third party. The terms of the managemagreement with our Manag
including fees payable and our inability to terntéeor our election not to renew, the managemerdgeagent based on our Managepoo
performance without paying our Manager a signifidenmination fee, except for a termination of Manager with cause, may not reflect
terms we may have received if it was negotiatedh wit unrelated third party. In addition, as a rtesfithe relationship with our Manager,
may choose not to enforce, or to enforce less wiggly, our rights under the management agreemearstulse of our desire to maintain
ongoing relationship with our Manager.

We have no employees, and our Manager is respengibimaking all of our investment decisions. Nofieur or our Manages officer:
are required to devote any specific amount of timeur business, and each of them may provide #egivices to Bimini, which cot
result in conflicts of interest.

Our Manager is responsible for making all of owestments. We do not have any employees, and weaangletely reliant on o
Manager to provide us with investment advisory e, Each of our and our Managedfficers is an employee of Bimini and none ofm
will devote their time to us exclusively. Each ofebsérs. Cauley and Haas, who will be the initial lersa of our Manages’ investmer
committee, is an officer of Bimini and has sigrdfit responsibilities to Bimini. Due to the fact ttteach of our officers is responsible
providing services to Bimini, they may not devotdfisient time to the management of our businessrafions. At times when there
turbulent conditions in the mortgage markets otress in the credit markets or other times whenwilleneed focused support and assist:
from our executive officers and our Manager, Bimamd its affiliates will likewise require greataycfis and attention from them. In s
situations, we may not receive the level of suppadt assistance that we otherwise would likely raeeived if we were internally manage!
if such executives were not otherwise committedrtavide support to Bimini.

We expect our Board of Directors to adopt investingeridelines that will require that any investmamansaction between us and Bin
or any affiliate of Bimini receives the prior apped of a majority of our independent directors. S€ur Manager and the Managen
Agreement — Conflicts of Interest; Equitable Alltioa of Opportunities.’However, this policy will not eliminate the contfigcof interest thi
our officers will face in making investment decissoon behalf of Bimini and us. Further, we do netéany agreement or understanding
Bimini that would give us any priority over Bimior any of its affiliates. Accordingly, we may contpdor access to the benefits that we ex
our relationship with our Manager and Bimini to yide.

We are completely dependent upon our Manager artdinegkey personnel of Bimini who provide servitesis through the managem
agreement, and we may not find suitable replacesnfemtour Manager and these personnel if the manege agreement is termina
or such key personnel are no longer available to us

We are completely dependent on our Manager to adgralur operations pursuant to the management agreiBecause we do not hi
any employees or separate facilities, we are rebanour Manager to provide us with the personsetyices and resources necessary to
out our day-today operations. Our management agreement doegaquiteé our Manager to dedicate specific persormelur operations or
specific amount of time to our business. Additibnabecause we will be affiliated with Bimini, weay be negatively impacted by an ever
factors, including ongoing and potential legal gedings against Bimini and its subsidiaries, tlegfatively impacts or could negatively imf
Bimini’s business or financial condition.
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After the initial term of the management agreemetiich expires on February 20, 2016, or upon thgration of any automatic renev
term, our Manager may elect not to renew the mamagée agreement without cause, and without penaityl80-daysprior written notice t
us. If we elect not to renew the management agreemi¢hout cause, we would have to pay a termimatée equal to three times the ave
annual management fee earned by our Manager dtimngrior 24month period immediately preceding the most regeritimpleted calend
quarter prior to the effective date of terminati@uring the term of the management agreement andwio years after its expiration
termination, we may not, without the consent of Manager, employ any employee of the Manager orddnts affiliates or any person w
has been employed by our Manager or any of ita#fs at any time within the twyear period immediately preceding the date on wkie
person commences employment with us. We do not hetemtion agreements with any of our officers. Wadieve that the success
implementation of our investment and financing tegées depends to a significant extent upon themapce of Biminis executive officer
None of these individug' continued service is guaranteed. If the managemgmement is terminated or these individuals leBiv&ni, we
may be unable to execute our business plan.

Legal proceedings involving Bimini and certain ¢ subsidiaries have adversely affected Bimini, meaterially adversely affe
Bimini's and our Manages ability to effectively manage our business andldcanaterially adversely affect our reputation, iness
operations, financial condition and results of ogtgwns and our ability to pay distributions to ostockholders.

Bimini and its subsidiaries are currently subjectértain ongoing legal proceedings and could Iestito further legal proceedings
the future. Most of these legal proceedings arige af the mortgage-related operations of Bingnihortgage origination subsidiary t
discontinued operations in 2007. In the past, Biraimd certain of its subsidiaries have been suliesimilar actions, including proceedil
alleging violations of the federal securities laavsl for breach of duty arising from the sale otaiermortgageelated securities, which he
now been satisfactorily resolved. Bimini and itbsidiaries could be subject to similar actionshia future.

We are externally managed and advised by our Mamagsuant to the terms of a Management AgreenBatause our officers are a
officers of Bimini and our Manager, any legal predmgs or regulatory inquiries involving Bimini our Manager, whether meritorious or |
may divert the time and attention of our Managet e@rtain of its key personnel from us and our §tweent strategy and may negatively al
Bimini' s business, operations and financial conditioraddition, due to our relationship with Bimini andraManager, such events could re
in a material adverse effect on our reputationjriass, financial condition and results of operatiand our ability to pay distributions to
stockholders. Furthermore, if these legal procegslimere to result in a bankruptcy of Bimini or danager, we would not be able to termil
the Management Agreement until 30 days after weigeowritten notice of termination to our Manageacould experience difficulty
finding another manager or hiring personnel to emhaur business. Alternatively, a bankruptcy caatld prevent us from exercising s
termination rights, regardless of the provisionshef management agreement.

We, Bimini and other accounts managed by our Managay compete for opportunities to acquire assetisich are allocated i
accordance with the Investment Allocation Agreerbgrand among Bimini, our Manager and us.

From time to time Bimini make seek to purchaseifeelf the same or similar assets that our Manageks to purchase for us, or
Manager may seek to purchase the same or simsatsafor us as it does for other accounts thatlmayanaged by our Manager in the ful
In such an instance, our Manager has no duty twatk such opportunities in a manner that prefagnfavors us. Bimini and our Manag
make available to us opportunities to acquire asett they determine, in their reasonable and daitld judgment, based on our objecti
policies and strategies, and other relevant facaesappropriate for us in accordance with thestment Allocation Agreement.
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Because many of our targeted assets are typicadijadle only in specified quantities and becauseynof our targeted assets are
targeted assets for Bimini and may be targetedsafmeother accounts our Manager may manage ifutiiee, neither Bimini nor our Manag
may be able to buy as much of any given assetopsresl to satisfy the needs of Bimini, us and athepaccount our Manager may manag
the future. In these cases, the Investment Allocafigreement will require the allocation of suclkets to multiple accounts in proportior
their needs and available capital. The InvestmelidcAtion Agreement will permit departure from suptoportional allocation when
allocating purchases of whopmol Agency RMBS, because those securities cammadivided into multiple parts to be allocated amweagou:
accounts, and (ii) such allocation would resulaiminefficiently small amount of the security beijmgrchased for an account. In that case
Investment Allocation Agreement allows for a pratbaef allocating assets so that, on an overalldya&sich account is treated equitably.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshiwith our Manager and Bimini, which could resultdecisions that are not in the t
interests of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising ofiour relationship with Bimini and our Managerll Af our executive officers a
employees of Bimini. As a result, our officers nteve conflicts between their duties to us and ttheiies to Bimini or our Manager.

We may acquire or sell assets in which Bimini erdffiliates have or may have an interest. SimyjilaBimini or its affiliates may acqui
or sell assets in which we have or may have armraste Although such acquisitions or dispositionsynpaesent conflicts of interest, -
nonetheless may pursue and consummate such triansaddditionally, we may engage in transactioireally with Bimini or its affiliates
including the purchase and sale of all or a portiba portfolio asset.

Acquisitions made for entities with similar objess may be different from those made on our beliithini may have economr
interests in or other relationships with othersavinose obligations or securities we may acquirgpdrticular, such persons may make ar
hold an investment in securities that we acquieg thay be pari passu, senior or junior in rankim@ur interest in the securities or in wr
partners, security holders, officers, directorsgrag or employees of such persons serve on thel lndatirectors or otherwise have ongc
relationships. Each of such ownership and otheaticgiships may result in securities laws restrition transactions in such securities
otherwise create conflicts of interest. In suchi@anses, our Manager may, in its sole discretiorkewracommendations and decisions regal
such securities for other entities that may bestirae as or different from those made for us wisipeet to such securities and may take ac
(or omit to take actions) in the context of thetieeo economic interests or relationships that meetconsequences adverse to our interests.

The officers of Bimini and our Manager devote aximtime to us as Bimini and our Manager deem apjatep However, these office
may have conflicts in allocating their time andvésgs among us, Bimini and our Manager. During tileht conditions in the mortga
industry, distress in the credit markets or otlieres when we will need focused support and assistéiom our Manager’'s and Bimisi’
employees, Bimini and other entities for which ddanager may serve as a manager in the future ikéise require greater focus ¢
attention, placing our Manager’s and Bim@iesources in high demand. In such situationsmag not receive the necessary support
assistance we require or would otherwise receiweifvere internally managed.

We, directly or through Bimini or our Manager, malytain confidential information about the compardesecurities in which we ha
invested or may invest. If we possess confidemtifrmation about such companies or securitiesietimeay be restrictions on our ability
dispose of, increase the amount of, or otherwike &ction with respect to the securities of sucmganies. Our Manager’'management
other accounts could create a conflict of intetesthe extent our Manager or Bimini is aware of enial nonpublic information concernir
potential investment decisions. We have implementedpliance procedures and practices designedsiarerthat investment decisions are
made while in possession of material mamlic information. We cannot assure you, howeteat these procedures and practices wi
effective. In addition, this conflict and these gedures and practices may limit the freedom of Manager to make potentially profita
investments, which could have an adverse effecoumoperations. These limitations imposed by actessonfidential information cou
therefore materially adversely affect our busindsgncial condition and results of operations anuot ability to make distributions to ¢
stockholders.
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John B. Van Heuvelen, one of our independent directowns shares of common stock of Bimini. Mr. Bguour Chief Executiv
Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors,caéerves as Chief Executive Officer and ChairmathefBoard of Directors of Bimini a
owns shares of common stock of Bimini. Mr. Haag, ©hief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Office&ecretary and a member of our B¢
of Directors, also serves as the Chief Financidic®f, Chief Investment Officer and Treasurer ofmBii and owns shares of common stoc
Bimini. Accordingly, Messrs. Van Heuvelen, CauleydaHaas may have a conflict of interest with respe@ctions by our Board of Direct
that relate to Bimini or our Manager.

As of February 20, 2013, Bimini owns 29.38% of outstanding shares of common stock. In evaluatpgpdunities for us and otf
management strategies, this may lead our Managemfzhasize certain asset acquisition, disposittom@anagement objectives over oth
such as balancing risk or capital preservationabjes against return objectives. This could insesthe risks or decrease the returns of
investment.

If we elect to not renew the management agreemiémbwt cause, we would be required to pay our Maamag substantial terminatic
fee. These and other provisions in our managemgneieanent make non-renewal of our management agreatificult and costly.

Electing not to renew the management agreemenbutittause would be difficult and costly for us. Mihe consent of the majority
our independent directors, we may elect not toweaer management agreement after the initial tefrthe@ management agreement, wi
expires on February 20, 2016, or upon the expmatioany automatic renewal term, both upon 180-dpsisr written notice. If we elect to r
renew the agreement because of a decision by candBi Directors that the management fee is unéair,Manager has the right to renego
a mutually agreeable management fee. If we eleabtaenew the management agreement without cagsare required to pay our Manag
termination fee equal to three times the averagei@mmanagement fee earned by our Manager dura@ribr 24month period immediate
preceding the most recently completed calendartgugrior to the effective date of termination. $berovisions may increase the effec
cost to us of electing to not renew the manageragrtement, thereby adversely affecting our indlimato end our relationship with ¢
Manager even if we believe our Manager's perforredaainsatisfactory.

Our Manager’'s management fee is payable regardiéssir performance.

Our Manager is entitled to receive a managemenfréee us that is based on the amount of our eqaisydefined in the managem
agreement), regardless of the performance of astment portfolio. For example, we would pay owardger a management fee for a spe
period even if we experienced a net loss duringsttree period. Our Manager’s entitlement to subisifambnperformancéased compensati
may reduce its incentive to devote sufficient tiamed effort to seeking investments that provideaative riskadjusted returns for o
investment portfolio. This in turn could materialiggversely affect our business, financial conditiml results of operations and our abilit
make distributions to our stockholders.
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Our Manager will not be liable to us for any actsamissions performed in accordance with the mansgg agreement, including w
respect to the performance of our investments.

Our Manager has not assumed any responsibilityr atfza to render the services called for undemtlamagement agreement in g
faith and is not responsible for any action of Board of Directors in following or declining to folv its advice or recommendations, incluc
as set forth in the investment guidelines. Our Mgnand its affiliates, and the directors, officenmployees, members and stockholders ¢
Manager and its affiliates, will not be liable ts, wur Board of Directors or our stockholders fioy acts or omissions performed in accord:
with and pursuant to the management agreementpekgeeason of acts constituting bad faith, williiisconduct, gross negligence or reck
disregard of their respective duties under the mement agreement. We have agreed to indemnify camalgler and its affiliates, and
directors, officers, employees, members and stddkin® of our Manager and its affiliates, with respt all expenses, losses, dame
liabilities, demands, charges and claims in respéair arising from any acts or omissions of ourridger, its affiliates, and the direct
officers, employees, members and stockholders oManager and its affiliates, performed in goodhainder the management agreemen
not constituting bad faith, willful misconduct, g negligence, or reckless disregard of their e duties. Therefore, you will have
recourse against our Manager with respect to thfleqeance of investments made in accordance wiégmtanagement agreement.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Investing in our common stock may involve a higirele of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursimrent objectives may result in a high amount sk when compared to alternal
investment options and volatility or loss of pripai. Our investments may be highly speculative aygressive, and therefore an investme
our common stock may not be suitable for someorie kviver risk tolerance.

There may not be an active market for our commockstwhich may cause our common stock to tradeddé@unt and make it diffic
to sell the common stock you purchase.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE MKT under sgmbol “ORC."Trading on the NYSE MKT does not ensure that thes will
be an actual market for our common stock. Accodglingo assurance can be given as to:

« the likelihood that an actual market for our comnstock will develop, or be continued once developed
« the liquidity of any such market;

« the ability of any holder to sell shares of our coom stock; or

« the prices that may be obtained for our commorkstoc

We have not established a minimum distribution ptntevel, and we cannot assure you of our abttitynake distributions to o
stockholders in the future.

We intend to make monthly distributions to our &tomders in amounts such that we distribute aiudrstantially all of our REIT taxal
income in each year, subject to certain adjustméfs have not established a minimum distributiognpant level, and our ability to ma
distributions might be harmed by the risk factoesatibed in this prospectus. All distributions Wik made at the discretion of our Boar
Directors out of funds legally available therefordawill depend on our earnings, our financial cdiodi qualifying and maintaining o
qualification as a REIT and such other factorswrsBward of Directors may deem relevant from timéime. We cannot assure you that we
have the ability to make distributions to our stoaklers in the future. To the extent that we detidpay distributions from the proceeds
securities offerings, such distributions would gatig be considered a return of capital for U.2ldi@l income tax purposes. A return of ca
reduces the basis of a stockholder’s investmeatiircommon stock to the extent of such basis atr@aded as capital gain thereafter.
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Future offerings of debt securities, which wouldskeaior to our common stock upon liquidation, ouiggsecurities, which would dilt
our existing stockholders and may be senior to@mmon stock for the purposes of distributions, heayn the value of our comrr
stock.

In the future, we may attempt to increase our eapésources by making additional offerings of debtequity securities, includil
commercial paper, mediuterm notes, senior or subordinated notes and dasispreferred stock or common stock, as well agamés t
purchase shares of common stock or convertiblepest stock. Upon the liquidation of the Comparoldars of our debt securities and sh
of preferred stock and lenders with respect to robwerowings will receive a distribution of our akedle assets prior to the holders of
common stock. Additional equity offerings by us nahilyte the holdings of our existing stockholderseduce the market value of our comr
stock, or both. Our preferred stock, if issued, ldchave a preference on distributions that coutdtliour ability to make distributions to t
holders of our common stock. Furthermore, our BoafrdDirectors may, without stockholder approval,esnth our charter to increase
aggregate number of our shares or the number oéslod any class or series that we have the atyhorissue, and to classify or reclassify
unissued shares of common stock or preferred s®®ekause our decision to issue securities in atyrduoffering will depend on marl
conditions and other factors beyond our control, agganot predict or estimate the amount, timing ature of our future offerings. C
stockholders are therefore subject to the riskuffature securities offerings reducing the magkaéte of our common stock and diluting tt
common stock.

The market value of our common stock may be velatil

The market value of shares of our common stock b@alyased primarily upon current and expected futash dividends, and the mai
price of shares of our common stock will be infloed by the dividends on those shares relative tdkehanterest rates. Rising interest r:
may lead potential buyers of our common stock feeek a higher dividend rate, which could adverséfgct the market price of shares of
common stock. As a result, the market price ofammmon stock may be highly volatile and subjeatide price fluctuations. In addition, 1
trading volume in our common stock may fluctuate aause significant price variations to occur. Sah¢he factors that could negativ
affect the share price or trading volume of our o@m stock include:

« actual or anticipated variations in our operatiegults or distributions;

« changes in our earnings estimates or publicatioesd#arch reports about us or the real estateegradty finance industry;
« increases in market interest rates that lead pserkaf our common stock to expect a higher divddgeld;

« changes in market valuations of similar companies;

« adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdme incur in the future;

« a change in our Manager or additions or departfr&ey management personnel;

« actions by institutional stockholders;

« speculation in the press or investment communiiy; a

« general market and economic conditions.

We cannot make any assurances that the marketqfraag common stock will not fluctuate or declisignificantly in the future.

Broad market fluctuations could harm the marketemf our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extreme pricevaiume fluctuations in the past that have affedieel market price of mal
companies’ stock in industries similar or relatedtirs and that have been unrelated to these coespaperating performances. These bi
market fluctuations could occur again and coulducedthe market price of our common stock. Furtheemour operating results and prosp

may be below the expectations of public market y@taland investors or may be lower than those afpamies with comparable mar
capitalizations, which could harm the market po€eur common stock.
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Shares of our common stock eligible for future sady harm our share price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf shares of our common stock, or the avaitghili shares for future sales, on
market price of our common stock. Sales of substhamounts of these shares of our common stockyeperception that these sales ¢
occur, may harm prevailing market prices for oumomon stock. The 2013 Equity Incentive Plan proviftesgrants of up to an aggregate
10% of the issued and outstanding shares of oummmmstock (on a fully diluted basis) at the timetloé award, subject to a maxim
aggregate number of shares of common stock thathedgsued under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plaa, 000,000 shares of common st
Bimini currently owns 981,665 shares of our comrstwtk. If Bimini sells a large number of our setias in the public market, the sale cc
reduce the market price of our common stock andddmwpede our ability to raise future capital.

You should not rely on loakp agreements in connection with the public offgrf our common stock to limit the amount of con
stock sold into the market.

We and each of our Manager, our directors and eixecafficers and Bimini have agreed that, untilgust 13, 2013, without the pr
written consent of Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Ince, and they will not sell, dispose of or hedge amgras of our common stock, subjec
certain exceptions and extensions in certain cistances.

There are no present agreements between Ladenbaigndnn & Co. Inc. and any of Bimini, our Managaur directors, our executi
officers or us to release any of them or us froeséhlockup agreements. However, we cannot predict the mistances or timing under wh
Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. may waive these i@gins. These sales or a perception that thess sahy occur could reduce the ma
price of our common stock.

An increase in market interest rates may cause mahdecrease in the market price of our commimcls

One of the factors that investors may considereiciding whether to buy or sell shares of our commsitmek is our distribution rate a
percentage of our share price relative to markietrést rates. If the market price of our commortlste based primarily on the earnings
return that we derive from our investments and imeowith respect to our investments and our reldisttibutions to stockholders, and
from the market value of the investments themseltresn interest rate fluctuations and capital madomditions ardikely to adversely affe
the market price of our common stock. For instaticearket rates rise without an increase in owtridbution rate, the market price of
common stock could decrease as potential investagsrequire a higher distribution yield on our coomstock or seek other securities pa
higher distributions or interest. In addition, migiinterest rates would result in increased inteegpense on our variable rate debt, the
reducing cash flow and our ability to service muebtedness and pay distributions.
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Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Loss of our exemption from regulation under theshtinent Company Act would negatively affect theevaf shares of our comm
stock and our ability to pay distributions to odoskholders.

We have operated and intend to continue to operatéusiness so as to be exempt from registratioleiuthe Investment Company #
because we arepfimarily engaged in the business of purchasingtberwise acquiring mortgages and other liens ah iaterests in re
estate."Specifically, we invest and intend to continuenoeist so that at least 55% of the assets that weamwan unconsolidated basis cor
of qualifying mortgages and other liens and inter@sreal estate, which are collectively refeneas “qualifying real estate assetarid so th:
at least 80% of the assets we own on an unconsadidesis consist of real estagtated assets (including our qualifying real estasets). W
treat Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae wholg- residential mortgage passough securities issued with respect to an upite
pool of mortgage loans in which we hold all of ttetificates issued by the pool as qualifying essthte assets based onawion letters issut
by the SEC. To the extent that the SEC publishes oredifferent guidance with respect to these mafteve may fail to qualify for th
exemption.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept el@dg. 1C-29778; File No. SW7-341, Companies Engaged in the Busines
Acquiring Mortgages and Mortgadrelated Instruments) pursuant to which it is rewigawhether certain companies that invest in RMBE
rely on the exemption from registration under Set8(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act (sushuga) should continue to be allowel
rely on such exemption from registration.

If we fail to qualify for this exemption, we coulg required to restructure our activities in a nearthat, or at a time when, we would
otherwise choose to do so, which could negativéfigcathe value of shares of our common stock amdatility to distribute dividends. F
example, if the market value of our investment€MOs or structured Agency RMBS, neither of whick qualifying real estate assets, wel
increase by an amount that resulted in less th&& &our assets being invested in pssugh Agency RMBS, we might have to sell CMO
structured Agency RMBS in order to maintain ourragéon from the Investment Company Act. The saleld¢@ccur during adverse mar
conditions, and we could be forced to accept aefdr@ow that which we believe is acceptable.

Alternatively, if we fail to qualify for this exentipn, we may have to register under the Investn@arhpany Act and we could beca
subject to substantial regulation with respectubaapital structure (including our ability to usgerage), management, operations, transax
with affiliated persons (as defined in the Investin@ompany Act), portfolio composition, includingstrictions with respect to diversificat
and industry concentration, and other matters.

We may be required at times to adopt less efficrapthods of financing certain of our securitiesgd ave may be precluded frc
acquiring certain types of higher yielding secestiThe net effect of these factors would be teelowur net interest income. If we fail to qua
for an exemption from registration as an investmeamhpany or an exclusion from the definition ofiamestment company, our ability to |
leverage would be substantially reduced, and weldwoot be able to conduct our business as descitbtds prospectus. Our business wil
materially and adversely affected if we fail to tiiysfor and maintain an exemption from regulatipmrsuant to the Investment Company Act.
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Failure to obtain and maintain an exemption fromnigeregulated as a commodity pool operator couldhjsct us to addition:
regulation and compliance requirements and mayltésiines and other penalties which could mathyiadversely affect our busine
and financial condition.

The Dodd-Frank Act established a comprehensive negulatory framework for derivative contracts conmiyoreferred to as “swaps.”

As a result, any investment fund that trades inpswaay be considered a “commodity po@iHiich would cause its operators (in some case
fund’s directors) to be regulated as “commaodity Ipmgerators,”or CPOs. Under new rules adopted by the U.S. Contynédtures Tradin
Commission, or the CFTC, those funds that becormenuadity pools solely because of their use of swapst register with the Natior
Futures Association, or the NFA. Registration regglicompliance with the CFTC’s regulations and Ni\'s rules with respect to cap
raising, disclosure, reporting, recordkeeping attteiobusiness conduct. However, the CFI Oivision of Swap Dealer and Intermedi
Oversight recently issued a aation letter saying, although it believes that tyage REITs are properly considered commodity paoigoulc
not recommend that the CFTC take enforcement aeijainst the operator of a mortgage REIT who do¢segister as a CPO if, among o!
things, the mortgage REIT limits the initial margind premiums required to establish its swapsréstand other commodity interest posit|
to not more than five percent (5%) of its totaleissthe mortgage REIT limits the net income detiganually from those commaodity intel
positions which are not qualifying hedging trangat to less than five percent (5%) of its grogoime and interests in the mortgage REI1
not marketed to the public as or in a commodityl pomtherwise as or in a vehicle for trading ie tommodity futures, commodity options
swaps markets.

We use hedging instruments in conjunction with imwestment portfolio and related borrowings to malwr mitigate risks associa
with changes in interest rates, mortgage spreaelsl gurve shapes and market volatility. These eglinstruments include interest rate sw
interest rate futures and options on interestftatees. We do not currently engage in any spemgaterivatives activities or other ndredging
transactions using swaps, futures or options aurést We do not use these instruments for the garpbtrading in commodity interests, .
we do not consider our company or its operationse@a commodity pool as to which CPO registratiorampliance is required. We hg
claimed the relief afforded by the above-describeeaction letter. Consequently, we will be restrictedoperating within the paramet
discussed in the no-action letter and will not einito hedging transactions covered by theaatien letter if they would cause us to exceel
limits set forth in the no-action letter. Howevtrere can be no assurance that the CFTC will atpatewe are entitled to the rawtion lette
relief claimed.

The CFTC has substantial enforcement power witheesto violations of the laws over which it hasgdiction, including their anti-
fraud and anti-manipulation provisions. For exampgie CFTC may suspend or revoke the registratfoor the noaction relief afforded to
person who fails to comply with commodities lawd aegulations, prohibit such a person from tradimgdoing business with registe
entities, impose civil money penalties, requirdireion and seek fines or imprisonment for crimin#lations. In the event that the CF
asserts that we are not entitled to theanten letter relief claimed, we may be obligatedurnish additional disclosures and reports, ar
other things. Further, a private right of actionséxagainst those who violate the laws over withehCFTC has jurisdiction or who willful
aid, abet, counsel, induce or procure a violatibrihose laws. In the event that we fail to complithwstatutory requirements relating
derivatives or with the CFTC's rules thereundecuding the noaction letter described above, we may be subjesigtuificant fines, penalti
and other civil or governmental actions or procegdj any of which could have a materially advefSeceon our business, financial condit
and results of operations.
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Our ownership limitations and certain other prowaiss of applicable law and our charter and bylawsymestrict business combinati
opportunities that would otherwise be favorable@tw stockholders.

Our charter and bylaws and Maryland law contairvigions that may delay, defer or prevent a changmntrol or other transaction t
might involve a premium price for our common stackotherwise be in the best interests of our stolddrs, including business combina
provisions, supermajority vote and cause requirésér removal of directors, provisions that vadasoon our Board of Directors may
filled only by the remaining directors, for thelftdrm of the directorship in which the vacancy wurted, the power of our Board of Director:
increase or decrease the aggregate number of agtiahares of stock or the number of shares ofctags or series of stock, to cause
issue additional shares of stock of any class besand to fix the terms of one or more classesedes of stock without stockholder apprc
the restrictions on ownership and transfer of eocksand advance notice requirements for direcboninations and stockholder proposals.

To assist us in qualifying as a REIT, among otheppses, ownership of our stock by any person geahierally be limited to 9.8%
value or number of shares, whichever is more ctste, of any class or series of our stock, exd¢kat Bimini may own up to 35.0% of ¢
common stock so long as Bimini continues to quadifya REIT. Additionally, our charter will prohibldeneficial or constructive ownershig
our stock that would otherwise result in our fagluo qualify as a REIT. The ownership rules in obarter are complex and may cause
outstanding stock owned by a group of related iiddizls or entities to be deemed to be owned byindieidual or entity. As a result, the
ownership rules could cause an individual or entityunintentionally own shares beneficially or doastively in excess of our owners
limits. Any attempt to own or transfer shares of oammon stock or preferred stock in excess ofavership limits without the consent
our Board of Directors will result in such sharesnlg transferred to a charitable trust. These giorms may inhibit market activity and
resulting opportunity for our stockholders to reeea premium for their stock that might otherwiséseif any person were to attempt
assemble a block of shares of our stock in excefeecmumber of shares permitted under our charidrthat may be in the best interests o
security holders.

Our Board of Directors may, without stockholder mgyal, amend our charter to increase or decreasagdbregate number of our shi
or the number of shares of any class or seriesvikabave the authority to issue and to classifyestassify any unissued shares of com
stock or preferred stock, and set the prefereniggits and other terms of the classified or red@ssshares. As a result, our Board of Direc
may take actions with respect to our common stacgreferred stock that may have the effect of dagyr preventing a change in cont
including transactions at a premium over the mapkiee of our shares, even if stockholders belithat a change in control is in their inter
These provisions, along with the restrictions onnerghip and transfer contained in our charter agdaim provisions of Maryland le
described below, could discourage unsolicited asitijoim proposals or make it more difficult for arthparty to gain control of us, which co
adversely affect the market price of our securities

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders tkdaction against our directors and officers amitied, which could limit your recour
in the event of actions not in your best interests.

Our charter limits the liability of our directorsic officers to us and our stockholders for monemalges, except for liability resulti
from:

« actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services; or

« a final judgment based upon a finding of active detiberate dishonesty by the director or offideattwas material to the cause
action adjudicatec
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We have entered into indemnification agreementé wiir directors and executive officers that obkgas to indemnify them to t
maximum extent permitted by Maryland law. In adwfiti our charter authorizes the Company to obligatdf to indemnify our present a
former directors and officers for actions takentbgm in those and other capacities to the maximui®né permitted by Maryland law. C
bylaws require us, to the maximum extent permiktgdiaryland law, to indemnify each present and farmalirector or officer in the defense
any proceeding to which he or she is made, or tbnea to be made, a party by reason of his or &etice to us. In addition, we may
obligated to advance the defense costs incurrezlibglirectors and officers. As a result, we andsiackholders may have more limited rig
against our directors and officers than might otlise exist absent the provisions in our chartelawy and indemnification agreements or
might exist with other companies.

Certain provisions of Maryland law could inhibitahges in control.

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corporataw, or the MGCL, may have the effect of inhitig a third party from making
proposal to acquire us or impeding a change ofrobaohder circumstances that otherwise could prvidr stockholders with the opportut
to realize a premium over the then-prevailing magkeEe of our common stock, including:

« “business combination” provisions that, subjectitoitations, prohibit certain business combinatidetween us and arintereste
stockholder” (lefined generally as any person who beneficially®@0% or more of the voting power of our outstagdioting stoc
or an affiliate or associate of ours who, at amyetiwithin the twoyear period immediately prior to the date in quaestiwas th
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powéour theneutstanding stock) or an affiliate of an interesséatkholder for fiv
years after the most recent date on which the Bdkr became an interested stockholder, and titereaquire two supermajor|
stockholder votes to approve any such combinatiad

« “control share” provisions that provide that a heldf “control sharesdf the Company (defined as voting shares of stogichy whel
aggregated with all other shares of stock ownedhleyacquiror or in respect of which the acquironlide to exercise or direct 1
exercise of voting power (except solely by virtdeaevocable proxy), entitle the acquiror to ex@®ne of three increasing range
voting power in electing directors) acquired incaritrol share acquisitiontéfined as the direct or indirect acquisition ofn@nship o
control of issued and outstanding “control sharssijject to certain exceptions) generally has néngotights with respect to t
control shares except to the extent approved bystmokholders by the affirmative vote of tilirds of all the votes entitled to be ¢
on the matter, excluding all interested sha

We will elect to opteut of these provisions of the MGCL, in the cas¢hefbusiness combination provisions, by resolutibaur Boar:
of Directors (provided that such business combamais first approved by our Board of Directors,liming a majority of our directors who i
not affiliates or associates of such person), anithé case of the control share provisions, puitsieaa provision in our bylaws. However,
Board of Directors may by resolution elect to rdpka foregoing optut from the business combination provisions ofM@&CL, and we ma
by amendment to our bylaws, opt in to the conthalre provisions of the MGCL in the future.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regeyathanges that could reduce the market priceuofommmon stock.

At any time, laws or regulations, or the adminibte@interpretations of those laws or regulatiahst impact our business and Maryl
corporations may be amended. In addition, the ntafike RMBS and derivatives, including intereseratvaps, have been the subject of int
scrutiny in recent months. We cannot predict wheif any new law, regulation or administrative irgeetation, or any amendment to
existing law, regulation or administrative interat@on, will be adopted or promulgated or will bewm effective. Additionally, revisions to the
laws, regulations or administrative interpretatioosild cause us to change our investments. We dmulthaterially adversely affected by
such change to any existing, or any new, law, @@ or administrative interpretation, which couddiuce the market price of our comr
stock.
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U.S. Federal Income Tax Risks
Your investment has various U.S. federal incomeisks.

This summary of certain tax risks is limited to tteeleral tax risks addressed below. Additionalgisk issues may exist that are
addressed in this Form ¥0and that could affect the federal tax treatménisoor our stockholders. This is not intendeti¢oused and cant
be used by any stockholder to avoid penaltiesrtieat be imposed on stockholders under the IntereaERue Code (the “Code’\Ve stronglh
urge you to seek advice based on your particutaugistances from an independent tax advisor coimgethe effects of federal, state and I
income tax law on an investment in common stockamglour individual tax situation.

Our failure to qualify or maintain our qualificatioas a REIT would subject us to U.S. federal inctamgwhich could adversely aff
the value of the shares of our common stock anddwsubstantially reduce the cash available for ilsttion to our stockholders.

We believe that we will be organized in conformitith the requirements for qualification as a REIidar the Code, and we intenc
operate in a manner that will enable us to meetdtjairements for qualification and taxation asEdTRcommencing with our short taxable y
ending December 31, 2013. However, we cannot aggurghat we will qualify and remain qualified asR&IT. Moreover, our qualificatic
and taxation as a REIT will depend upon our abtlitymeet on a continuing basis, through actual ahoperating results, certain qualificat
tests set forth in the U.S. federal tax laws. Adoagly, given the complex nature of the rules goueg REITs, the ongoing importance
factual determinations, including the potential taeatment of investments we make, and the po#gibil future changes in our circumstan:
no assurance can be given that our actual redubisevations for any particular taxable year watisfy such requirements.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any calendar yeae would be required to pay U.S. federal incame(and any applicable state
local tax), including any applicable alternativenimum tax, on our taxable income at regular corgorates, and dividends paid to
stockholders would not be deductible by us in cotinguour taxable income. Further, if we fail to tifyaas a REIT, we might need to borr
money or sell assets in order to pay any resulinxg Our payment of income tax would decrease theuat of our income available -
distribution to our stockholders. Furthermore, i ¥ail to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we longer would be required under U
federal tax laws to distribute substantially allafr REIT taxable income to our stockholders. Uslear failure to qualify as a REIT w
subject to relief under U.S. federal tax laws, wald not reelect to qualify as a REIT until the fifth calendarar following the year in whit
we failed to qualify.

If Bimini failed to qualify as a REIT in its 2009 subsequent taxable years, we would be prevented électing to qualify as a RE
under applicable Treasury Regulations.

We were formed by Bimini in August 2010. We belidkiat from the time of our formation until the dlug of the public offering of o1
common stock, we were a “qualified REIT subsidiasf/Bimini. However, under applicable Treasury Regioins, if Bimini failed to qualify ¢
a REIT in its 2009 or subsequent taxable yeargssnBiminis failure to qualify as a REIT was subject to rfelieder U.S. federal tax laws,
would be prevented from electing to qualify as d Rfrior to the fifth calendar year following thegr in which Bimini failed to qualify.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause usregfmor liquidate otherwise attractive investments.
To qualify as a REIT, we must continually satisBrious tests regarding the sources of our incoheenature and diversification of

assets, the amounts we distribute to our stockhelaied the ownership of our stock. In order to ntleese tests, we may be required to fo
investments we might otherwise make. Thus, comeéamith the REIT requirements may hinder our inmestt performance.
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In particular, we must ensure that at the end ohemlendar quarter, at least 75% of the valueuoftatal assets consists of cash,
items, government securities and qualified REIT estate assets, including Agency RMBS. The reraimd our investment in securit
(other than government securities and qualifietl@state assets) generally cannot include more 1h&h of the outstanding voting securitie
any one issuer or more than 10% of the total vafithe outstanding securities of any one issueaddition, in general, no more than 5% of
value of our total assets (other than governmesurgtees, TRS securities, and qualified real essasets) can consist of the securities of an'
issuer, and no more than 25% of the value of otal @ssets can be represented by securities obongre TRSs. Generally, if we fall
comply with these requirements at the end of argnciar quarter, we must correct the failure witBth days after the end of the caler
quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief gisions to avoid losing our REIT qualification abhdcoming subject to U.S. federal income
(and any applicable state and local taxes) on fabus income. As a result, we may be required tpitlate from our portfolio otherwi
attractive investments or contribute such investsiéo a TRS. These actions could have the effeaedficing our income and amot
available for distribution to our stockholders.

Failure to make required distributions would subjas to tax, which would reduce the cash availdbielistribution to our stockholder

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to ourcktmlders each calendar year at least 90% of oull Rixable income (includir
certain items of nomwash income), determined without regard to the dialu for dividends paid and excluding net capifain. To the exte
that we satisfy the 90% distribution requirementt distribute less than 100% of our taxable income,will be subject to federal corpor
income tax on our undistributed income. In additiore will incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax oe #mount, if any, by which @
distributions in any calendar year are less tharstim of:

« 85% of our REIT ordinary income for that year;
« 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thaayeand
« any undistributed taxable income from prior years

We intend to distribute our REIT taxable incometw stockholders in a manner intended to satisfydtbPs distribution requirement &
to avoid both corporate income tax and the 4% nduckible excise tax. However, there is no requingintleat TRSs distribute their aftéax
net income to their parent REIT or their stockhadde

Our taxable income may be substantially differéantour net income as determined based on genabpted accounting principle:
the United States (“GAAP hecause, for example, realized capital losseshailtieducted in determining our GAAP net income,rbay no
be deductible in computing our taxable income.ddi@on, unrealized portfolio gains and lossesiaotuded in GAAP net income, but are
included in REIT taxable income. Also, we may isivim assets that generate taxable income in exdéexnomic income or in advance of
corresponding cash flow from the assets. As atr@$uhe foregoing, we may generate less cash flam taxable income in a particular y:
To the extent that we generate such nash taxable income in a taxable year, we may inogporate income tax and the 4% nondeduc
excise tax on that income if we do not distributetsincome to stockholders in that year. In th&mtywe may be required to use cash rese
incur debt, sell assets, make taxable distributafreur stock or debt securities or liquidate r@sh assets at rates or at times that we reg
unfavorable to satisfy the distribution requiremantl to avoid corporate income tax and the 4% radunctéble excise tax in that year.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may face othetitdilities that reduce our cash flows.
Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may dubject to certain federal, state and local taxesur income and assets, incluc
taxes on any undistributed income, tax on incoramfsome activities conducted as a result of a fosece, and state or local income, prop

and transfer taxes. In addition, any TRSs we forithbve subject to regular corporate federal, seid local taxes. Any of these taxes wi
decrease cash available for distributions to stolddrs.
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The failure of Agency RMBS subject to a repurcleg®ement to qualify as real estate assets woulckrsely affect our ability
qualify as a REIT.

We have entered and intend to continue to enterriggppurchase agreements under which we will noryirsall certain of our Agenc
RMBS to a counterparty and simultaneously entar amt agreement to repurchase the sold assets. Ngeebthat for U.S. federal income
purposes these transactions will be treated asestciebt and we will be treated as the owner ofAipency RMBS that are the subject of
such agreement notwithstanding that such agreemamnttransfer record ownership of such assets ta@thaterparty during the term of -
agreement. It is possible, however, that the IRGldcguccessfully assert that we do not own the AgeRMBS during the term of tl
repurchase agreement, in which case we couldofgjlitlify as a REIT.

Our ability to invest in and dispose of contracts flelayed delivery transactions, or delayed deliveontracts, including to be
announced”securities, could be limited by the requirementsessary to qualify as a REIT, and we could faijtalify as a REIT as
result of these investments.

We may purchase Agency RMBS through delayed dsligentracts, including “to-be-announcediward contracts, or TBAs. We m
recognize income or gains on the disposition oayledl delivery contracts. For example, rather tla&e delivery of the Agency RMBS subj
to a TBA, we may dispose of the TBA through a “rdlfansaction in which we agree to purchase simikusties in the future at
predetermined price or otherwise, which may reisufhe recognition of income or gains. The lawnglear regarding whether delayed deli
contracts will be qualifying assets for the 75%eagest and whether income and gains from dispositof delayed delivery contracts will
qualifying income for the 75% gross income test.

Until we receive a favorable private letter rulifrgm the IRS or we are advised by counsel thatydgeladelivery contracts should
treated as qualifying assets for purposes of tlé @Sset test, we will limit our investment in deddydelivery contracts and any nquoalifying
assets to no more than 25% of our total grosssaaséte end of any calendar quarter and will litmét delayed delivery contracts issued by
one issuer to no more than 5% of our total grosetasat the end of any calendar quarter. Furthiil, we receive a favorable private le
ruling from the IRS or we are advised by counsat thcome and gains from the disposition of delagelivery contracts should be treate:
qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gros®ime test, we will limit our income and gains frommbsitions of delayed delivery contre
and any normgualifying income to no more than 25% of our griveome for each calendar year. Accordingly, outitgbio purchase Agent
RMBS through delayed delivery contracts and to atispof delayed delivery contracts through roll seiions or otherwise, could be limited.

Moreover, even if we are advised by counsel thédyael delivery contracts should be treated as fyiradi assets or that income ¢
gains from dispositions of delayed delivery consaghould be treated as qualifying income, it isgilnle that the IRS could successfully
the position that such assets are not qualifyirsgtasand such income is not qualifying incomehht event, we could be subject to a pel
tax or we could fail to qualify as a REIT if (i)ghvalue of our delayed delivery contracts togethign our nonqualifying assets for the 7&
asset test, exceeded 25% of our total gross aas#te end of any calendar quarter, (ii) the valfieur delayed delivery contracts, includ
TBAS, issued by any one issuer exceeds 5% of dat &ssets at the end of any calendar quarteriiipiogr income and gains from t
disposition of delayed delivery contracts togetivéh our nonqualifying income for the 75% gross income testeeded 25% of our grc
income for any taxable year.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our @bito hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially limitr ability to hedge. Our aggregate gross incorom fnongualifying hedges, fee
and certain other nogualifying sources cannot exceed 5% of our annwassgyincome. As a result, we might have to limit ose o
advantageous hedging techniques or implement thedges through a TRS. Any hedging income earnead RS would be subject to fede
state and local income tax at regular corporatesrafthis could increase the cost of our hedginigities or expose us to greater risks assoc
with changes in interest rates than we would otfssrwant to bear.
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Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS4 the form will be limited and a failure to complijttwthe limits would jeopardize o
REIT qualification and may result in the applicatiof a 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one oren®RSs. A TRS may earn income that would not kaifying income if earne
directly by the parent REIT. Both the subsidiarg dhe REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsigias a TRS. A corporation (other the
REIT) of which a TRS directly or indirectly owns meothan 35% of the voting power or value of thecktwill automatically be treated a
TRS. Overall, no more than 25% of the value of dTR&total assets may consist of stock or securitiese or more TRSs. A domestic T
will pay federal, state and local income tax atuteg corporate rates on any income that it earnsaddition, the TRS rules limit t
deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a TRSits parent REIT to assure that the TRS is stilifg@n appropriate level of corpor
taxation. The rules also impose a 100% excise maseotain transactions between a TRS and its p&®ERK that are not conducted on an am'’
length basis. Any domestic TRS that we may form paly federal, state and local income tax on isltde income, and its aftéax net incom
will be available for distribution to us but is meiquired to be distributed to us unless necegsamaintain our REIT qualification.

We may pay taxable dividends in cash and our constamk, in which case stockholders may sell shafesir common stock to pay
on such dividends, placing downward pressure omtheket price of our common stock.

We may make taxable dividends that are payabldypartash and partly in our common stock. The HS issued private letter rulir
to other REITs treating certain distributions thag¢ paid partly in cash and partly in stock asd#inds that would satisfy the REIT anr
distribution requirement and qualify for the dividks paid deduction for U.S. federal income tax psgs. Those rulings may be relied u
only by the taxpayers to whom they were issuedvmitould request a similar ruling from the IRS.alkidition, the IRS previously issue
revenue procedure authorizing publicly traded REIIsnake elective cash/stock dividends, but the¢mae procedure does not apply to
2013 and future taxable years. Accordingly, itimglear whether and to what extent we will be ablentke taxable dividends payable in ¢
and common stock. Although we have no current tigarof paying dividends in our own stock, if inetfuture we choose to pay dividend
our common stock, our stockholders may be requogrhy tax in excess of the cash that they rec#izelU.S. stockholder sells the shares
it receives as a dividend in order to pay this th®,sales proceeds may be less than the amouludéacin income with respect to the divide
depending on the market price of our common sté¢ketime of the sale. Furthermore, with respeatdrtain norld.S. stockholders, we m
be required to withhold U.S. federal income taxhwitspect to such dividends, including in respéctlloor a portion of such dividend tha
payable in common stock. If we pay dividends in cammon stock and a significant number of our stotders determine to sell shares of
common stock in order to pay taxes owed on divideitdnay put downward pressure on the tradingepsfoour common stock.

Our ownership limitations may restrict change ohtrol or business combination opportunities in whaur stockholders might rece
a premium for their stock.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT for each tdeajear after 2013, no more than 50% in value efauistanding stock may be own
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individualduring the last half of any calendar year. “Iidli)ls” for this purpose include natural pers:
private foundations, some employee benefit plarstausts, and some charitable trusts. In orderstisaus in qualifying as a REIT, am«
other purposes, ownership of our stock by any peisgenerally limited to 9.8% in value or numbésbares, whichever is more restrictive
any class or series of our stock, except that Bimewy own up to 35.0% of our common stock so los@emini continues to qualify as a REI

These ownership limitations could have the efféaiscouraging a takeover or other transaction lmictv holders of our common stc

might receive a premium for their common stock a¥er thenprevailing market price or which holders might bek to be otherwise in th
best interests.
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Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for thduced tax rates available for some dividends.

The maximum tax rate applicable to “qualified dmidl income’payable to U.S. stockholders that are taxed aviddal rates is lowe
than ordinary income tax rates. Dividends payalyleREITs, however, generally are not eligible foe ttreduced rates on qualified divid
income. The more favorable rates applicable tolezgrorporate qualified dividends could cause itweswho are taxed at individual rate:
perceive investments in REITs to be relatively lagsactive than investments in the stocks of R&T corporations that pay dividends, wt
could adversely affect the value of the sharesHifTR, including our common stock.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or reguyaiax changes that could reduce the market pofoeur common stock.

At any time, the U.S. federal income tax laws gyutations governing REITs or the administrativeeiptetations of those laws
regulations may be amended. We cannot predict whéfnany new U.S. federal income tax law, regaator administrative interpretation,
any amendment to any existing U.S. federal incamdaw, regulation or administrative interpretationll be adopted, promulgated or becc
effective and any such law, regulation or interption may take effect retroactively. We and oucktmlders could be adversely affectec
any such change in, or any new, U.S. federal inctaméaw, regulation or administrative interpredati

Certain financing activities may subject us to Uesleral income tax and could have negative taxsequences for our stockholders.

We currently do not intend to enter into any tratisas that could result in our, or a portion of @ssets, being treated as a tax
mortgage pool for U.S. federal income tax purpoHese enter into such a transaction in the futuve,will be taxable at the highest corpo
income tax rate on a portion of the income aridiogn a taxable mortgage pool, referred to as “exaecusion income,that is allocable to tt
percentage of our stock held in record name byudified organizations (generally t@xempt entities that are exempt from the ta
unrelated business taxable income, such as stat#opeplans, charitable remainder trusts and gowem entities). In that case, under
charter, we will reduce distributions to such stoalkiers by the amount of tax paid by us that istattable to such stockholder’s ownership.

If we were to realize excess inclusion income, dRf&lance indicates that the excess inclusion incamgld be allocated among «
stockholders in proportion to our dividends paidcé&ss inclusion income cannot be offset by lossesiostockholders. If the stockholder |
tax-exempt entity and not a disqualified organizatiten this income would be fully taxable as unrelabeisiness taxable income ur
Section 512 of the Code. If the stockholder is reifn person, it would be subject to U.S. fedenabime tax at the maximum tax rate
withholding will be required on this income withaeduction or exemption pursuant to any otherwjggieable income tax treaty.

Our recognition of “phantom” income may reduce ackholder’s after-tax return on an investment im oommon stock.

We may recognize taxable income in excess of oon@unic income, known as phantom income, in the fiears that we hold cert:
investments, and experience an offsetting excessafomic income over our taxable income in latarg. As a result, stockholders at ti
may be required to pay U.S. federal income tax istridutions that economically represent a retufrcapital rather than a dividend. Th
distributions would be offset in later years bytudigitions representing economic income that wdddtreated as returns of capital for |
federal income tax purposes. Taking into accouattitine value of money, this acceleration of U.8lefal income tax liabilities may reduc
stockholder’s after-tax return on his or her inugmht to an amount less than the after-tax returaromvestment with an identical befdse¢
rate of return that did not generate phantom income
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Liquidation of our assets may jeopardize our RElaldication.

To qualify and maintain our qualification as a REWe must comply with requirements regarding osetsand our sources of inco
If we are compelled to liquidate our assets to yeglaligations to our lenders, we may be unableammly with these requirements, ther
jeopardizing our qualification as a REIT, or we nimysubject to a 100% tax on any resultant gaiveiell assets that are treated as inve
or property held primarily for sale to customersha ordinary course of business.

Our qualification as a REIT and exemption from UeSleral income tax with respect to certain assgdy be dependent on the accul
of legal opinions or advice rendered or given aatetents by the issuers of assets that we accameb the inaccuracy of any st
opinions, advice or statements may adversely affi@cREIT qualification and result in significanbrporate-level tax.

When purchasing securities, we may rely on opinmmadvice of counsel for the issuer of such séiestior statements made in rele
offering documents, for purposes of determining tivbesuch securities represent debt or equity gexufor U.S. federal income tax purpo:
the value of such securities, and also to whatmttese securities constitute qualified real estsisets for purposes of the REIT asset tes
produce income which qualifies under the 75% ginseme test. The inaccuracy of any such opiniodsjca or statements may adver:
affect our REIT qualification and result in sigedint corporate-level tax.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We do not own any real property. Our offices arenedvby Bimini, the parent of our Manager, and aeated at 3305 Flamingo Dri
Vero Beach, Florida 32963. We consider this prgptr be adequate for our business as currentigwcted. Our telephone number is (i
231-1400.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are not party to any material pending legal pedings as described in Iltem 103 of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information

Our common stock began trading publicly on the NYSET under the trading symbol "ORC" on February 2813. There was |
established public market for our common stockrpigoFebruary 14, 2013. As of March 22, 2013, wd B#841,655 shares of common st
issued and outstanding which were held by two heldérecord. Because many of our shares of comstaek are held by brokers and o
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are u@ab estimate the total number of stockholdersesgnted by these record holders.

Dividends Distribution Policy

We declared our first dividend payment to shareli@dn March 8, 2013 in an amount of $0.135 peresfa our common stock. V
intend to pay regular monthly dividends to our ktaidders. We are organized and conduct our operatio qualify as a real estate investr
trust, or a “REIT,”and to maintain a REIT qualification, for tax pusps, which requires that we distribute at least @d%xable income. N
assurance, however, can be given as to the amountiteing of future distributions as such distriiouis are subject to our taxable earni
financial condition, capital requirements and satiter factors as our Board of Directors deems ealev

Use of Proceeds

On February 13, 2013, the SEC declared effectiveRagistration Statement on Form S-11 (File No.-388538) relating to our initi
public offering of 2,360,000 shares of common stofflred at $15.00 per share for an aggregateinffgrice of $35,400,000. The offeri
date was February 14, 2013. Our initial public offg was underwritten by several underwriters, vigtdenburg Thalmann & Co., Inc. act
as the representative of the underwriters. On Rebpr0, 2013, we sold 2,360,000 of common stockuninitial public offering at a price
the public of $15.00 per share for an aggregaterioff price of approximately $35,400,000. Biminivigbrs paid all of our offering cos
including underwriting discounts and commissiom$erefore, our net offering proceeds from the dfigrtotaled $35,400,000. The offer
was terminated on February 20, 2013 after all teggsl securities were sold.

We are investing the net proceeds of this offeiimgaccordance with our investment objectives amdtagies as described in
prospectus comprising a part of the Registrati@iegtent referenced above. There has been no nhateaizge in our planned use of proce
from our initial public offering as described inrdinal prospectus filed with the SEC.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

In October 2012, our Board of Directors adopted Bimdini, then our sole stockholder, approved, o0t 2 Equity Incentive Plan (t
“Incentive Plan”)to recruit and retain employees, directors androglkevice providers, including employees of our Eiger and other of o
affiliates. The plan provides for the award of &options, stock appreciation rights, stock awaetformance units, other equibased awart
(and dividend equivalents with respect to awardgpefformance units and other equitgsed awards) and incentive awards. The pl
administered by the Compensation Committee of cneir® of Directors except that our Board of Direstarill administer awards made
directors who are not employees of us or our afé. The plan provides for awards of up to aneggge of 10% of the issued and outstan
shares of our common stock (on a fully diluted §gasit the time of the awards, subject to a maxinaggregate 4,000,000 shares of
common stock that may be issued under the plandai® no awards have been made under the plan.

44




The following table provides information as of Dedger 31, 2012 regarding the number of shares ohwamstock that may be isst
under our Incentive Plan.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Total number of securities Weighted-average future issuance under equity
to be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities reflectes
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: - - 4,000,000
Equity compensation plans not approved
security holder(l) - - -
Total - - 4,000,00(

(1) We do not have any equity compensation plans tne hot been approved by our stockhold
@ Represents the maximum number of shares remainiagable for future issuance under the terms of liheentive Plan plai
irrespective of the 10% limitation described aboVWeking into account the 10% limitation and themoer of shares of common sti
outstanding as of December 31, 20ttzre were 15,411 shares available for future resmiander the terms of the Incentive Plan
December 31, 201!

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
In July 2012, we issued 4,110 shares of commorkstalcied at a price of $100 per share to Bimirsatisfaction of amounts owed by u
Bimini as of June 30, 2012 of approximately $410,86r prior management fees, overhead allocatiomsdirect expense reimbursement
reliance on the exemption from registration affardy Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 aasended, for transactions not involy
any public offering.
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
The Company did not repurchase any shares ofitk sturing the year ended December 31, 2012.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not Applicable.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
The following discussion of our financial conditiamd results of operations should be read in catiom with the financial stateme
and notes to those statements included in ItemtBi®fForm 10-K. The discussion may contain cerfaiwardiooking statements that invol

risks and uncertainties. Forwalabking statements are those that are not histancaature. As a result of many factors, suchhasé set fori
under “Risk Factors” in this Form 10-K, our actuadults may differ materially from those anticipghte such forward-looking statements.
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Overview

We are a specialty finance company that investsgiency RMBS. Our investment strategy focuses od,aur portfolio consists of, tv
categories of Agency RMBS: (i) traditional paksaugh Agency RMBS and (ii) structured Agency RMB8ch as CMOs, 10s, 110s and P
among other types of structured Agency RMBS. Froaeption through the closing of the initial pubdiffering of our common stock, we wi
managed by Bimini. After the closing of the offagjrwe will be externally managed by Bimini Advispesregistered investment adviser \
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

We were formed by Bimini in August 2010 and comnezhoperations on November 24, 2010. At Decembe@12, Bimini was ot
sole stockholder. We completed our initial publféedng on February 20, 2013. In that offering vaésed proceeds of approximately $:
million from the sale of 2,360,000 shares of ounown stock.

Our business objective is to provide attractivi-gsdjusted total returns over the long term througlormbination of capital appreciati
and the payment of regular monthly distributionse iWend to achieve this objective by investingumd strategically allocating capital betw
the two categories of Agency RMBS described ab®Ve.seek to generate income from (i) the net intemegrgin on our leveraged pass
through Agency RMBS portfolio and the leveragedtiparof our structured Agency RMBS portfolio, arni the interest income we gener
from the unleveraged portion of our structured AgeRMBS portfolio. We intend to fund our patsseugh Agency RMBS and certain of
structured Agency RMBS, such as fixed and floatiaitg tranches of CMOs and POs, through stesrr borrowings structured as repurct
agreements. However, we do not intend to emplogrbgye on the securities in our structured AgencyBBNbortfolio that have no princif
balance, such as 10s and 110s. We do not intendsto leverage in these instances because the @wdntain structural leverage. Pas:s
through Agency RMBS and structured Agency RMBSdgfly exhibit materially different sensitivities thovements in interest rates. Decli
in the value of one portfolio may be offset by agpation in the other. The percentage of capitat the allocate to our two Agency RM
asset categories will vary and will be actively ma@ed in an effort to maintain the level of incomenerated by the combined portfolios,
stability of that income stream and the stabilitytbe value of the combined portfolios. We beli¢hat this strategy will enhance our liquid
earnings, book value stability and asset selecportunities in various interest rate environments

We intend to qualify and will elect to be taxedaaREIT under the Code commencing with our shoraltéx year ending December
2013. We generally will not be subject to U.S. fadlincome tax to the extent that we annually diste all of our REIT taxable income to
stockholders and qualify as a REIT.

Factors that Affect our Results of Operations and hancial Condition
A variety of industry and economic factors may iripaur results of operations and financial conditibhese factors include:

« interest rate trends;

« prepayment rates on mortgages underlying our Ag&MBS, and credit trends insofar as they affecppyenent rates;
« the difference between Agency RMBS yields and aading and hedging costs;

« competition for investments in Agency RMBS;

« recent actions taken by the Federal Reserve and.®eTreasury; and

« other market developments.

In addition, a variety of factors relating to oursiness may also impact our results of operatioasfimancial condition. These fact
include:

« our degree of leverage;

« our access to funding and borrowing capacity;

« our borrowing costs;

« our hedging activities;

« the market value of our investments; and

« the requirements to qualify as a REIT and the mequénts to qualify for a registration exemption enthe Investment Company Act.
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We anticipate that, for any period during whichredpas in the interest rates for our adjustableassets do not coincide with interest
changes on the corresponding liabilities, suchtassél reprice more slowly than the corresponding liabifiti€€onsequently, changes
interest rates, particularly short term interegtgamay significantly influence our net income.

Our net income may be affected by a difference betwactual prepayment rates and our projectioepayments on loans and secur
may be influenced by changes in market interessrabhd homeowners’ ability and desire to refinahe& mortgages.

Results of Operations

Described below are the Company’s results of omratfor the year ended December 31, 2012, as aamtpa the Compang’results ¢
operations for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Net Income (Loss) Summary
Net income for the year ended December 31, 201280d&s million, or $0.54 per share. Net loss for ylear ended December 31, 2
was $1.2 million, or $1.21 per share. The companehtnet income (loss) for the years ended Decer@bef012 and 2011, along with

changes in those components are presented inltleeh@low:

(in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 Change
Interest incom: $ 2,69t $ 1,771 $ 927
Interest expens (277) (96) (187)
Net interest incom 2,421 1,67¢ 74€
Losses on MBS and Eurodollar futul (1,159 (1,279 11¢
Net portfolio income 1,267 40z 86%
Expense:! (739 (1,599 85¢
Net income (loss $ 534 $ (1,190 $ 1,72¢

GAAP and Non-GAAP Reconciliation

To date, we have used derivatives, specificallyoHalar futures contracts, to hedge the intere risk on repurchase agreements
rising rate environment. We have not elected tagtkese our derivative holdings for hedge accountirgtment under the Financial Accoun
Standards Board (the “FASB”) Accounting Standardslification (“ASC"”) Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Changes invalue of thes
instruments are presented in a separate line iterni Statements of Operations. As such, for firmreporting purposes, interest expense
cost of funds are not impacted by the fluctuationvalue of the Eurodollar futures contracts. le fature, we may use other deriva
instruments to hedge our interest expense anddot & designate our derivative holdings for heaggounting treatment.
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For the purpose of computing net interest income ratios relating to cost of funds measures througlthis Managemerst’ Discussio
and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultsOgferations, interest expense includes gains arsdosn a Eurodollar futures contre
Presenting the effects of the Eurodollar positisith the interest expense on interbsring liabilities reflects total economic intdregpens
on these obligations and the economic effect of lmenlging strategy. Interest expense, includingygga@nd losses on Eurodollar futt
contracts, is referred to as economic interest esg@eNet interest income, including gains and esseEurodollar futures contracts, is refe
to as economic net interest income.

We believe that economic interest expense and acicnet interest income provides meaningful infatiorato consider, in addition to t
respective amounts prepared in accordance with GAAIR nonGAAP measures help us to evaluate our financiaitipasand performanc
without the effects of certain transactions and ®A&djustments that are not necessarily indicativeuo current investment portfolio
operations.

Our presentation of the economic value of our haglgitrategy has important limitations. First, othearket participants may calcul
economic interest expense and economic net interasine differently than we calculate them. Secaviile we believe that the calculatior
the economic value of our hedging strategy desdrifigove helps to present our financial position pedormance, it may be of limit
usefulness as an analytical tool. Therefore, tmnemic value of our investment strategy should bmtviewed in isolation and is no
substitute for interest expense and net interesine computed in accordance with GAAP.

The following table presents the effect of our hiadgstrategy on interest expense and net intemestie for each quarter in 2012 and z
and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

(dollars in thousands

GAAP Eurodollar Economic GAAP Economic

Interest Gains / Interest Net Interest Net Interest

Expense (Losses) Expense Income Income
Three Months Ended,
December 31, 201 $ 94 $ 1) $ 95 % 37¢ $ 37¢
September 30, 201 58 (14 72 63¢ 62%
June 30, 201 74 Q) 75 69E 694
March 31, 201: 51 (29) 75 70¢€ 684
December 31, 201 36 27 9 437 464
September 30, 201 23 (26) 49 542 517
June 30, 201 18 (157) 16¢ 40¢ 25E
March 31, 201: 19 11 8 28¢ 30C
Years Ended,
December 31, 201 $ 277 % 40 $ 317 % 2421 % 2,381
December 31, 201 96 (139) 23E 1,67¢ 1,53¢

Net Interest Income

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we geztkf#.4 million of economic net interest incomeagisting of $2.7 million of intere
income from MBS assets offset by $0.3 million obeomic interest expense on repurchase liabilitles: the comparable period en
December 31, 2011, we generated $1.5 million oheouc net interest income, consisting of $1.8 wiilliof interest income from MBS ass
offset by $0.2 million of economic interest expenserepurchase liabilities.
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The table below provides information on our poitfchverage balances, interest income, yield ontgsagerage repurchase agreer
balances, economic interest expense, economico€fshds, economic net interest income and econamidnterest spread for each quartt
2012 and 2011 and for the years ended Decemb@032,and 2011.

(dollars in thousands

Average Yield on Average Economic Net
MBS Average Average Economic Economic  Portfolio  Economic
Securities  Interest MBS Repurchase  Interest Cost of Interest Interest
Agreement:  Expense
Held @) Income @  Securities @) ©) Funds Income ) Spread

Three Months Ended,
December 31, 201 $ 91,090 $ 473 2.08% $ 80,25¢ $ 95 0.47% $ 37¢ 1.61%
September 30, 201 64,37¢ 697 4.3%% 53,69¢ 72 0.54% 62E 3.7<%
June 30, 201 73,55¢ 76¢ 4.18% 62,40° 75 0.4&% 694 3.7(%
March 31, 201: 70,58¢ 75¢ 4.3(% 59,157 75 0.5(% 684 3.8(%
December 31, 201 53,52: 473 3.52% 42,39( 9 0.0&% 464 3.45%
September 30, 201 40,35¢ 56€ 5.61% 32,23( 49 0.62% 517 4.9%%
June 30, 201 29,28t 424 5.7% 23,26 16¢ 2.9(% 25¢E 2.8%
March 31, 201: 27,37 30¢ 4.5(% 22,63: 8 0.14% 30C 4.3€%
Years Ended,
December 31, 201 $ 7490 $  2,69¢ 36(% $ 6388 $ 317 05(% $ 2,381 3.1(%
December 31, 201 37,63¢ 1,771 4.71% 30,13( 23t 0.78% 1,53¢ 3.95%

(1) Portfolio yields and costs of borrowings presenitedhe table above and the tables on pages 50 dndré calculated based on -
average balances of the underlying investment pltfepurchase agreement balances and are anne@lfor the quarterly periot
presented. Average balances for quarterly periogsaalculated using two data points, the beginramgl ending balances. Aver:
balances for the year to date periods are calcuats the average of the average quarterly peri

(2) Interest income presented in the table above ireduohly interest earned on the Comf's MBS investments and excludes int
earned on cash balances, and excludes the impadisobunts or premiums on MBS investments, as wliss@r premiums are r
amortized under the fair value option. Interestome and net portfolio interest income may not agvitke the information presented
the statements of operatiol

(3) Economic interest expense and economic net interesine presented in the table above and the table on p&giacludes the effe
of our Eurodollar futures positions that were em@rinto as an economic hedge against the increasimterest on repurcha
agreements in a rising rate environme

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yit

Our interest income for the years ended DecembeR@12 and 2011 was $2.7 million and $1.8 milliczgpectively. We had aver:
MBS holdings of $74.9 million and $37.6 million fdre years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, tasgbec The yield on our portfolio wi
3.60% and 4.71% for the years ended December 32 aAd 2011, respectively. For the year ended Dbeedil, 2012 as compared to
year ended December 31, 2011, there was a $0.@miticrease in interest income due to a $37.3ionilincrease in average MBS, parti
offset by a 111 basis point decrease in the yielcheerage MBS for the year ended December 31, 20fh compared to the year en

December 31, 2011.
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The table below presents the average portfolig sim®me and yields of our respective qdrtfolios, consisting of structured MBS and
MBS.

(dollars in
thousands
Average MBS Held Interest Income Realized Yield on Average MBS
PT Structured PT Structured PT Structured
MBS MBS Total MBS MBS Total MBS MBS Total
Three Months Ended,
December 31
2012 $ 8461 % 6,477 $ 91,09« $ 597 $ (129 $ 475 2.82% (7.66% 2.08%
September 3
2012 56,51¢ 7,85¢ 64,37¢ 41C 287 697 2.9(% 14.5%% 4.3%%
June 30, 201 65,32( 8,23¢ 73,55¢ 59z 17¢€ 76¢ 3.6%% 8.5¢% 4.1%
March 31,
2012 61,93¢ 8,64¢ 70,58¢ 53C 22¢ 75¢ 3.4%% 10.5¢€% 4.3(%
December 31
2011 43,917 9,60¢ 53,52: 33¢ 134 475 3.0% 5.5¢% 3.57%
September 3
2011 33,101 7,25¢ 40,35¢ 283 282 56€ 3.42% 15.61% 5.61%
June 30, 201 24,57: 4,717 29,28¢ 21¢€ 20¢€ 424 3.55% 17.51% 5.7%
March 31,
2011 24,28( 3,09¢ 27,37 22E 83 30¢ 3.7(% 10.75% 4.5(%
Years Ended,
December 31
2012 $ 67,09 $ 7806 $ 7490 $ 2,13 $ 56 $ 2,69¢ 3.17% 7.27% 3.6(%
December 31
2011 31,46¢ 6,16¢ 37,63¢ 1,06t 70€ 1,771 3.38% 11.45% 4.71%

Interest Expense and the Cost of Fun

We had average outstanding repurchase agreeme®63®&f million and $30.1 million and total econormiterest expense of $0.3 milli
and $0.2 million for the years ended December B122and 2011, respectively. Our average econonstafdunds was 0.50% and 0.78%
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respgctiVakre was a 28 basis point decrease in theagegezconomic cost of funds and a $
million increase in average outstanding repurcheg@ements during the year ended December 31, @9lmpared to the year en
December 31, 2011.

Since all of our repurchase agreements are s$@ort; changes in market rates directly affect oterest expense. Our average econ
cost of funds was 25 basis points above averagemamgh LIBOR and 12 basis points below averagensixth LIBOR for the quarter enc
December 31, 2012. The average term to maturitie@butstanding repurchase agreements decrease@iraays at December 31, 2011 t
days at December 31, 2012.

50




The table below presents the average repurchaseragnts outstanding, economic interest expenseardge economic cost of fun
and average one-month and six-month LIBOR ratesdch quarter in 2012 and 2011 and for the yeatestePecember 31, 2012 and 2011.

(dollars in thousands

Average Average
Economic Economic
Cost of Cost of
Average Funds Funds
Balance of Economic Average Average Average Relative to Relative to
Average
Repurchase Interest Economic One-Month Six-Month One- Average Si>-
Cost of Month Month
Agreements Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
Three Months
Ended,
December 31,201 $ 80,25¢ $ 9t 0.47% 0.22% 0.5% 0.25% (0.19)%
September 30, 201 53,69¢ 72 0.54% 0.23% 0.7(% 0.31% (0.16%
June 30, 201 62,407 75 0.4&% 0.24% 0.74% 0.24% (0.26)%
March 31, 201: 59,157 75 0.5(% 0.26% 0.7€% 0.24% (0.26)%
December 31, 201 42,39( 9 0.0&% 0.26% 0.65% (0.19% (0.57%
September 30, 201 32,23( 48 0.62% 0.21% 0.4€% 0.41% 0.1€%
June 30, 201 23,267 16¢ 2.9(% 0.22% 0.4%% 2.6&% 2.47%
March 31, 201: 22,63: 8 0.14% 0.2€% 0.4€% (0.12)% (0.32)%
Years Ended,
December 31,201 $ 63,88( $ 317 0.5(% 0.24% 0.7(% 0.26% (0.20%
December 31, 201 30,13( 23¢ 0.7&% 0.24% 0.5(% 0.5/% 0.28%

Gains and Losses
The table below presents our gains and lossetiéoydars ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

(in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 Change
Realized (losses) gains on sales of v $ (308) $ 41C $ (71¢)
Unrealized losses on ME (80€) (1,544 73¢
Total losses on MB: (1,119 (1,139 2C
Losses on Eurodollar futur (40) (139) 9¢

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2B&1Company received proceeds of $129.1 million $88.5 million, respectivel
from the sales of MBS. We do not expect to sedbtson a frequent basis, but may from time to seleexisting assets to acquire new as
which our management believes might have high&ratjusted returns or to manage our balance shgetraef our asset/liability managem
strategy.

51




Expenses

Total operating expenses were $0.7 million and $diléon for the years ended December 31, 2012 201, respectively. The table bel
provides a breakdown of operating expenses foydlaes ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

(in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 Change
Direct REIT operating expens $ 44¢ 3 34t $ 104
Audit, legal and other professional fe 17¢ 1,11¢ (937)
Other expense 10€ 132 (26)
Total expense $ 732 $ 1,592 (85€)

Under the terms of the management agreement, thgo@uy paid Bimini a monthly management fee equdl/1@ of 1.50% per annum
the StockholdersEquity (as defined in the management agreementf)efCompany. In addition, the Company paid Bimainnhonthly fee ¢
$7,200, which represents an allocation of overheguenses for items that include, but are not lichit®, occupancy costs, insurance
administrative expenses. These expenses are altbbased on the ratio of the Company’s assets anthiBs consolidated assets. Include
direct REIT operating expenses during each of #srsyended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were manapgires and allocated expense
approximately $0.3 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynpéhdrew its Form Sk1 Registration Statement related to a proposédlipiublic
offering of its common stock. The Registrationt&taent was withdrawn due to market conditions.luided in other professional fees for
year ended December 31, 2011 are approximatelyrillibn of expenses related to this attemptedahjpublic offering.

Financial Condition:
Mortgage-Backed Securities

As of December 31, 2012, our MBS portfolio consisté $115.4 million of agency or government MBSait value and had a weighi
average coupon on assets of 3.09%. During thegreded December 31, 2012, we received principayments of $9.5 million compared
$6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 20Ifie average prepayment speeds for the quarteesiddeicember 31, 2012 and 2011 v
28.6% and 29.7%, respectively. (See table belovadditional prepayment data).

The following table presents the constant prepaymate (“CPR”) experienced on our structured and MBS subportfolios, on a
annualized basis, for the quarterly periods presenAssets that were not owned for the entire tquanave been excluded from
calculation. The exclusion of certain assets dugariods of high trading activity can create ayMeigh, and often volatile, reliance on a st
sample of underlying loans.

Structured
PT MBS MBS Total
Three Months Ended, Portfolio (%)  Portfolio (%)  Portfolio (%)
December 31, 201 1.1 42 28.€
September 30, 201 4.2 38.7 25.C
June 30, 201 0.2 41.4 38.1
March 31, 201: 11.C 31.z 23.¢
December 31, 201 10.1 33.t 29.7
September 30, 201 13.1 27.€ 21.1
June 30, 201 8.1 26.7 18.7
March 31, 201: 0.5 19.% 5.7
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The following tables summarize certain charactedsof the Compang agency and government mortgage related secudses

December 31, 2012 and 2011:

(in thousands

Weighted Weighted
Percentage Average Average Weighted Weighted
of Weighted Maturity Coupon  Average Average
Fair Entire Average in Longest Resetin Lifetime  Periodic
Asset Category Value Portfolio  Coupon  Months  Maturity Months Cap Cap
December 31, 201.
Adjustable Rate MB! $ 6,531 5.7% 4.20% 258 1-Sef-35 3.46 10.04% 2.00%
Fixed Rate MBS 43,589 37.8% 3.24% 181 1-Dec-40 NA NA NA
Hybrid Adjustable Rate MB: 59,485 51.6% 2.69% 357 1-Nov-42 100.51 7.69% 2.00%
Total Mortgag-backed Pa-through 109,605 95.0% 3.00% 281 1-Nov-42 90.91 7.93% 2.00%
Interes-Only Securities 2,884 2.5% 3.52% 151 25-Dec-39 NA NA NA
Inverse Intere-Only Securities 2,891 2.5% 6.13% 309 25-Nov-40 NA 6.34% NA
Total Structured MB:¢ 5,775 5.0% 4.83% 230 25-Nov-40 NA NA NA
Total Mortgage Assel $ 115,380 100.0% 3.09% 278 1-Nov-42 NA NA NA
December 31, 201.
Fixed Rate MBS 21,174 37.8% 4.64% 179 1-Nov-40 NA NA NA
Hybrid Adjustable Rate MB: 25,466 45.5% 3.57% 354 1-Dec-41 95.21 8.83% 2.00%
Total Mortgag-backed Pa-through 46,640 83.3% 4.05% 275 1-Dec-41 95.21 8.83% 2.00%
Interes-Only Securities 1,638 2.9% 4.88% 291 25-Dec-39 NA NA NA
Inverse Intere-Only Securities 7,724 13.8% 6.11% 317 25-Nov-40 NA 6.39% NA
Total Structured MB:¢ 9,362 16.7% 5.89% 313 25-Nov-40 NA NA NA
Total Mortgage Assel $ 56,002 100.0% 4.36% 281 1-Dec-41 NA NA NA
(in thousands
December 31, 201. December 31, 201
Percentage Percentage
of of
Entire Entire
Agency Fair Value Portfolio Fair Value Portfolio
Fannie Mae $ 113,23! 98.1%% $ 39,60¢ 70.72%
Freddie Mac 2,14¢ 1.86% 11,14¢ 19.91%
Ginnie Mae - - 5,24 9.37%
Total Portfolio $ 115,38( 100.0% $ 56,00: 100.(%
December December
Entire Portfolio 31, 2012 31, 2011
Weighted Average Pass Through Purchase | $ 105.6¢ $ 105.7:
Weighted Average Structured Purchase F $ 991 $% 11.72
Weighted Average Pass Through Current F $ 105.8. $ 106.0°
Weighted Average Structured Current P $ 7.8, 3% 10.5¢
Effective Duratior() 1.20¢ (0.937)

() Effective duration of 1.209 indicates that an iefstrrate increase of 1.0% would be expected toecauk209% decrease in the value of
MBS in the Compal's investment portfolio at December 31, 2012. Aectfe duration of (0.931) indicates that an iet®r rate increase
1.0% would be expected to cause a 0.931% increefeivalue of the MBS in the Companiyivestment portfolio at December 31, 2011. T

figures include the structured securities in thetfmdio.
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The following table presents details related tafpbo assets acquired during the years ended DbeefSi, 2012 and 2011.

(in thousands

2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Total Cost Price Yield Total Cost Price Yield
Pas-through MBS $ 193,96¢ 105.1: 1.5%% $ 55,97+ 105.3¢ 2.01%
Structured MBS 5,11( 7.62 11.95% 15,52( 11.9¢ 16.9¢%

Our portfolio of PT MBS will typically be compriseaf adjustable-rate MBS, fixed-rate MBS and hyladjustablerate MBS. We seek
acquire low duration assets that offer high lev#lprotection from mortgage prepayments. Althoulgh duration of an individual asset
change as a result of changes in interest ratestnive to maintain a PT MBS portfolio with an effiwe duration of less than 2.0. The sti
contractual final maturity of the mortgage loanglentying our portfolio of PT MBS generally ranges 1o 30 years. However, the effec
prepayments of the underlying mortgage loans témds$orten the resulting cash flows from our inrestts substantially. Prepayments o
for various reasons, including refinancing of ugiag mortgages and loan payoffs in connection vaidime sales.

The duration of our interest only (“IO”) and inversterest only (“110")portfolio will vary greatly depending on the strul features «
the securities. While prepayment activity will alys affect the cash flows associated with the #@gesirthe interest only nature of I©may
cause their durations to become extremely negathen prepayments are high, and less negative wieggapments are low. With respec
[10’s, prepayments affect their durations in a $mfashion to that of I&, but the floating rate nature of their couponifhis inversel
related to the level of one month LIBOR) causerthgce movements — and model duratido be affected by changes in both prepayment
one month LIBOR — both current and anticipated llevés a result, the duration of 11O securitied wiso vary greatly.

Prepayments on the loans underlying our MBS caar #ie timing of the cash flows from the underlylogns to us. As a result, we ga
the interest rate sensitivity of its assets by meng their effective duration. While modified dticm measures the price sensitivity of a bor
movements in interest rates, effective durationtwras both the movement in interest rates andabethat cash flows to a mortgage rel.
security are altered when interest rates move. #liegly, when the contract interest rate on a magéggloan is substantially above prevai
interest rates in the market, the effective duratid securities collateralized by such loans camite low because of expected prepaym
Although some of the fixedate MBS in our portfolio are collateralized by hsawith a lower propensity to prepay when the caitrate i
above prevailing rates, their price movements teaurities with like contract rates and therefotkibit similar effective duration.

We face the risk that the market value of its asaélt increase or decrease at different rates thahof our liabilities, including its hedgi
instruments. Accordingly, we assess our interdstniak by estimating the duration of our assetbthe duration of our liabilities. We gener:
calculate duration using various third party modeét®wever, empirical results and various thirdtpanodels may produce different dural
numbers for the same securities.
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The following sensitivity analysis shows the esti@bimpact on the fair value of our interest rag¢@sitive investments as of Decembe
2012, assuming rates instantaneously fall 100 Ipesigs (“bps”), rise 100 bps and rise 200 bps:

(in thousands

Fair $ Change in Fair Value % Change in Fair Value
Value -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS

Adjustable Rate MB! $ 6,531 $ 175 $ avs) $ (350) 2.68% (2.68)% (5.35)%
Hybrid Adjustable

Rate MBS 59,48¢ 1,38¢ (1,38%) (2,77) 2.3%% (2.39% (4.66)%
Fixed Rate MBS 43,58¢ 1,29: (1,299 (2,58¢) 2.97% (2.971% (5.99%
Interes-Only MBS 2,88¢ (972 972 1,94: (33.69% 33.69% 67.31%
Inverse Interest-Only

MBS 2,891 (487) 487 973 (16.89)% 16.8% 33.6(%
Total Portfolio $ 115,38( $ 1,39/ $ (1,399 $ (2,79)) 1.21% (1.2)% (2.42)%

The table below reflects the same analysis predaiieve but with the figures in the columns thdidate the estimated impact of a
bps fall or rise adjusted to reflect the impactohvexity, which is the measure of the sensitiagtyour Agency RMBSS effective duration
movements in interest rates.

(in thousands

Fair $ Change in Fair Value % Change in Fair Value

Value -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS -100BPS +100BPS +200BPS
Adjustable Rate MB! $ 6,531 $ 124 $ ave) $ (359) 1.9(% (2.79% (5.49%
Hybrid Adjustable
Rate MBS 59,48t 257 (2,175 (5,209 0.43% (3.66)% (8.75%
Fixed Rate MB¢ 43,58¢ 422 (1,630 (3,577 0.97% 3.79)% (8.21)%
Interes-Only MBS 2,88¢ (1,037 90t 1,51¢ (35.75% 31.3% 52.56%
Inverse Interest-Only
MBS 2,891 (53¢€) 81¢ 1,50¢ (18.60)% 28.3(% 52.0%
Total Portfolio $ 115,38( $ (76€) $ (2,26)) $ (6,117 (0.66)% (1.96)% (5.30%

In addition to changes in interest rates, othetofacimpact the fair value of our interest ramnsitive investments, such as the shape
yield curve, market expectations as to future ggerate changes and other market conditions. Aowglly, in the event of changes in ac
interest rates, the change in the fair value ofassets would likely differ from that shown abovel such difference might be material
adverse to our stockholders.

Repurchase Agreemen

As of December 31, 2012, we had had establishesbwarg facilities in the repurchase agreement miawnkith nine counterparties whi
we believe provide borrowing capacity in excesewfneeds. None of these lenders are affiliateld thie Company. As of December 31, 2(
we had funding in place with four of those counseties. These borrowings are secured by the CopipdiBS and bear interest rates thal
based on a spread to LIBOR.

As of December 31, 2012, we had obligations outBtenunder the repurchasgreements of approximately $103.9 million withe
weighted average borrowing cost of 0.49%. The ramgimaturity of our outstanding repurchase agregrobligations ranged from 3 to
days, with a weighted average maturity of 15 d&yscuring the repurchase agreement obligation &eoémber 31, 2012, are MBS with
estimated fair value, including accrued intere$tapproximately $109.9 million and a weighted ageranaturity of 281 months, and ¢
posted with counterparties of approximately $0.4iom. Through March 22, 2013, we have been ablm#&intain our repurchase facilities w
comparable terms to those that existed at DeceBihe2012 with maturities through April 19, 2013.
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The table below presents information about ourgqukeind and average repurchase agreement obligédioeach quarter in 2012 and 20

(dollars in thousands

Difference Between Ending

Ending Average Repurchase Agreements

Balance of  Balance of and Average Repurchase

Repurchase Repurchase Agreements
Three Months Ended, Agreements Agreements Amount Percent
December 31, 201 $ 103,94: $ 80,25¢ $ 23,68! 29.519% @
September 30, 201 56,57 53,69¢ 2,87: 5.35%
June 30, 201 50,82¢ 62,407 (11,58 (18.56)% ®
March 31, 201: 73,98¢ 59,157 14,83: 25.01% ©
December 31, 201 44,32¢ 42,39( 1,93¢ 4.5¢%
September 30, 201 40,45¢ 32,23( 8,22¢ 25.529 (d)
June 30, 201 24,00¢ 23,26 737 3.11%
March 31, 201: 22,53: 22,63. (101) (0.45%

(a) The higher ending balance relative to the averad@nioe reflects a shift in the portfolio allocatimnvards PT MBS that the Comp:
funds through the repo market. During the quaeteted December 31, 2012, the Comparngvestment in PT MBS increased $*
million.

(b) The lower ending balance relative to the averadenisa reflects a shift in the portfolio allocatitowards Structured MBS that 1
Company does not fund through the repo market.inguhe quarter ended June 30, 2012, the Companyestment in PT MB
decreased $23.8 millio

(c) The higher ending balance relative to the averadenioe reflects a shift in the portfolio allocatitmwards assets that the Comg
funds through the repo market. During the quagteed March 31, 2012, the Companynvestment in PT MBS increased $:
million.

(d) The higher ending balance relative to the averadanie reflects a shift in the portfolio allocatitmwards assets that the Comg
funds through the repo market. During the quastated September 30, 2011, the Compamywestment in PT MBS increased $:
million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is our ability to turn norcash assets into cash, purchase additional invagtmepay principal and interest on borrowingsd
overhead, fulfill margin calls and pay dividend3ur principal immediate sources of liquidity inceudash balances, unencumbered asse
borrowings under repurchase agreements. Our borgoeapacity will vary over time as the market valaf our interest earning as:
varies. Our balance sheet also generates liquatityan ongoing basis through payments of principal and egemwe receive on our Mt
portfolio. Management believes that we currentyé sufficient liquidity and capital resources tadale for (a) the acquisition of additio
investments consistent with the size and natureufexisting MBS portfolio, (b) the repayments oorfowings and (c) the payment
dividends to the extent required for our contingedlification as a REIT.

Because our PT MBS portfolio consists entirely ofgrnment and agency securities, we do not anteipaving difficulty converting ol
assets to cash should our liquidity needs evereskoair immediately available sources of cash. €urctured MBS portfolio also consi
entirely of governmental agency securities, althotigey typically do not trade with comparable bidsk spreads as PT MBS. However
anticipate that we would be able to liquidate sseturities readily, even in distressed marketgigltith potential haircuts.

Our master repurchase agreements have no stat@@texp but can be terminated at any time at optiom or at the option of tl
counterparty. However, once a definitive repurclegeement under a master repurchase agreemenééagntered into, it generally may
be terminated by either party. A negotiated teation can occur, but may involve a fee to be pajidthe party seeking to terminate
repurchase agreement transaction.
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Under our repurchase agreement funding arrangemengse required to post margin at the initiatiéthe borrowing. The margin pos
represents the haircut, which is a percentage efnlarket value of the collateral pledged. To théemxthe market value of the as
collateralizing the financing transaction declintt®e market value of our posted margin will be ffisient and we will be required to pt
additional collateral. Conversely, if the markatue of the asset pledged increases in value, widwae over collateralized and we could 1
call our repo counterparty and have excess maegimmed to us. Our lenders typically value oudpksd securities daily to ensure the adeq
of our margin and make margin calls as neededoawed Typically, but not always, the parties agiee minimum threshold amount
margin calls so as to avoid the need for nuisareeym calls on a daily basis.

At December 31, 2012, the weighted average hagcourepurchase agreement counterparties requireal lusld was approximately 5.¢
of the estimated fair value of the underlying cefal.

As discussed earlier, we invest a portion of oyitehin structured Agency RMBS. We do not funégh investments in the repurct
market but instead purchase directly, thus redueingut not eliminating - the Compasyreliance on access to repurchase agret
funding. The leverage inherent in structured sé&earreplaces the leverage obtained by acquirifigs€curities and funding them in
repurchase market. This structured MBS strategyblean a core element of the Company’s overalkimvent strategy since inception.

The following table summarizes the effect on oguidity and cash flows from contractual obligatidios repurchase agreements
interest expense on repurchase agreements.

(in thousands

Obligations Maturing
Within One One to Three Three to Five More than

Year Years Years Five Years Total
Repurchase agreemel $ 103,94. $ - % - $ - $ 103,94:
Interest expense on repurchase agreen(l) 73 - - - 73
Totals $ 104,01 $ - $ - 3 - $ 104,01«

@) Interest expense on repurchase agreements is hasexdirrent interest rates as of December 31, 204@ the remaining term of t
liabilities existing at that date

In the coming periods, we expect to continue tariite our activities in a manner that is consisteith our current operations \
repurchase agreements. As of December 31, 201Badieash and cash equivalents of $2.5 million. géfeerated cash flows of $12.1 mill
from principal and interest payments on our MBS $B681.0 million from repurchase agreement fundingrd) the year ended December
2012.

Stockholder’ Equity

On February 13, 2013, we announced the sale 00286 shares of common stock at a price of $15d0Glpare in a public offering. T
aggregate net proceeds we received before expenges sale were approximately $35.4 million. Tdféering was completed on February
2013. On February 14, 2013, the Comparbard of Directors declared a stock dividend whgr5.37 shares of common stock were is
for each share of common stock outstanding. 827 &tdres distributed as the dividend were issue@itoini on February 20, 201
immediately prior to Orchid initial public offering. For the years ended Baber 31, 2012 and 2011, the 981,665 common shalesh
includes the 154,110 shares of common stock owtstgrat December 31, 2012 and the 827,555 shasé&shdied as a stock dividend, is u
for the Company’s earnings per share computatamgimini has been the sole stockholder duringetitae period.
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Outlook
Regulatory Developments with Respect to Fannie ataeFreddie Mac and the Dodd-Frank Act

In response to the credit market disruption anddéteriorating financial conditions of Fannie Maeld&reddie Mac, Congress and
U.S. Treasury undertook a series of actions thehioated with putting Fannie Mae and Freddie Macamservatorship in September 2(
The FHFA now operates Fannie Mae and Freddie Mao@aservator, in an effort to stabilize the entitithe FHFA also noted that during
conservatorship period, it would work to enact magulations for minimum capital standards, prudsafety and soundness standards
portfolio limits of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.

Although the U.S. Government has committed sigaiftaesources to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, AgRIMBS guaranteed by eitt
Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac are not backed by tHddith and credit of the United States. Moreovbg Secretary of the U.S. Treasury n
that the guarantee structure of Fannie Mae anddigedac required examination and that changes éndtiuctures of the entities w
necessary to reduce risk to the financial systamchS®hanges may involve an explicit U.S. Governnimking of Fannie Mae and Frec
Mac Agency RMBS or the express elimination of amplied U.S. Government guarantee and, therefoeatiom of credit risk with respect
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac Agency RMBS. Additionadin February 11, 2011, the U.S. Treasury issub¢hde Paper titled Reforming
America’s Housing Finance Marketfiat lays out, among other things, proposals td kimpotentially wind down the role that Fannie éan(
Freddie Mac play in the mortgage market.

On October 4, 2012, the FHFA released a white papttled Building a New Infrastructure for the Secondary kMage Market(the
“FHFA White Paper”). This release follows up on tRdFA’s February 21, 2013trategic Plan for Enterprise Conservatorshipshich se
forth three goals for the next phase of the FaiMae and Freddie Mac conservatorships. These thoaks gre to (i) build a new infrastruct
for the secondary mortgage market, (ii) graduatiptcact Fannie Mae and Freddie Magresence in the marketplace while simplifying
shrinking their operations, and (iii) maintain fol@sure prevention activities and credit availapifior new and refinanced mortgages.
FHFA White Paper proposes a new infrastructurd-fomie Mae and Freddie Mac that has two basic goals

The first such goal is to replace the current, atgd infrastructures of Fannie Mae and Freddie Milc a common, more efficie
infrastructure that aligns the standards and prestof the two entities, beginning with core fuoct performed by both entities suct
issuance, master servicing, bond administratiofiatesal management and data integration. The skgwal is to establish an operai
framework for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac that isstsient with the progress of housing finance rafand encourages and accommoc
the increased participation of private capital #swaming credit risk associated with the secondargtgage market. The FHFA recognizes
there are a number of impediments to their goalelwvinmay or may not be surmountable, such as thenalesof any significant second
mortgage market mechanisms beyond Fannie Mae, ierbtict and Ginnie Mae, and that their proposalsratee formative stages. As a res
it is unclear if the proposals will be enactedsuth proposals are enacted, it is unclear how lglegeat is enacted will resemble the propao
from the FHFA White Paper or what the effects @ #mactment will be. See “Risk Factors — Risks fdldao Our Business “¥We cannc
predict the impact, if any, on our earnings or cashilable for distribution to our stockholderstbé FHFA's proposed revisions to Fan
Mae’s, Freddie Mac’s and Ginnie Mae’s existing astructures to align the standards and practicdseahree entities.”

The effect of the actions taken and to be takerthieyU.S. Treasury and FHFA remains uncertain. Givenpublic reaction to tl
substantial funds made available to Fannie MaeFaaddie Mac, future funding for both is likely tacke increased scrutiny. New and rece
enacted laws, regulations and programs relatecdtmiE Mae and Freddie Mac may adversely affecpttoéng, supply, liquidity and value
Agency RMBS and otherwise materially harm our bestand operations. See “Risk Factors — Risks &ktat Our Business —Fhe federe
conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac afated efforts, along with changes in laws and la@gns affecting the relationst
between Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the U.Se@ment, may materially adversely affect our bussnéinancial condition and results
operations and our ability to pay distributionoto stockholders.”
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The DoddFrank Act provides for new regulations on finandmsititutions and creates new supervisory and adyilsodies, including tt
new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau. The Diedahk Act tasks many agencies with issuing a wanénew regulations, including rul
related to mortgage origination and servicing, siization and derivatives. Because a significamiber of regulations under the DoEdank
Act have either not yet been proposed or not yenkadopted in final form, it is not possible fortaspredict how the Dodé&rank Act will
impact our business. See “Risk Factors — RiskstBalo Our Business -Actions of the U.S. Government for the purposetabiizing the
financial markets may adversely affect our businésancial condition and results of operations anal ability to pay distributions to ¢
stockholders.”

Interest Rates

The Federal Reserve has taken a number of stepsheviast few years to lower both short and ltewgr interest rates. In August 20
the Federal Reserve announced that it expecteditotam the Federal Funds Rate at a low levelagtlthrough mid2013, and on January ;
2012 it extended that outlook through late 2014difidnally, on September 21, 2011, the Federal Resannounced the extension of
maturities of its U.S. Treasury securities portidy selling approximately $400 billion in shaetrm U.S. Treasury securities and purchasir
equivalent amount of longer-term U.S. Treasury gges. This program, known as “Operation Twiggsted through December 2012. The
of Operation Twist was to lower the yields on lorterm U.S. Treasury securities, which in turn shdalger interest rates that are tied to ¢
yields, such as mortgage rates and interest ratesrmmercial loans

In September 2012, the Federal Reserve announcedeamended program to expand its holdings of lengy securities by purchas
an additional $40 billion of Agency RMBS per monthtil key economic indicators, such as the unemplayt rate, showed signs
improvement. This program, known as “QE3”, when borad with other programs to extend the averagauntatof the Federal Reseng’
holdings of securities and reinvest principal pagtag€from the Federal Reserseholdings of agency debt and Agency RMBS into Ay
RMBS, was expected to increase the Federal Reseimgddings of longerm securities by $85 billion each month. The FedBeserve als
announced that it would keep the target range HferRederal Funds Rate between zero and 0.25% thraugeast mid2015, which is si
months longer than previously expected.

The Federal Reserve provided further guidancedaonthrket in December 2012 by stating that it ineehtb keep the Federal Funds |
close to zero while the unemployment rate is al®®86 and as long as inflation does not rise aboB&62In December 2012, the Fed
Reserve also announced that it would initially belguying $45 billion of longerm Treasury bonds each month and noted that aoncun
may increase in the future. This bond purchaserprogeplaced the program known as “Operation Twist,which the Federal Resel
repurchased approximately $45 billion of long-téfreasury bonds each month and sold approximatelgdme amount of shagrm Treasur
bonds. The Federal Reserve expects these measyresdownward pressure on long-term interest rates

As a result of the outcome of the federal eleciioiNovember 2012, the federal government is expletdecontinue its policies
increasing home loan refinance opportunities irat@mpt to prevent foreclosures. One possible effethese policies could be an increas
prepayment rates on the securities in which wesnvehe confluence of this effect with heightenedea prices in the wake of QE3 could
downward pressure on our net interest margin.

Although historically correlated with movementstie Federal Funds Rate, European ihi@nk lending rates, specifically LIBOR,
independently affected by the fiscal and budgetanblems of the member countries of the EuropeaiorJrThe European Central Ba
International Monetary Fund and member countriagl@ovided emergency funding mechanisms to supperhbers facing the inability
raise new debt at acceptable levels (such as Gréetand, Portugal and Spain). To the extent dnisis persists or worsens, LIBOR n
increase substantially.
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Although, long-term interest rates are currentliiatorically low levels, they are still high ralad to shortterm interest rates. We belie
that the relationship between long and shent interest rates will remain relatively unchashg® long as the U.S. economic recovery
inflation rates remain tepid. If the economic reexgvwere to strengthen or inflation rates increfise,Federal Reserve may decide to aba
its current lowinterest rate policies and/or increase intereststailthough an increase in the Federal Funds watgd most likely result in ¢
increase in LIBOR, other European-specific factetgh as a credit disruption in the European ibserk credit market, could cause an incr
in LIBOR independent of movements in the FederaldsuRate.

Prepayment Rates, Refinancings and Loan Modifinafimgrams

As a result of the Federal Reservénterest rate policy and global economic condgjgprevailing interest rates, especially mort
interest rates, are at historically low levels. &mtly, lower mortgage interest rates leads toeased refinancings and, conseque
prepayments on mortgages and RMBS. However, asult & the continuing depressed levels of homeggsr{due in part to the supply of r
and existing homes for sale, plus the “shadimwentory of homes expected to be on the market essult of future foreclosures) and
increased underwriting standards of lenders, rafiimg activity has yet to react to prevailing imtstr rate incentives available to borrower
market participants expected.

In response to the low level of refinancing acyivihe Obama administration has instituted progreoressist borrowers struggling w
their mortgage payments or unable to refinance.example, the government has expanded the HARRarggvhich is a program where
eligible borrowers who owe more money on their gage loans than the value of their homes (commimbyvn as being “underwatedh ¢
mortgage loan) can receive assistance refinanbigig inortgage loans by loosening the eligibilitguaements for refinancing. In respons
the expanded HARP program, Fannie Mae and Freddie Nave announced guidelines for compliance with ¢lxpanded progra
Additionally, in March 2010 both Fannie Mae anddgéie Mac announced they would purchase all mortgézgns that are more than 120 ¢
delinquent from the pools of mortgage loans undegRMBS they have issued.

Current programs such as the Home Affordable Modifon Program, or HAMP, and the Principal Reductidternative, or the PR,
are designed to assist borrowers in modifying thrartgage loans.

During his State of the Union address on January2042, President Obama alluded to additional stépsdministration intended
take to further its refinancing and loan modifioatiefforts. The details of the Presidenplan were released on February 1, 2012 and iac
proposal to allow homeowners with “underwater” rgages to refinance with lower-rate, FHA-insured tgage loans.

Effect on Us

Regulatory developments, movements in interessratel prepayment rates as well as loan modificgirograms affect us in ma
ways, including the following:

Effects on our Assets
A change in or elimination of the guarantee strretnf Agency RMBS may increase our costs (if, fomraple, guarantee fees increi
or require us to change our investment strategygather. For example, the elimination of the gue@rstructure of Agency RMBS may ca

us to change our investment strategy to focus erAgency RMBS, which in turn would require us to sfgrantly increase our monitoring
the credit risks of our investments in additionrti@rest rate and prepayment risks.
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Lower longterm interest rates can affect the value of ournfsgeRMBS in a number of ways. If prepayment ratesralatively low (due
in part, to the refinancing problems described a&polower long-term interest rates can increasevtiee of highelcoupon Agency RMB!
This is because investors typically place a premiumrassets with yields that are higher than mayiedtls. Although lower longerm interes
rates may increase asset values in our portfokomay not be able to invest new funds in similgiblding assets.

If prepayment levels increase, the value of ouregeRMBS affected by such prepayments may decliiés is because a princij
prepayment accelerates the effective term of amg&g&MBS, which would shorten the period during ethan investor would receive above
market returns (assuming the yield on the prepagktais higher than market yields). Also, prepaymonceeds may not be able to
reinvested in similagielding assets. Agency RMBS backed by mortgagdh high interest rates are more susceptible togyment ris
because holders of those mortgages are most ligelfinance to a lower rate. 10s and IIOs, howgewmaay be the types of Agency RMBS nr
sensitive to increased prepayment rates. Becagsbdlder of an 10 or IO receives no principal payns, the values of IOs and IIOs
entirely dependent on the existence of a prindiaénce on the underlying mortgages. If the prialci@lance is eliminated due to prepayn
IOs and 1IOs essentially become worthless. Althoingheased prepayment rates can negatively affiectalue of our 10s and 110s, they h
the opposite effect on POs. Because POs act likeeceipon bonds, meaning they are purchased at autisto their par value and have
effective interest rate based on the discount haddrm of the underlying loan, an increase in ayapent rates would reduce the effective 1
of our POs and accelerate the yields earned o thesets, which would increase our net income.

Because we base our investment decisions on rislagemnent principles rather than anticipated movésnannterest rates, in a vola
interest rate environment we intend to allocateermapital to structured Agency RMBS with shorterations, such as shaefm fixed an
floating rate CMOs. We believe these securitiesehayower sensitivity to changes in lotegm interest rates than other asset classes. W
also mitigate our exposure to changes in lterga interest rates by investing in 10s and [IOjaol typically have different sensitivities
changes in long-term interest rates than pass-ghréiggency RMBS, particularly pass-through Agency B3/backed by fixed-rate mortgages.

We do not believe our investment portfolio will beterially affected by loan modification programecause Agency RMBS backed
loans that would qualify for such programs (i.eiassly delinquent loans) will be purchased by Rariviae and Freddie Mac at their par vi
prior to the implementation of such programs. Hogre¥f Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were to modifgnd their repurchase programs
the U.S. Government modified its loan modificatiprograms to modify nodelinquent mortgage loans, our investment portfobald be
negatively impacted.

Effects on our borrowing costs

We leverage our paskrough Agency RMBS portfolio and a portion of atiructured Agency RMBS with principal balances tigio the
use of shorterm repurchase agreement transactions. The ihtextes on our debt are determined by market lesfelsoth the Federal Fur
Rate and LIBOR. An increase in the U.S. FederaddBuRate or LIBOR would increase our borrowing costsich could affect our interest r.
spread if there is no corresponding increase inintexest we earn on our assets. This would be m@stalent with respect to our Agel
RMBS backed by fixed rate mortgage loans becauseéntierest rate on a fixaedte mortgage loan does not change even thoughetnaate
may change.

In order to protect our net interest margin againsteases in shoterm interest rates, we may enter into interest savaps, whic
effectively convert our floating-rate repurchaseeggnent debt to fixed-rate debt.
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Summary

The relatively large spread between short and tengrinterest rates has positively affected ourimterest margin. However, change
prepayment rates could negatively affect our netr@st margin and the value of our assets. Furthiernincreases in the Federal Funds
and LIBOR could significant increase our financowsgts, which could lower our net interest margin.

In addition, as discussed above, due to econonmdittons in the United States and Europe, inter@sts are at exceptionally low lev
and are expected to remain low for an extendedgefihe low level of interest rates has impactediével of refinancing activity on Agen
RMBS and yields on assets available to us. Refingnactivity has accelerated and may acceleratinduras the housing finance indu
slowly recovers from the financial crisis that eget in 2008. Yields on assets available to us l@se declined, especially since the |
Federal Reserve commenced “Operation Twist” in 28id announced an open-ended program to expahdlitings of longeterm securitie
by purchasing an additional $40 billion of AgencyIBS per month beginning in September 2012. In raspdo these developments, we t
allocated capital from the pasrough Agency RMBS portfolio to the structured Agg RMBS portfolio to avoid excessive prepaymerdtsz
margin calls and to maintain a low duration on ploetfolio as a whole. The structured Agency RMBStipdio typically has a much low
duration, which is typically a negative duratiorurfher, in order to avoid excessive prepaymentdpen the pastirough Agency RMB
portfolio, we often acquire assets with less expps prepayments, and such assets have a longafictiubecause they are genet
collateralized by 15 or 30 year mortgages. Thisaases the need to add structured Agency RMBS totama a low duration for the to
portfolio. Borrowing costs have not been affectgdhese developments and remain at historicallylexels.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordatitbteGAAP. GAAP requires our management to makaeacomplex and subjecti
decisions and assessments. Our most critical atiogupolicies involve decisions and assessmentstwhbould significantly affect report
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Maragdmas identified its most critical accountingipiels:

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Our investments in Agency RMBS are accounted fateurthe fair value option. We acquire our Agency B3/for the purpose
generating long-term returns, and not for the stearh investment of idle capital. Changes in the Jalue of securities accounted for unde!
fair value option are reflected as part of ourinebme or loss in our statement of operations pgp®sed to a component of other comprehe
income in our statement of stockholder’s equitih#y were instead reclassified as availablesfe securities. We elected to account for ¢
our Agency RMBS under the fair value option in arttereflect changes in the fair value of our AgeRMMBS in our statement of operatic
which we believe more appropriately reflects theuhes of our operations for a particular reportpariod. GAAP requires the use of a three
level valuation hierarchy to disclose the clasatfien of fair value measurements used for detenmirthe fair value of our Agency RME
These levels include:

- Level 1 valuations, where the valuation is basedjoated market prices for identical assets or littds traded in active marke
(which include exchanges and c-the-counter markets with sufficient volum

« Level 2 valuations, where the valuation is baseduwsted market prices for similar instruments tchiteactive markets, quoted pri
for identical or similar instruments in markets tttae not active and modbased valuation techniques for which all signifi
assumptions are observable in the market,

« Level 3 valuations, where the valuation is generftem modelbased techniques that use significant assumptioinshservable in tt
market, but observable based on Company- spedtfia. @hese unobservable assumptions reflect thep@uyis own estimates f
assumptions that market participants would useriting the asset or liability. Valuation techniquigically include option pricin
models, discounted cash flow models and similanrigies, but may also include the use of markeeprof assets or liabilities t
are not directly comparable to the subject asskaloitity.
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Our Agency RMBS are valued using Level 2 valuaticarsd such valuations currently are determined uny manager based on
average of thirgrarty broker quotes and/or by independent pricg@es when available. Because the price estinmadgsvary, our manag
must make certain judgments and assumptions aheuwpropriate price to use to calculate the falues. Alternatively, our manager ca
opt to have the value of all of our positions inedgy RMBS determined by either an independent-{béndy or do so internally.

In managing our portfolio, Bimini Advisors emplotree following fourstep process at each valuation date to determinéathvalue ¢
our Agency RMBS:

« First, our Manager obtains fair values from a stipfion-based independent pricing source. These pricassac:by both our Manag
as well as our repurchase agreement counterpamydaily basis to establish margin requirement®éorborrowings

« Second, our Manager requests non-binding quotes dree to four brokedealers for each of its Agency RMBS in order tadate th
values obtained by the pricing service. Our Managquests these quotes from bro#leelers that actively trade and make marke
the respective asset class for which the quotegseasted

« Third, our Manager reviews the values obtainedheypricing source and the broker-dealers for ctersiy across similar assets.

« Finally, if the data from the pricing services am@kerdealers is not homogenous or if the data obtaiseiddonsistent with o
Managers market observations, our Manager makes a judgtoesi¢termine which price appears the most comgistéh observe
prices from similar assets and selects that pflioghe extent our Manager believes that none optiees are consistent with obser
prices for similar assets, which is typically trese for only an immaterial portion of our portfodiach quarter, our Manager may u
third price that is consistent with observed prif@sidentical or similar assets. In the case dets that have quoted prices suc
Agency RMBS backed by fixethte mortgages, our Manager generally uses theeduwt observed market price. For assets su
Agency RMBS backed by ARMs or structured Agency RdjBur Manager may determine the price based owidihe or spread th
is identical to an observed transaction or a sinaitset for which a dealer mark or subscrij-based price has been obtain

Management believes its pricing methodology to drescstent with the definition of fair value desetbin FASB ASC 820Fair Value
Measurement.

Repurchase Agreemet

We finance the acquisition of a portion of our AgerRMBS through repurchase transactions under maspairchase agreemel
Repurchase transactions will be treated as cadliized financing transactions and will be carriethair contractual amounts, including acct
interest.

In instances where we acquire Agency RMBS throgglurchase agreements with the same counterpanmyvittom the Agency RME
were purchased, we account for the purchase comamit@nd repurchase agreement on a net basis aodi racforward commitment
purchase Agency RMBS as a derivative instrumenheéf transaction does not comply with the criteiaFASB ASC 860,Transfers an
Servicing, for gross presentation. If the transaction coewphvith the criteria for gross presentation, wesen¢ the assets and the rel
financing on a gross basis in our statements ahfitial condition, and the corresponding interesbine and interest expense in our stateme
operations. Such forward commitments are recordégiravalue with subsequent changes in fair vakeognized in income. Additionally, \
record the cash portion of our investment in AgeR&4BS as a mortgage related receivable from thetesparty on our balance sheet.

Income Recognitio

Since we commenced operations, we have electezttwat for all of our Agency RMBS under the faifuaoption.
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All of our Agency RMBS are either patisrough securities or structured Agency RMBS, idiolg CMOs, IOs, 110s or POs. Income
passthrough securities, POs and CMOs that contain gratdbalances is based on the stated interestafathe security. As a result
accounting for our MBS under the fair value optipremium or discount present at the date of puelmsot amortized. For IOs, 110s ¢
CMOs that do not contain principal balances, incasreccrued based on the carrying value and tleet@fé yield. As cash is received it is f
applied to accrued interest and then to reducectlreying value of the security. At each reportingted the effective yield is adjus
prospectively from the reporting period based om iew estimate of prepayments, current interessrahd current asset prices. The
effective yield is calculated based on the carryiague at the end of the previous reporting pertbe, new prepayment estimates anc
contractual terms of the security. Changes invalue of all of our Agency RMBS during the peria@ aecorded in earnings and reporte
losses on mortgageacked securities in the accompanying statemeopefations. For IO securities, effective yield andome recognitia
calculations also take into account the index valpglicable to the security.

Capital Expenditures

At December 31, 2012, we had no material commitsémtcapital expenditures.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012, we did not have any oféfiee sheet arrangements.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadeur stockholders of at least 90% of our REITata® income, determined witht
regard to the deduction for dividends paid and widlg any net capital gains. We declared our fifrgidend payment on March 8, 201:
stockholders of record as of March 25, 2013 in mownt of $0.135 per share of our common stock paya March 27, 2013. We intenc
pay regular monthly dividends to our stockholders.
Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are engst rate sensitive in nature. As a result, isterates and other factors influence
performance far more so than does inflation. Changenterest rates do not necessarily correlatd wiflation rates or changes in inflat
rates. Our financial statements are prepared iordaace with GAAP and our distributions will be elebined by our Board of Directc
consistent with our obligation to distribute to atiockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable ine@mn an annual basis in order to mair
our REIT qualification; in each case, our activtiand balance sheet are measured with referenuisttwical cost and/or fair market va
without considering inflation.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Not Applicable.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Orchid Island Capital, Inc.
Vero Beach, Florida

We have audited the accompanying balance she&scbid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Companyd¥ of December 31, 2012 and 2011 ans
related statements of operations, stockhotdequity, and cash flows for each of the two yéathe period ended December 31, 2012. T
financial statements are the responsibility of @empanys management. Our responsibility is to exprespinion on these financ
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstas of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to haee, were we engaged to perform, an audit of iterival control over financi
reporting. Our audits included consideration dkinal control over financial reporting as a bdeis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiverdthe Company' internal control ow
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express notsopinion. An audit also includes examining, orest basis, evidence supporting the amc
and disclosures in the financial statements, asgpfse accounting principles used and signifiesiimates made by management, as wi
evaluating the overall financial statement pregéria We believe that our audits provide a reabtmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® financial position of the Company

December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results aipisations and its cash flows for each of the twary in the period ended Decembel
2012, in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

West Palm Beach, Florida /s/ BDO USA, LLF
March 22, 2013 Certified Public Accountan
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 and 201:

2012

2011

ASSETS:
Mortgagebacked securities, at fair val
Pledged to counterparti

$109,604,55 $ 46,640,03

Unpledgec 5,775,01! 9,361,54
Total mortgag-backed securitie 115,379,57 56,001,58
Cash and cash equivalel 2,537,25 1,891,91.
Restricted cas 449,00( 90,75(
Accrued interest receivab 440,87 374,56(
Due from Bimini Capital Management, Ir 45,12¢ -
Prepaid expenses and other assets 9,127 9,96¢
Total Assets $118,860,95 $ 58,368,77
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

Repurchase agreeme; $103,941,17 $ 44,325,00
Accrued interest payab 54,08¢ 11,49¢
Due to Bimini Capital Management, Ir - 238,06:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other 140,72: 14,58
Total Liabilities 104,135,98 44,589,14
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY:
Common Stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 sharémemned: 154,111

shares issued and outstanding as of December 32,&8@ 150,00

shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 1,541 1,50(C
Additional paic-in capital 15,409,45 14,998,50
Accumulated deficit (686,025 (1,220,36)
Total Stockholder's Equity 14,724,97 13,779,63

Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity
See Notes to Financial Stateme
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 20

2012 2011

Interest incom: 2,697,92. $ 1,770,95
Interest expens (277,329 (96,227)
Net interest income 2,420,59 1,674,73
Realized (losses) gains on mortg-backed securitie (307,799 409,82!
Unrealized losses on mortgebacked securitie (805,93 (1,544,17)
Losses on Eurodollar futures contre (39,725 (138,52}
Net portfolio income 1,267,14; 401,86(
Expenses:

Audit, legal and other professional fe 177,90¢ 1,114,71
Direct REIT operating expens 448,87 344,70t
Other administrativi 106,01: 132,65
Total expenses 732,79¢ 1,592,08!
Net income (loss 534,34 $ (1,190,21)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per shai 05¢ $ (1.27)

See Notes to Financial Stateme
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 20

Additional
Paid-in Accumulated
Common
Stock Capital Deficit Total
Balances, January 1, 20 $ 441 $ 4,404,555 $ (30,159 $ 4,374,84
Net loss - - (1,190,219 (1,190,21)
Common shares issu 1,05¢ 10,593,94 - 10,595,00
Balances, December 31, 20 1,50C 14,998,50 (1,220,36) 13,779,63
Net income - - 534,34 534,34.
Common shares issued 41 410,95¢ - 411,00t
Balances, December 31, 20 $ 1541 $ 1540945 $ (686,02) $ 14,724,97

See Notes to Financial Stateme

69




ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 20

2012

2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by (used in) operating activit

$  53434: $ (1,190,21)

Realized and unrealized losses on mort-backed securitie 1,113,72 1,134,34.
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Accrued interest receivab (66,317) (281,239
Prepaid expenses and other as 791 (9,969
Accrued interest payab 42,58¢ 7,08¢
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and 126,14( 14,58
Due to Bimini Capital Management, Ir 127,81: 217,97:
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIE: 1,879,08! (107,429
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
From mortgag-backed securities investmen

Purchase (199,077,87) (71,494,48)
Sales 129,068,51 33,534,66
Principal repayment 9,517,69! 6,666,55!
Increase in restricted ca (358,25() (90,750)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (60,849,91) (31,384,01)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from repurchase agreem 581,462,51 189,968,64
Principal payments on repurchase agreen (521,846,33) (168,376,32)
Proceeds from issuance of common sh - 10,595,00
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 59,616,17 32,187,31
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 645,341 695,87
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the ye 1,891,91. 1,196,03!
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the ye $ 253725 $ 1,891,91
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year fc

Interest $ 234,740 % 89,13¢
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH FINANCING ACTIV ITIES:

Issuance of common shares to repay amount duerimBCapital Management, In $ 411,000 $ -

See Notes to Financial Stateme
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ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING P OLICIES
Organization and Business Description

Orchid Island Capital, Inc., (“Orchid” or the “Comapy”), was incorporated in Maryland on August 17, 2010tfier purpose of creating &
managing a leveraged investment portfolio congstif residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMB3From incorporation throug
February 20, 2013 Orchid was a wholly owned subsjdiof Bimini Capital Management, Inc. (“Bimini”)Orchid began operations
November 24, 2010 (the date of commencement ofadipes). From incorporation through November 24, Orchi(s only activity was tF
issuance of common stock to Bimini. On FebruaryZ3, Orchid completed the initial public offagi(iIPO”) of its Common Stock in whic
it sold approximately 2.4 million shares of its aoon stock and raised proceeds of approximately4$88llion. Following the IPO, Bimit
owns approximately 29.38% of Orchid’s outstandingimon stock.

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements are prepamettie accrual basis of accounting in accordantle agcounting principles genere
accepted in the United States (“GAAPThe preparation of financial statements in confeymith GAAP requires management to m
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemlints of assets and liabilities and disclosuafingent assets and liabilities at the da
the financial statements and the reported amoumsvenues and expenses during the reporting pefiotlial results could differ from thc
estimates. The significant estimates affecting dlseompanying financial statements are the faiuaglof MBS and Eurodollar futu
contracts.

Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

In accordance with the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard’s Accounting Standards Codification (“FASESC”) Topic 220
Comprehensive Incomea statement of comprehensive income has not inetuded as the Company has no items of other cehgmsiv
income. Comprehensive income (loss) is the sanmetaisicome (loss) for the periods presented.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depitkifinancial institutions and highly liquid invesents with original maturities of thr
months or less. Restricted cash, totaling $0 art|08® at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivepresents cash held by a broke
margin on Eurodollar futures contracts. Restrictash, totaling $449,000 and $57,000 at Decembe2@2 and 2011, respectively, repres
cash held on deposit as collateral with the remselagreement counterparties, which may be usedke principal and interest payment:
the related repurchase agreements.

The Company maintains cash balances at two bankis,ad times, balances may exceed federally inslim&its. The Company has r
experienced any losses related to these balantlesointerest bearing cash balances were fully insutddegember 31, 2012 and 2011
to a temporary federal program in effect from Debem31, 2010 through December 31, 2012. Under thgram, there is no limit to t
amount of insurance for eligible accounts. Begignin 2013, insurance coverage will revert to $280,@er depositor at each finan
institution, and our non-interest bearing cashi@a may again exceed federally insured limits.
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Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company invests primarily in mortgage passtthho(“PT") certificates, collateralized mortgageigations, and interest only (“1Q”
securities and inverse interest only (“llO”) seties representing interest in or obligations backgdpools of mortgagbacked loar
(collectively, “MBS”). MBS transactions are recorded on the trade datesélimvestments meet the requirements to be dtabsi§ availab
for sale under ASC 320-10-2Bebt and Equity Securitiggvhich requires the securities to be carried atWalue on the balance sheet v
changes in fair value charged to other comprehenisistome, a component of stockholdegquity). However, the Company has electe
account for its investment in MBS under the failueaoption. Electing the fair value option allothe Company to record changes in fair v
in the statement of operations, which, in managé¢memew, more appropriately reflects the result®af operations for a particular report
period and is consistent with the underlying ecoiesrand how the portfolio is managed.

The fair value of the Company’s investments in MiBQjoverned by FASB ASC 82Fair Value Measurement The definition of fai
value in FASB ASC 820 focuses on the price thatldidne received to sell the asset or paid to trarske liability in an orderly transacti
between market participants at the measurement dédwe fair value measurement assumes that thedcton to sell the asset or transfet
liability either occurs in the principal market fhre asset or liability, or in the absence of agipgal market, occurs in the most advantag
market for the asset or liability. Estimated faalues for MBS are based on the average of théndy broker quotes received and/or indeper
pricing sources when available.

Income on PT MBS securities is based on the siatedest rate of the security. Premiums or discopmésent at the date of purchase
not amortized. For 10 securities, the income israed based on the carrying value and the effegtislel. Cash received is first applied
accrued interest and then to reduce the carryihgev#\t each reporting date, the effective yieldadjusted prospectively from the repor
period based on the new estimate of prepaymentsttendontractual terms of the security. For lIOws#ies, effective yield and incor
recognition calculations also take into accountititeex value applicable to the security. Changefiinvalue of MBS during each report
period are recorded in earnings and reported asalined gains or losses on mortgdgeked securities in the accompanying statemel
operations.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has entered into Eurodollar futuresraots to manage interest rate risk, facilitatestiability strategies and manage o
exposures, and it may continue to do so in theréufihe Company has elected to not treat any afetivative financial instruments as hed
FASB ASC Topic 815Derivatives and Hedging requires that all derivative instruments be eafrat fair value. Changes in fair value
recorded in earnings for each period.

Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 825Financial Instruments requires disclosure of the fair value of finahamstruments for which it is practicable to estin
that value, either in the body of the financiatetaents or in the accompanying notes. MBS and Ellaxdutures contracts are accounted f
fair value in the balance sheet. The methods asdn#stions used to estimate fair value for thesglunmsents are presented in Note 11 of
financial statements.

The estimated fair value of cash and cash equitgleestricted cash, accrued interest receivabbngid expenses and other assets

from/to Bimini Capital Management, Inc., repurchaggeements, accrued interest payable, accountblegayaccrued expenses and ot
generally approximates their carrying values aBetember 31, 2012 and 2011 due to the short-tetarenaf these financial instruments.
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Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of the majaftits PT MBS through the use of repurchase agesgs. Repurchase agreement:
treated as collateralized financing transactiond are carried at their contractual amounts, inclgdaccrued interest, as specified in
respective agreements. Although structured aseaaal repurchase obligation, a repurchase agreempendtes as a financing under wl
securities are pledged as collateral to secured-sdrm loan equal in value to a specified percen{ggaerally between 92 and 95 percen
the market value of the pledged collateral. Wh#edias collateral, the borrower retains benefmiatership of the pledged collateral, incluc
the right to distributions. At the maturity of aptechase agreement, the borrower is required tayrépe loan and concurrently receive
pledged collateral from the lender or, with the samt of the lender, renew such agreement at theptevailing financing rate. Margin ca
whereby a lender requires that the Company pledightianal securities or cash as collateral to sedoorrowings under its repurch
agreements with such a lender, are expected touteely experienced by the Company when the valfuthe MBS pledged as collate
declines, or as a result of principal amortizationgue to changes in market interest rates, spreladther market conditions.

The Companys repurchase agreements typically have terms rgrfigbm 24 days to six months at inception, with sohaving longe
terms. Should a counterparty decide not to renegparchase agreement at maturity, the Company eithr&lr refinance with another lende
be in a position to satisfy the obligation. If, ohgr the term of a repurchase agreement, a lendeiidfile for bankruptcy, the Company mi
experience difficulty recovering its pledged assefisich could result in an unsecured claim agaihnstlender for the difference between
amount loaned to the Company plus interest du@docounterparty and the fair value of the colldtptadged to such lender, including
accrued interest receivable and cash posted bgahgpany as collateral. At December 31, 2012, thegamy had outstanding balances u
repurchase agreements with four lenders with ammax amount at risk (the difference between thewaméaned to the Company, includ
interest payable, and the fair value of securjtiesiged, including accrued interest on such seesyibf $6.3 million.

Earnings Per Share

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 2Barnings Per ShareBasic earnings per share (“EP&'calculated as net inco
or loss attributable to common stockholders divithgdthe weighted average number of shares of comstmek outstanding or subscrit
during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated ughmgy“if converted’method for common stock equivalents, if any. Howetlee common stot
equivalents are not included in computing diluté&Hf the result is anti-dilutive.

Income Taxes

Bimini has elected to be taxed as a real estatestiment trust (“REIT”)under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ame(itie
“Code”), and, until the closing of its IPO on Feary 20, 2013, Orchid was a “qualified REIT subsigiaof Bimini under the Code. Beginni
with its short tax period beginning February 2012@nd ending December 31, 2013, Orchid expeattetti and intends to qualify to be ta
as a REIT. REITs are generally not subject to f@dancome tax on their REIT taxable income prodidthat they distribute to thi
stockholders at least 90% of their REIT taxable@me on an annual basis. In addition, a REIT mustrather provisions of the Code to re
its tax status.

Orchid recognizes and measures its unrecognizetieéagfits in accordance with FASB ASC 74@come Taxes Under that guidanc
Orchid assesses the likelihood, based on theirmteah merit, that tax positions will be sustainepon examination based on the fe
circumstances and information available at the @helach period. All of Orchid’ tax positions are categorized as highly certaimere is n
accrual for any tax, interest or penalties relate@rchid’s tax position assessment. The measurement ofagnmized tax benefits is adjus
when new information is available, or when an eemurs that requires a change.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting StandaRibard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Upd@SU”) No. 2013904,
Liabilities (Topic 405)- Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several LiapiArrangements for Which the Total Amount of @i#igation ¢
Fixed at the Reporting Date ("ASU 2(-04") . The objective of the amendments in this update iprovide guidance for the recogniti
measurement, and disclosure of obligations reguftiom joint and several liability arrangements ¥anich the total amount of the obligat
within the scope of this guidance is fixed at thparting date, except for obligations addressetiwixisting GAAP. The amendments in A
201304 are effective for fiscal years, and interim pdsi within those years, beginning after DecembeR20%3, and should be retrospecti
applied to all prior periods presented for thosigations resulting from joint and several liahjiliarrangements within the ASU's scope
exist at the beginning of an entity's fiscal yebhadoption. Early adoption is permitted. The Compédnes not expect that this ASU will hav
material impact on its financial statements.

In January 2013, FASB released ASU 2013@lance Sheet: Clarifying the Scope of Disclosalesut Offsetting Assets and Liabilities
which served solely to clarify the scope of finahénstruments included in ASU 20111- as there was concern about diversity in praciibe
objectives of ASU 2013-01 and ASU 2011-are to support further convergence of US GAAR BRS requirements. These updates
effective for annual reporting periods beginningasrafter January 1, 2013. We anticipate that theption of this ASU will have no effect
the Company’s financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 20118lisclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilitiesquiring improved informatic
about financial instruments and derivative instroteethat are either (1) offset in accordance wiBiCA210-20-45 or ASC 815-U4B or (2
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangenigis information will enable users of an ertjinancial statements to evaluate the e
or potential effect of netting arrangements on mtityés financial position, including the effect potential effect of rights of setoff associe
with certain financial instruments and derivatimstruments in the scope of this ASU. The Compamgquired to apply the amendments
annual periods beginning on or after January 1328d interim periods within those annual perio@lee disclosures required will be provi
retrospectively for all comparative periods presdntWe anticipate that the adoption of this ASUlI wave no effect on the Company’
financial statements.

In October 2011, the FASB issued a proposed ASULZMW, Financial Servicesavestment Companies: Amendments to the S
Measurement, and Disclosure Requireme, which would amend the criteria in Topic 946 fatermining whether an entity qualifies as
investment company for reporting purposes. As psedpthis ASU would affect the measurement, prasientand disclosure requirements
Investment Companies, as defined, amend the inesstoompany definition in ASC 946, and remove theent exemption for Real Est
Investment Trusts from this topic. If promulgatedits current form, this proposal may result in atenial modification to the presentatior
the Companys consolidated financial statements. On December@22, the FASB agreed that the accounting fol estate investmer
should be considered in a second phase of thetmees Companies project and that all REITs shoeléXxempted from conclusions reache
phase | of the project. The Board has not yet abjogethe scope of phase Il of the project. The Camgps monitoring developments relate
this proposal and is evaluating the effects it wichdve on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-BEesentation of Comprehensive Incoymemending the authoritative guidance to alloy
entity the option to present the total of compredivm income, the components of net income, andctémponents of other comprehen:
income either in a single continuous statemenbairehensive income or in two separate but consecstatements. In both choices, an e
is required to present each component of net incalorgg with total net income, each component oéottomprehensive income along wi
total for other comprehensive income, and a tatauant for comprehensive income. This ASU elimindkesoption to present the compon
of other comprehensive income as part of the setemf changes in stockholdeejuity, but does not change the items that museperte:
in other comprehensive income or when an item b&otomprehensive income must be reclassified taneeme. The provisions of tt
amendment require retrospective application, arceffective for annual and interim periods begigréfter December 15, 2011. The adof
of this ASU had no effect on the Company'’s finahstatements.
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In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-@mendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasureamehDisclosure Requirements
U.S. GAAP and IFRSdurther converging U.S. GAAP and Internationaidticial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The ASU chatigesvording
used to describe many of the requirements in GAdPhfeasuring fair value and for disclosing inforimatabout fair value measurement
ensure consistency between GAAP and IFRSs as webxpand the disclosures for Level 3 measuremdrits. ASU is to be applit
prospectively, and is effective for annual andrinmteperiods beginning after December 15, 2011. dthaption of this ASU had no effect on
Company’s financial statements.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-0Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurch@ggeements which changes tl
assessment of whether repurchase agreement tiansashould be accounted for as sales or secuneshdings. In a typical repurchi
agreement transaction, an entity transfers findrasiaets to the counterparty in exchange for cah an agreement for the counterpart
return the same or equivalent financial assetaffixed price in the future. Prior to this ASU,eoaf the factors in determining whether :
treatment could be used was whether the transfeadntained effective control of the transferredetéssnd in order to do so, the transf
must have the ability to repurchase such assetedan this ASU, the FASB concluded that the assesisof effective control should focus
a transferois contractual rights and obligations with respectransferred financial assets, rather than whethetransferor has the pract
ability to perform in accordance with those rigbtsobligations. Therefore, this ASU removes tlensferors ability to perform criterion fro
consideration of effective control. This ASU idegtive for the first interim or annual period beging on or after December 15, 2011. S
the Company records repurchase agreements as dgdmmewings and not sales, the adoption of thi&JAfd no effect on the Compasy’
financial statements.

NOTE 2. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES
The following table presents the Company’s MBS fotid as of December 31, 2012 and 2011

(in thousands

December 31

2012 2011

Pas«-Through Certificates:

Hybrid Adjustabl-rate Mortgage $ 59,48 $ 25,46¢
Adjustablerate Mortgage 6,531 -

Fixec-rate Mortgage 43,58¢ 21,17
Total Pas-Through Certificate 109,60! 46,64(
Structured MBS Certificates:

Interes-Only Securities 2,88¢ 1,63¢

Inverse Intere-Only Securities 2,891 7,724

Total Structured MBS Certificate 5,77¢ 9,36:
Total $ 115,38( $ 56,00:

The following table summarizes the CompanyIBS portfolio as of December 31, 2012 and 20ttoaling to their contractual maturiti
Actual maturities of MBS investments are generalprter than stated contractual maturities andaffexted by the contractual lives of
underlying mortgages, periodic payments of pringipad prepayments of principal.

(in thousands

December 31

2012 2011
Greater than five years and less than ten $ 12,98( $ 2,01«
Greater than or equal to ten ye 102,40( 53,98¢
Total $ 115,38( $ 56,00:
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NOTE 3. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had outstgndipurchase obligations of approximately $103.8iani with a net weighte
average borrowing rate of 0.49%. These agreenvesits collateralized by MBS with a fair value, indiong accrued interest, of approxima
$109.9 million, and cash pledged to counterparmieapproximately $0.4 million. As of December 2011, the Company had outstanc
repurchase obligations of approximately $44.3 orilliwith a net weighted average borrowing rate @&f4%. These agreements w
collateralized by MBS with a fair value, includirgcrued interest, of approximately $46.8 milliondacash pledged to the counterpart
approximately $0.1 million.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Companysrodase agreements had remaining maturities as atinad below:

(in thousands

OVERNIGHT BETWEEN 2 BETWEEN 31 GREATER

(1 DAY OR AND AND THAN
LESS) 30 DAYS 90 DAYS 90 DAYS TOTAL

December 31, 201.
Fair market value of securities pledged, incluc

accrued interest receivat $ - $ 109,86: $ - % - $ 109,86:
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated

these securitie $ - $ 103,94: $ - % - $ 103,94:
Net weighted average borrowing ri - 0.4<% - - 0.45%
December 31, 201.
Fair market value of securities pledged, incluc

accrued interest receivat $ - $ 46,78¢ % - % - $ 46,78¢
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated

these securitie $ - 8 4432 $ - % - 8 44,32¢
Net weighted average borrowing ri - 0.44% - - 0.44%

Summary information regarding the Company’s amoantssk with individual counterparties greaterrtHd)% of the Compang’equity
December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

(in thousands

Weighted
Average
Maturity of
Amount Repurchase
Agreements
Repurchase Agreement Counterpartie: at Risk @ in Days
December 31, 201;
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc $ 3,71¢ 18
South Street Securities, LL 1,802 7
December 31, 201.
Nomura Securities International, Ir $ 2,10(¢ 3C

(1) Equal to the fair value of securities sold, caskted as collateral, plus accrued interest receieabhinus the sum of repurchase agree;
liabilities and accrued interest payab

NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
In connection with the Compargyinterest rate risk management strategy, duriaditst quarter of 2011, the Company began econalig

hedging a portion of its interest rate risk by entp into derivative financial instrument contractBhe Company has not elected hed
treatment under GAAP, and as such all gains arsgfoen these instruments are reflected in earfingdl periods presented.
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As of December 31, 2011, such instruments were csep entirely of Eurodollar futures contracts.ratlollar futures are cash setl
futures contracts on an interest rate, with gamslasses credited and charged to the Comgamgcount on a daily basis. A minimum bala
or “margin”, is required to be maintained in the account onily thasis. The Company is exposed to the changealire of the futures by t
amount of margin held by the broker. The total amoof margin at December 31, 2011 was approxima$84,000, respectively, and
reflected in restricted cash. As of December 8122 the Company had no outstanding futures positio

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201Cdhmpany recorded losses of approximately $40,0@0 $139,000, respectively,
Eurodollar futures contracts.

NOTE 5. CAPITAL STOCK

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the total numbeshafes of capital stock which the Company had thlecaity to issue was 1,000,C
shares of $0.01 par value common stock.

In connection with the Company’s IPO in Februanl20the Compang charter was amended resulting in the followingndes to tt
Company’s capital structure.

Our authorized capital stock consists of 600,000,6Bares of which (i) 500,000,000 shares are dat#dgnas common stock and
100,000,000 shares are designated as preferrdd stxh with a par value of $0.01 per share. Hsldéshares of our common stock gene
have no preference, conversion, exchange, sinking,fredemption or appraisal rights and have nemptive rights to subscribe for ¢
securities of the Company. Subject to the provisiohour charter regarding restrictions on ownershid transfer of our stock, all holder:
our shares of common stock will have equal liguaraaind other rights.

Our charter authorizes our Board of Directors, withstockholder approval, to reclassify any unigssieares of our common stock i
other classes or series of stock and to estaliissimimber of shares in each class or series aset the preferences, conversion or other ri
voting powers (including voting rights exclusive Buch class or series), restrictions (includingthaat limitation, restrictions ¢
transferability), limitations as to dividends ohet distributions, qualifications and terms andditons of redemption for each such clas
series.

Our charter authorizes our Board of Directors, withstockholder approval, to classify any unissakdres of preferred stock anc
reclassify any previously classified but unissubkdrss of any class or series of preferred stodkr Bw issuance of shares of each clas
series, our Board of Directors is required by Mamngl law and our charter to set the preferences/ecsion or other rights, voting pow
(including voting rights exclusive to such classseries), restrictions (including, without limitaui, restrictions on transferability), limitations
to dividends or other distributions, qualificatioaad terms and conditions of redemption for eadh stlass or series. Thus, our Boar
Directors could authorize the issuance of shargweferred stock that have priority over our comrstatk with respect to dividends or rig
upon liquidation or with terms and conditions whiobuld have the effect of delaying, deferring oeyanting a transaction or a chang
control of the Company that might involve a premiprite for holders of our common stock or otherwiisen their best interests. No share
preferred stock have been issued, therefore n@newutstanding.

Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

In order to qualify as a REIT under the Code fochetaxable year beginning after December 31, 20L8,shares of stock must
beneficially owned by 100 or more persons durinteast 335 days of a taxable year of 12 monthsuongd a proportionate part of a sho
taxable year. Also, for our taxable years beginmfigr December 31, 2013, no more than 50% of #hgevof our outstanding shares of cay
stock may be owned, directly or constructively fivg or fewer individuals (as defined in the Codericlude certain entities) during the sec
half of any calendar year.
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Because our Board of Directors believes it is aspnt essential for us to qualify as a REIT, owrteh provides that, subject to cer
exceptions, no person or entity may beneficiallgonstructively own, or be deemed to own by virbfi¢he attribution provisions of the Co
more than 9.8% in value or in number of shareschdier is more restrictive, of the outstanding shaf any class or series of our ca
stock, or the ownership limit, except that Biminaynown up to 35.0% of our common stock so long iasifd continues to qualify as a REIT.

Our charter also prohibits any person from (i) Bierly or constructively owning or transferrindnares of our capital stock if st
ownership or transfer would result in our beingosgly held”under Section 856(h) of the Code (without regardvteether the ownerst
interest is held during the last half of a taxaj#ar) or otherwise cause us to fail to qualify &EAT and (ii) transferring shares of our cay
stock if such transfer would result in our capgaick being beneficially owned by fewer than 108spas (determined under the principle
Section 856(a)(5) of the Code). Any person who aeguor attempts or intends to acquire beneficialanstructive ownership of shares of
stock that will or may violate any of the foregoirgstrictions on transfer and ownership, or whitésintended transferee of shares of our ¢
which are transferred to the trust (as describéove will be required to give written notice immiately to us or in the case of a propose
attempted transaction, to give at least 15 dayier written notice, and provide us with such ath@dormation as we may request in orde
determine the effect, if any, of such transfer on status as a REIT. The foregoing restrictiongransfer and ownership will not apply if ¢
Board of Directors determines that it is no longerour best interests to attempt to qualify, orctmtinue to qualify, as a REIT, or t
compliance with the restrictions on transfer anchership is no longer required for us to qualifyaaREIT.

Our Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, maxempt (prospectively or retroactively) a persmnt certain of the limits describ
above and may establish or increase an excepte@rhiahit for such person. The person seeking amgtion must provide to our Board
Directors any such representations, covenants adértakings as our Board of Directors may deem @gpjpate in order to conclude tl
granting the exemption and/or establishing or iasiegy an excepted holder limit, as the case mayvlllenot cause us to fail to qualify a
REIT. Our Board of Directors may also require angifrom the IRS or an opinion of counsel in orttedetermine that granting the exemp
will not cause us to lose our qualification as d RHEn connection with granting a waiver of the cavghip limit or creating an excepted ho
limit or at any other time, our Board of Directansty from time to time increase or decrease the ostaie limit, subject to certain restrictions.

Common Stock Issuances

Subsequent to its organization and through Dece®bge2010, the Company received aggregate net @dscef $4,405,000 from Bimi
for the subscription to purchase 44,050 shareh@fCGompanys common stock. Orchid had 44,050 shares of comstmek subscribed f
issuance as of December 31, 2010. During March 2Bihiini contributed $3,095,000 in cash to the Campfor the subscription to purch
an aggregate of 30,950 additional shares of comstak of the Company. On April 29, 2011, 75,000rsbaf the Compang’common stoc
were issued to Bimini.

During July 2011, Bimini contributed $7,500,000cish to the Company for 75,000 additional shareswimon stock of the Company.

During July 2012, Bimini acquired 4,110 additiosalares of common stock of the Company in satigfaaif an amount due to Bimini
June 30, 2012 of approximately $411,000 for prianagement fees, overhead allocations and direensepreimbursements.

On February 20, 2013, Orchid completed the IPQotommon stock in which it sold 2,360,000 sharfessocommon stock and rais
proceeds of approximately $35,400,000.
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Stock Dividend

On February 14, 2013, OrchgBoard of Directors declared a stock dividend whgr5.37 shares of common stock were issued fd
share of common stock outstanding. The 827,555eshdistributed pursuant to this dividend were idstee Bimini on February 20, 201
immediately prior to the Company’s IPO.

Cash Dividend

On March 8, 2013, Orchid’'Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of 30 per share to shareholders of record as of iM2%¢ 201
payable on March 27, 2013.

NOTE 6. EXPENSES

The table below presents the Company’s operatipgreses for the years ended December 31, 2012 did 20

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
Legal fees $ - % 8,621
Other professional fee 177,90¢ 1,106,091
Direct REIT operating expens 448,87 344,70t
Other administrative expens 106,01« 132,65
Total expense $ 732,79¢ $ 1,592,08

As described in Note 12 below, under the terms wfamagement agreement, the Company paid Biminirsthtyomanagement fee, an
monthly expense fee which represents an allocaifonverhead expenses for items that include, betrat limited to, occupancy co:
insurance and administrative expenses. These expenre allocated based on the ratio of the Compamgsets and Bimirs’ consolidate
assets. Included in direct REIT operating experiseshe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 maregement fees and alloc:
expenses of approximately $335,000 and $253,080erzively.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynpéhdrew its Form St1 Registration Statement related to a proposédlipiublic
offering of its common stock. The Registrationt&taent was withdrawn due to market conditions.luided in other professional fees for
year ended December 31, 2011 were approximatelyrfillion of expenses related to this attemptetahpublic offering.

NOTE 7. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In October 2012, our Board of Directors adopted Birdini, then our sole stockholder, approved, 002 Equity Incentive Plan (t
“Incentive Plan”)to recruit and retain employees, directors androglkevice providers, including employees of our Eiger and other of o
affiliates. The Incentive Plan provides for the advaf stock options, stock appreciation rightscktaward, performance units, other equity
based awards (and dividend equivalents with respestvards of performance units and other eqoiétyed awards) and incentive awards.
Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensdafiommittee of our Board of Directors except that fulirBoard of Directors will administi
awards made to directors who are not employees of our affiliates. The Incentive Plan providesdwards of up to an aggregate of 10¢
the issued and outstanding shares of our commak $tm a fully diluted basis) at the time of theaads, subject to a maximum aggre:
4,000,000 shares of our common stock that may saeeds under the Incentive Plan. To date, no awaass been made under the Incer
Plan.
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NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company may become involiredarious claims and legal actions arising in thidinary course of busine
Management is not aware of any reported or unregardntingencies at December 31, 2012.

NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES

REIT taxable income (loss) is computed in accordamith the Code, which is different than Orclsidinancial statement net income (lc
computed in accordance with GAAP. These differer@sbe substantial. For the year ended Decemhe?032, Orchid has estimated RI
taxable income of approximately $1,689,000. Far year ended December 31, 2011, Orchidadd a REIT taxable loss of approxima
$637,000. The differences from GAAP net incomelass, as reported in the statements of operatiares,attributable to the fair val
adjustments on MBS and Eurodollar futures recofdedAAP totaling $846,000 and $1,683,000 for tleans ended December 31, 2012
2011, respectively, which are not taken into actaumen computing REIT taxable income or loss. Bgr2012, a GAAP financial statem
realized loss on MBS of $308,000 was recorded coeapt a gain of $410,000 for 2011. For tax puegosealized capital gains for the yt
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $1,056,@D$&%H000, respectively. From inception throughriary 20, 2013, all of the tax res|
and other tax attributes of the Company are conabimigh the tax results of Bimini, as the Companiax status during that period was
“qualified REIT subsidiary” of Bimini.

Bimini and Orchid will generally not be subjectfamleral income tax on their REIT taxable incoméhi® extent that Bimini distributes
REIT taxable income to its stockholders and satistihe ongoing REIT requirements, including meetisgain asset, income and st
ownership tests. Bimini must have maintained itdTR&atus during the period Orchid was a qualiffiElT subsidiary for Orchid to qualify
a REIT. A REIT must generally distribute at le@8% of its REIT taxable income to its stockholdeyg,which 85% generally must
distributed within the taxable year, in order tmiavthe imposition of an excise tax. The remairtiadance may be distributed up to the er
the following taxable year, provided the REIT edetd treat such amount as a prior year distribusiod meets certain other requirement:
December 31, 2012, management believes that Biamdi Orchid have complied with the Code requiremanis that Bimini continues
qualify as a REIT.

NOTE 10. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The table below reconciles the numerator and dematmi of EPS for the years ended December 31, 26d2011.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Net income (loss $ 534,340 $ (1,190,21)
Common shares outstanding or to be iss 981,66! 981,66!
Income (loss) per common shi $ 05/ $ (1.27)

On February 14, 2013, Orchi&gBoard of Directors declared a stock dividend whgr5.37 shares of common stock were issued fd
share of common stock outstanding. 827,555 shas&hdted as the dividend were issued to BiminFabruary 20, 2013, immediately prio
Orchid’s IPO. For the years ended December 31, 2012 @htl, 2he 981,665 common shares, which includedB4e110 shares of comnr
stock outstanding at December 31, 2012 and thesB3&hares distributed as a stock dividend, is fmethe EPS computation, as Bimini
been the sole stockholder during the entire period.
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NOTE 11. FAIR VALUE

Authoritative accounting literature establishesaafework for using fair value to measure assetdiabdities and defines fair value as
price that would be received to sell an asset @ fwatransfer a liability (an exit price) as oppdgo the price that would be paid to acquire
asset or received to assume the liability (an eptige). A fair value measure should reflect theuasptions that market participants would
in pricing the asset or liability, including thesasnptions about the risk inherent in a particuluation technique, the effect of a restrictior
the sale or use of an asset and the risk of nooymeaince. Required disclosures include stratificatbbalance sheet amounts measured ¢
value based on inputs the Company uses to deiliivediaie measurements. These stratifications are:

« Level 1 valuations, where the valuation is basedjoated market prices for identical assets or liitds traded in active marke
(which include exchanges and c-the-counter markets with sufficient volum

« Level 2 valuations, where the valuation is baseduwsted market prices for similar instruments tchiteactive markets, quoted pri
for identical or similar instruments in markets tttae not active and modbased valuation techniques for which all signifi
assumptions are observable in the market,

« Level 3 valuations, where the valuation is generftem modelbased techniques that use significant assumptioinshservable in tt
market, but observable based on Company-specifi. ddese unobservable assumptions reflect the @oygown estimates f
assumptions that market participants would useriting the asset or liability. Valuation techniquigpically include option pricin
models, discounted cash flow models and similanrigpies, but may also include the use of markeeprbf assets or liabilities tl
are not directly comparable to the subject asskaloitity.

Our MBS are valued using Level 2 valuations, anthstaluations currently are determined by the Carggzased on the average of third
party broker quotes and/or by independent priciograes when available. Because the price estinmatgsvary, the Company must mi
certain judgments and assumpti@imut the appropriate price to use to calculatddheralues. Alternatively, the Company could tpthave
the value of all of our positions in MBS determirigdeither an independent third-party or do sorira#y.

MBS and Eurodollar futures contracts were recomefdir value on a recurring basis during the yesmded December 31, 2012 and 2
When determining fair value measurements, the Cosnpansiders the principal or most advantageouketan which it would transact a
considers assumptions that market participants dvagsé when pricing the asset. When possible, threp@ay looks to active and observ
markets to price identical assets. When identisslets are not traded in active markets, the Coynljoarks to market observable data
similar assets. The following table presents faoialnassets and liabilities measured at fair valne recurring basis as of December 31, .
and 2011:

(in thousands

Quoted
Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Value Assets Inputs Inputs
Measurement: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 2012
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 115,38( $ - $ 115,38( $ -
December 31, 2011
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 56,00: $ - $ 56,00 $ -
Eurodollar futures contrac 34 34 - -
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During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 204rk were no transfers of financial assets oiliiies between levels 1, 2 or 3.
NOTE 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

The Company entered into a management agreememtBiitini, which provided for an initial term throngDecember 31, 2011 w
automatic onerear extension options. The agreement was extendddr the option to December 31, 2013, but was iteted at th
completion of the Company’IPO. At the completion of the IPO, the Companteeed into a management agreement with Bimini Sakd
LLC (“Bimini Advisors”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bimini, which provides for anitial term through February 20, 2016 with autorc
oneyear extensions and is subject to certain ternonatights. Under the terms of the management agget Bimini Advisors will b
responsible for administering the business actisitand day-talay operations of the Company. Bimini Advisors|w#éceive a month
management fee in the amount of:

(1) One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the @many's equity, as defined in the management agreer
(2) One-twelfth of 1.25% of the Compa’s equity that is greater than $250 million and tess or equal to $500 million, ai
(3) One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Compa’s equity that is greater than $500 millis

The Company is obligated to reimburse Bimini Advssor any direct expenses incurred on its behalfaddition, once the Compay’
Equity, as defined, equals $100 million, Bimini Astwrs will begin allocating to the Companysipro rata portion of certain overhead cos
defined in the management agreement. Should thap@oy terminate the management agreement withawgecdt shall pay to Bimi
Advisors a termination fee equal to three timesaherage annual management fee, as defined in dhagement agreement, before or ot
last day of the initial term or automatic reneweaht.

The Company was obligated to reimburse Bimini fsrcosts incurred under the original managemergesgent. In addition, the Comp:
was required to pay Bimini a monthly fee of $7,2@Mich represents an allocation of overhead expefareitems that include, but are
limited to, occupancy costs, insurance and adnmatise expenses. These expenses were allocated baghe ratio of the Comparsyasse
and Bimini's consolidated assets. Total expenses recordedgdilme years ended December 31, 2012 and 201hdomanagement fee ¢
costs incurred was approximately $335,000 and $283, respectively. At December 31, 2012, approkiiga$45,000 was due frc
Bimini. At December 31, 2011, approximately $23®),@vas due to Bimini.

Purchases of Agency MBS from Bimini

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyparchased MBS with a fair value of $1,071,00@/uding $15,000 of accru
interest, from Bimini. The MBS purchases were ia tirdinary course of business and on substantiadlysame terms, including prices
comparable transactions available in the market.
Payment of Certain Offering Expenses

Bimini Advisors has paid all offering expenses anoection with the Comparg/IPO. During the year ended December 31, 20E23¢

expenses were approximately $247,000. Subsequé@&edember 31, 2012, Bimini Advisors paid additiogrgpenses related to this offering
approximately $2,957,000.

In addition, during the year ended December 31228imini Advisors paid certain expenses totalipgrximately $833,000 on beh
of the Company associated with a failed mergengite

The Company has no obligation or intent to reiméuBgmini Advisors, either directly or indirectlyof the offering costs or attemp
merger costs, therefore they are not includedeénGbmpany's financial statements.
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Board Memberships

John B. Van Heuvelen, one of our independent direcbminees, owns shares of common stock of Bintobert Cauley, our Chi
Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Bies, also serves as Chief Executive Officer ahdithan of the Board of Directors
Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Biminuniter Haas, our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Istraent Officer, Secretary ant
member of our Board of Directors, also serves asthief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officamnd Treasurer of Bimini and owns shi
of common stock of Bimini.

Consulting Agreement

In September 2010, we entered into a consultingeagent with W Coleman Bitting, who became one afindependent directors
February 2013. The terms of the consulting agre¢m@vided that Mr. Bitting would advise us withtspect to financing alternatives, busir
strategies and related matters as requested dhertgrm of the agreement. In exchange for hisisesythe consulting agreement provided
we pay Mr. Bitting an hourly fee of $150 and reimd®i him for all out-opocket expenses reasonably incurred in the perfocenaf hi:
services. During the years ended December 31, @0d2011, we paid Mr. Bitting approximately $30,@0@ $71,000, respectively, under
agreement. Mr. Bitting’s consulting agreement wasninated upon completion of the CompanyPO. The total compensation Mr. Bitt
received under the consulting agreement was appedgly $115,000.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

We had no disagreements with our Independent RegtPublic Accounting Firm on any matter of acamgnprinciples or practices
financial statement disclosure

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this refiwet “evaluation date”)ve carried out an evaluation, under the superviaimhwith th:
participation of our management, including our Chixecutive Officer (“the CEQ”) and Chief Financi@fficer (‘the CFO”), of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of oseldsure controls and procedures, as defined ie R3&15(e) under the Securities Excha
Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange AcBpased on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concludedlisclosure controls and procedure:
designed and implemented, were effective as ottaduation date (1) in ensuring that informatiogamreling the Company and its subsidie
is accumulated and communicated to our managefimehiding our CEO and CFO, by our employees, asgpiate to allow timely decisio
regarding required disclosure and (2) in providiegsonable assurance that information we mustadisdin its periodic reports under
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegmited within the time periods prescribed by$eC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

This annual report does not include a statemeno aghether there were any significant changes initernal control over financi
reporting that occurred during our most recentalisguarter that have materially affected, or amsomably likely to materially affect, ¢
internal control over financial reporting, due toransition period established by the rules ofSE€ for newly public companies.
Management’s Report of Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

This annual report does not include a report of agemens assessment regarding internal control over fia&meporting or a
attestation report of the Compasyhdependent registered accounting firm due taumsttion period established by rules of the SEEwly
public companies.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executiv®fficers and Corporate Governance.
Our current directors and executive officers aréoldsws:

Name Age* Position
Robert E. Caule 54 Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairmathef Board of Director
G. Hunter Haas, IV

36 Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investm@&ificer and Directo
W Coleman Bitting
47 Independent Directc
John B. Van Heuvelen
66 Independent Directc
Frank P. Filipps
65 Independent Directc
Ava L. Parker
49 Independent Directc

* As of March 15, 2013
Below is a summary of the business experience df edour executive officers and directors.

Robert E. Cauley Chairman of the Board of Directors, President @hief Executive Officer. Mr. Cauley has servedas Chairmar
President and Chief Executive Officer since Aug@Gt0. Mr. Cauley is also the Chairman and Chieddtxive Officer of our Manager. N
Cauley cofounded Bimini in 2003 and has served as its Chiafcutive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Biogs since April 2008 al
served as Vice-Chairman, Chief Financial Officed &hief Investment Officer of Bimini prior to Apr008. Prior to cdeunding Bimini ir
2003, Mr. Cauley was a vigaresident and portfolio manager at Federated Invedt Pittsburgh from 1996 to 2003. Mr. Cauley \aarembe
of the ABS/MBS structuring desk at Lehman Brothieosn 1994 to 1996 and a credit analyst at BarcBgsk, PLC from 1992 to 1994. A
Cauley is a CPA (inactive status) and served inUhéed States Marine Corps for four years. As sulteof these professional and of
experiences, Mr. Cauley possesses particular kmimeleand expertise in management of publiciged REITs and RMBS portfo
management that strengthens the Board of Directotlsctive knowledge, capabilities and experience.

G. Hunter Haas, IV . Chief Financial Officer and Chief Investment ©&i and Director. Mr. Haas has served as our Ghigincia
Officer and Chief Investment Officer and has seraed Director since August 2010. Mr. Haas isRtesident, Chief Investment Officer
Chief Financial Officer of our Manager. Mr. Haassteso been the President, Chief Investment Ofeicer Chief Financial Officer of Bimi
since April 2008. Prior to assuming those rolethv@imini, he was a Senior Vice President and Hefadesearch and Trading of Bimini. |
Haas joined Bimini in May 2004 as Vice Presiderd &tead of Mortgage Research. He has over 12 yéargperience in this industry and |
managed trading operations for the portfolio sinisearrival in May 2004. Mr. Haas has approximatgyht years of experience as a memb
senior management of a public REIT. Prior to jognBimini, Mr. Haas worked in the mortgage indusis/a member of a team responsibl
hedging a servicing portfolio at both National Citjortgage and Homeside Lending, Inc. As a resultthefse professional and ot
experiences, Mr. Haas possesses particular knowladd expertise in financial management of publidded REITs and in the mortg:
industry that strengthens the Board of DirectodBective knowledge, capabilities and experience.
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W Coleman Bitting. Independent Director. Mr. Bitting has servedad3irector since February 2013. Since July 2007, Bitting ha:
maintained a private consulting practice focusedR&iTs. Mr. Bitting was a Founding Partner and He&dCorporate Finance at Flagst:
Securities, a leading investment bank that speeidlin mortgage REITs and finance companies, fr@@02t0 February 2007. Flagst
managed more than 40 equity offerings raising ntba& $5 billion of equity capital. Flagstone helpgignts build investment and liabil
management practices. Prior to Flagstone, Mr.rjttield senior equity research positions at StMatholas & Co. Inc. and Kidder, Peabod:
Co., Inc. None of the institutions mentioned irstharagraph is our parent, subsidiary, or afBiliaAs a result of these professional and «
experiences, Mr. Bitting has significant capitalrkeds experience and experience analyzing and iadviREITs that strengthens the Boar
Director’s collective knowledge, capabilities angberience.

John B. Van Heuvelen Independent Director. Mr. Van Heuvelen has seag&dn Independent Director since February 2013. \Visir
Heuvelen was appointed to the board of Hallador@n€ompany (Nasdag: HNRG) in September 2009 angeseas the chair of the at
committee. Mr. Van Heuvelen has been a membereobtiard of directors of MasTec, Inc. (NYSE:MTZ)e@nJune 2002 and is currently
lead director and serves on their audit committEewas chairman of their audit committee and tharfcial expert from 2004 to June 2009
also served on the board of directors of LifeVaatdgc. (OTC: LFVN) from August 2005 through Aug@2€§t07. From 1999 to the present,
Van Heuvelen has been a private equity investoedas Denver, Colorado. His investment activitiessén included private telecom e
technology firms. Mr. Van Heuvelen spent 13 yeaith Wlorgan Stanley and Dean Witter Reynolds in @asi executive positions in the mut
fund, unit investment trust and municipal bond simns before serving as president of Morgan Stabkegn Witter Trust Company from 1¢
until 1999. None of the institutions mentionedhis paragraph is our parent, subsidiary, or atfi As a result of these professional and
experiences, Mr. Van Heuvelen has significant égpee in accounting and tax practices as the aumiitmittee chairman of two publicly-
traded companies as well as his experience in fisgdme investments that strengthens the Board icdcr's collective knowledg
capabilities and experience.

Frank P. Filipps . Independent Director. Mr. Filipps has servechadndependent Director since February 2013. F2606 to Jul
2008, Mr. Filipps served as the Chairman and Chiefcutive Officer of Clayton Holdings, Inc., a ngage services company, leadin
through its initial public offering and listing ahe Nasdaq and subsequent sale. Prior to thatFilippps was employed by the Radian Gr¢
Inc., spending two years as Senior Vice PresidedtGhief Financial Officer, one year as ExecutiveePresident and Chief Operating Offi
and 10 years as Chairman and Chief Executive Offlaehis time with the Radian Group, Inc., Mr.ips led the company through its ini
public offering and listing on the NYSE. Prior t@s henure with the Radian Group, Inc., Mr. Filiggeent 17 years with American Internatic
Group, Inc. (NYSE: AIG), where he held multiple ¥i€residentevel positions and was the President, Chief Exeeufficer and founder
AIG Capital Corporation, the first ndnsurance financial company within AlG, which foedson interest rate swaps, foreign exchange
equity arbitrage and leveraged buyout bridge filvancMr. Filipps has served as a director and thaircof the audit committee of Img
Mortgage Holdings, Inc. (NYSE Amex: IMH) since 19%s a director of Primus Guaranty, Ltd. (NYSE: PRi&ce 2002 and as chair of
compensation committee from 2002 to 2006 and thmeimating and corporate governance committee frof¥20 2011 and as a director
chairman of the governance committee of Fortegrargial Corp. (NYSE: FRF) since 2010 and as chiath® nominating and governat
committee from 2010 to 2011 and chair of the corspgan committee since 2012, and member of the @odimittee since 2010. None of
institutions mentioned in this paragraph is oureparsubsidiary, or affiliate. As a result of thggofessional and other experiences, Mr. Fi
has particular financial and business expertisdivarsified management background and extensiverexpce with real estarelated an
mortgage services companies and as a director hafr gdublic companies that strengthens the Boar®icéctor’s collective knowledg
capabilities and experience.
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Ava L. Parker. Independent Director. Ms. Parker has servechdsidependent Director since February 2013. S, Ms. Parke
has been a partner in the law firm of Lawrence &PBg PA, where she serves as bond counsel andwrnitd’'s counsel in connection w
municipal finance transactions as well as ass@tpifofit and not-forprofit clients with corporate organization, devetmmt and interpretatic
of contracts and litigation issues. Since 2002, Rexker has also served as the President of LinBolgtions, Inc., which provides traini
technical support and program management servicései public and private sectors. Since 2012, Mské& has served as the interim c
operating officer of Florida Polytechnic Universitg public university located in Lakeland, FL. 2006, Ms. Parker was appointed to
Jacksonville Transportation Authority board of digs, where she is currently a director and hageseas its chairman. Ms. Parker prese
serves as the immediate past chairman of the $fafdorida Board of Governors of the State Univigrs$ystem. None of the institutic
mentioned in this paragraph is our parent, subsidiar affiliate. As a result of these professionad other experiences, Ms. Parker
particular knowledge and expertise as a directar miimber of private, state and municipal boamdd,ia management of complex financial
corporate transactions and corporate counselirigsttengthens the Board of Director’s collective¥tedge, capabilities and experience.

All of our directors and executive officers holdioé for a term of one year from the date of hisher election, until the next ann
meeting of stockholders and until his or her susoefas been elected and has qualified. Directmtseaecutive officers may be elected t
unlimited number of successive terms.

Board Committees

Our Board of Directors established three standomgnoittees in February 2013: the Audit Committee, @ompensation Committee «
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiée Audit Committee is comprised of John B. Vanutdgden, Frank P. Filipps, and A
L. Parker.

During the past fiscal year, there were no matetianges to the procedures by which security heldery recommend nominees to
Board of Directors.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our Board of Directors has established a code siness conduct and ethics that applies to ouresffiand directors and the employ
of our Manager. The Code of Business Conduct ahat&is available at our website at http://wwwtadislandcapital.com in theCorporat
Governance” area. We anticipate that any waivemipcode of business conduct and ethics will gtgd on our website.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Not applicable.
ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
Compensation of Directors

No director received any plan or non-plan compeéosan 2012.

Compensation of Executive Officer

No executive officer received any plan or non-gdampensation in 2012.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial vners and Management
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Cormpensation Plans

Part I, Item 5 of this Form 10-K contains a sectmtitled “Securities Authorized for Issuance unBquity Compensation Plang/hich
provides information on our compensation plan undgich equity securities are authorized for isseando awards were made under our :
Executive Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2012.
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andMlanagement

The following table sets forth information regamglithe beneficial ownership of our common stockfadarch 15, 2013 by:

- each person known by us to be the beneficial owherore than 5% of our outstanding shares of comstock;

« each of our officers and directors; and
- all of our officers and directors as a group.

As of March 15, 2013, we had 3,341,665 shares wincon stock issued and outstanding. Unless otheliwieated, we believe that
persons named in the table have sole voting arestment power with respect to all shares of comstock beneficially owned by them.

Approximate
Amount and Percentage

Nature of of

Beneficial Outstanding

Ownership Common
Name and Address of Beneficial Owne(®) @ Stock
Bimini Capital Management, In 981,66! 29.38%
Robert E. Caule - -
G. Hunter Haas, I\ - -
W. Coleman Bitting - -
John B. Van Heuvele 6,66¢ 0.2(%
Frank P. Filipps - -
Ava L. Parkel - -
All directors and executive officers as a groug (®rsons 6,66¢ 0.2(%

(1) The address of Bimini Capital Management, Inc. aach of the executive officers and directors lissbdve is c/o Bimini Capit
Management Inc., 3305 Flamingo Dr., Vero Beach3E263
(2) In accordance with SEC rules, beneficial ownergmifudes:
« all shares the investor actually owns beneficiatlyf record;
« all shares over which the investor has or sharéiayor dispositive control (such as in the capae a general partner of
investment fund); an
« all shares the investor has the right to acquitbiwi60 days (such as upon exercise of optionsateaturrently vested or whi
are scheduled to vest within 60 day
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationshipand Related Transactions, and Director Independere
Management Agreement

From December 1, 2010 through February 20, 2013were a party to a management agreement with BimihdD was our so
stockholder as of December 31, 2012 and until traptetion of our initial public offering on Febryal0, 2013. Bimini currently ow
approximately 29% of our common stock. Pursuarttuioprior management agreement with Bimini, Binpndvided day-taday manageme
of our operations and performed services and dietivielating to our assets and operations in exgdador a management fee, payable mol
in arrears, in an amount equal to (i) one-twelfthiL2) multiplied by (ii)(a2) 1.50% of the first $22WM0,000 of our month-end stockholders
equity, adjusted to exclude the effect of any ulimed gains or losses included in either retainauhi@gs or other comprehensive income (I
each computed in accordance with GAAP (“Equity®) @.25% of Equity that is greater than $250,000,6dd less than or equal
$500,000,000, and (c) 1.00% of Equity that is gredhan $500,000,000. Management fees incurredBiforini’s services under t
management agreement totaled approximately $284f@0the period from January 1, 2012 through thenbeation of the managemt
agreement in February 2013.

From and after February 20, 2013, we have beents maa management agreement with the Managethdalywowned subsidiary
Bimini, pursuant to which the Manager provides tlaglay management of our operations and performedcssrand activities relating to ¢
assets and operations in exchange for a managdesgmayable monthly in arrears, in an amount etjuéi) onetwelfth (1/12) multiplied b
(i)(a) 1.50% of the first $250,000,000 of Equifi) 1.25% of Equity that is greater than $250,000,8nd less than or equal to $500,000,
and (c) 1.00% of Equity that is greater than $500,000. The total amount of management fees peatiget Manager through March 15, 201
approximately $24,000. The term of the manageragntement with the Manager expires on Februan2@@6, but is subject to automs
annual renewal unless terminated by us or the Mamag@/e will reimburse the Manager for certain @piag expenses which the Mang
incurs on our behalf pursuant to the terms of ttenagement agreement. The management agreementheitilanager is subject to -
supervision and oversight of our Board of Directors

Purchases of Agency RMBS from Bimit

On March 31, 2011, we purchased Agency RMBS withiavalue of approximately $1,056,000 for a pussh@rice of approximate
$1,071,000 (including approximately $15,000 of aect interest) from Bimini. We determined the failue of the Agency RMBS purcha:
from Bimini pursuant to the valuation methodologsdribed in “ManagemeistDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults ¢
Operations — Critical Accounting Policies — MortgaBacked Securities.” We purchased these assets Bimini based on our Manager’
management teas’'knowledge of such assets. We currently do ndtipate that we will enter into any cross transawdi or principe
transactions in the future.

Payment of Certain Offering Expense
Bimini Advisors paid all of our offering expenses donnection with our initial public offering. Tée expenses totaled approxima
$3.2 million. Under the terms of our managemeneagrent with Bimini Advisors, we were not requiredeimburse Bimini Advisors for the

expenses.

In addition, during the year ended December 31228Imini Advisors paid certain expenses totalipgp@ximately $833,000 on beh
of the Company associated with a failed mergengite

The Company has no obligation or intent to reiméuBgmini Advisors, either directly or indirectlyoff the offering costs or attemp
merger costs, therefore they are not includedenGbmpany's financial statements.
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Consulting Agreement

In September 2010, we entered into a consultingeagent with W Coleman Bitting, who became one afindependent directors
February 2013. The terms of the consulting agre¢m@vided that Mr. Bitting would advise us withrspect to financing alternatives, busir
strategies and related matters as requested dherntgrm of the agreement. In exchange for hisisesythe consulting agreement provided
we would pay Mr. Bitting an hourly fee of $150.00dareimburse him for all out-gfecket expenses reasonably incurred in the perfocena
his services. We have paid Mr. Bitting a total dfLl%$,090.00 for his services under this agreement.Bitting’s consulting agreement v
terminated upon completion of the Company’s IPO.

Independent Director:

We currently have 4 independent directors, whichsttutes a majority of our Board of Directors. rOndependent directors are
Coleman Bitting, John B. Van Heuvelen, Frank Pippa and Ava L. Parker. Each committee of our BaxrDirectors is comprised entirely
independent directors. In determining whetherraator is “independentwe use the standards set forth in Section 303Af@BeoNew Yorl
Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual.

ITEM 14, Principal Accountanfees and Services.
The following table lists the fees for audit seesaendered by BDO USA, LLP, our independent reggst public accounting firm, for t

annual audit of our financial statements for thargeended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and feed foll@uditrelated services, tax servic
and all other services rendered by BDO USA, LLRjrduthe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Fee Category 201z 2011
Audit Fees® $ 119,00 $ 272,30!
Audit Related Fee - -
Tax Fees - -
All Other Fees - -
Total Fees $ 119,00 $ 272,301

(1) Represents aggregate fees for professional sepioggled in connection with the audit of the Comyia annual financial statemet
reviews of its quarterly financial statements andiservices provided in connection with othetwiary or regulatory filings

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial &atement Schedules.

a. Financial Statements. The financial statementh®fGompany, together with the report of Indepen@agistered Public Accounti
Firm thereon, are set forth in Par-ltem 8 of this Form 1-K and are incorporated herein by referel

The following information is filed as parftthis Form 10-K:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféing 66
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2012 and 67
Statements of Operations for the years ended Desme®ih 2012 and 201 68
Statements of Stockholc¢' s Equity for the years ended December 31, 20128ad 69
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Dese®ih 2012 and 201 70
Notes to Financial Statemer 71

b. Financial Statement Schedul
Not applicable.
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c. Exhibits.

3.1

Exhibit No.

Articles of Amendment and Restatement ofh@rt¢sland Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 teetCompany’s Registration Statement
on Amendment No. 1 to Forrr-11 (File N0.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporaieein by reference

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Orchid Isl@agital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the CompanRegistration Statement on
Amendment No. 1 to Form-11 (File N0.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporaieein by reference
4.1 Specimen Certificate of common stock of @tdkland Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 4.1 teetl@ompany’s Registration Statement or
Amendment No. 1 to Form-11 (File N0.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporieein by reference
10.1 Form of Management Agreement between Oishatid Capital, Inc. and Bimini Advisors, LLC @il as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Amendment No.Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538 ) filed on Noy®m?28, 2012 and
incorporated herein by referenc
10.2 Form of Investment Allocation Agreementang among Orchid Island Capital, Inc., Bimini Adwis, LLC and Bimini Capital
Management, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Camygs Registration Statement on Amendment No.HAaton S-11 (File No. 333-
184538) filed onNovember 28, 201and incorporated herein by referen
10.3* 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhit0.3 to the Company’s Registration Statemenforendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File
N0.33:-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporateein by reference
10.4*  Form of Indemnification Agreement by aretween Orchid Island Capital, Inc. and Indmnitédedfas Exhibit 10.4 to the Compasy’
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbd $ile No.333t84538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporaieebir
by reference
10.5 Form of Master Repurchase Agreement (Bleéxhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Sietet on Amendment No. 1 to Form
S-11 (File No.33-184538) filed on November 28, 2012 and incorporaiein by reference
14.1  Code of Business Condt
31.1 Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chiefdextive Officer and President of the Registrantspant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of G. Hunter Haas, 1V, Chighancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant teti®s 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.
32.1 Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chiefdextive Officer and President of the Registrantspant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification of G. Hunter Haas, IV, Chighancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll8.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuar
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document
Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documel
Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docume
Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documel
Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Docum

*

Represents a management contract or compensatoryphrrangemer

t  Submitted electronically herewit
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 186{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenthedregistrant has duly caused
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 22, 2013 By: /s/ Robert E. Caule

Robert E. Cauley
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairmarthef Boarc

Date: March 22, 2013 By: /s/ G. Hunter Haas I
G. Hunter Haas IV
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investrn@ificer and Director (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedensigned hereby constitutes and appoints Robetakley and
Hunter Haas, IV, and each of them, their true ameful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full poveérsubstitution and reubstitution, for hir
and in his name, place and stead, in any and pdlaitees, with full power to act alone, to sign amnd all documents, and to file the same,
all exhibits thereto, and all documents in conmectherewith, with the Securities and Exchange Casion, including without limitation th
Form 10-K, granting unto said attorneysfatt and agent, and each of them, full power antiaaity to do and perform each and every aci
thing requisite and necessary to be done in andtahe premises, as fully to all intents and pugsoas he might or could do in person, he
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneysfatt and agents, or either of them or their orshibstitutes or substitute, may lawfully dc
cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitieskarwthange Act of 1934, as amended, this Power afrAd¢ly and this Form 1K-
have both been signed below by the following pesdarthe capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Robert E. Caule Chairman of the Board, Director, Chief Mardh 2013
Robert E. Caule Executive Officer, and Preside

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ G. Hunter Haas, I Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Mharg1, 2013

G. Hunter Haas, I\ Officer, and Directo
(Principal Financial Officer

/sl Jerry Sinte Controller March 21, 2013
Jerry Sinte: (Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ W. Coleman Bitting Independent Director March 21, 2013

W. Coleman Bitting

/sl John B. Van Heuvele Independent Director March 21, 2013
John B. Van Heuvele

/sl Frank P. Filipp: Independent Director March 21, 2013
Frank P. Filipps

/s/ Ava L. Parke Independent Director March 21, 2013
Ava L. Parkel




EXHIBIT 14.1

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
OF ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.

The following shall constitute the Code of Busin€smduct and Ethics of Orchid Island Capital, Iiftke “Corporation”):
I. INTRODUCTION

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of the @atn (the “Code of Business Conduct and Ethicgljers a wide range
business practices and procedures. It does netr @iery issue that may arise, but it sets outclhiadnciples to guide all employees, offic
and directors of the Corporation. All of our emy@es, officers and directors must conduct themsedeeordingly and seek to avoid ever
appearance of improper behavior. For purposeki®fdode of Business Conduct and Ethics, when ez te our employees, we are referi
to the employees of Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “May&”) and the employees of the affiliates of the Manageeluding Bimini Capite
Management, Inc.) who provide services to us.

If a law conflicts with a policy in this Code of Bmess Conduct and Ethics, you must comply withakeg however, if a local custor
or policy conflicts with this Code of Business Cantland Ethics, you must comply with the Code o$iBass Conduct and Ethics. If you h
any questions about these conflicts, you should/ask supervisor how to handle the situation.

Those who violate the standards in this Code ofriass Conduct and Ethics will be subject to disealy action, which may incluc
without limitation, termination of your employmenif. you are in a situation that you believe maglate or lead to a violation of this Code
Business Conduct and Ethics, please follow theajimds described in Section Xaf this Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

IIl. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

Obeying the law, and applicable rules and regutatidoth in letter and in spirit, is the foundatmm which the Corporatios’ethica
standards are built. All of our employees, officand directors must respect and obey the lawbkeofrtunicipalities, states and countrie
which we operate. Although not all employees,agffs and directors are expected to know the dethitbese laws, it is important to kn
enough to determine when to seek advice from sigms; managers or other appropriate personnel.

The Corporation and/or the Manager may hold infdibmaand training sessions to promote compliancéh iaws, rules ar
regulations.

[lI. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A “conflict of interest” exists when an individual’'private interest interferes, or appears to iaterf with the interests of t
Corporation. A conflict situation can arise whar @mployee, officer or director takes actions as nterests that may make it difficull
perform his or her services to the Corporation ciibjely and effectively. Conflicts of interest alsnay arise when our employee, office
director, or a member of his or her family, recsii@proper personal benefits as a result of hiseomposition in the Corporation. Loans tc
guarantees of obligations of, our employees, affice directors or their family members may createflicts of interest.

It is almost always a conflict of interest for amyployee to work simultaneously for a competitaistomer or supplier. According
you are not allowed to work for a competitor asoasultant or board member. The best policy isuwoichany direct or indirect busine
connection with our competitors, except on our ifeha

Conflicts of interest are prohibited as a matte€ofporation policy, except under guidelines apprblay the Board of Directors of
Corporation (the “Board of Directors”). Conflictd interest may not always be cleart, so if you have a question, you should consitlt
higher levels of management or the Corporasarorporate secretary. Any employee, officer oeator who becomes aware of a conflict
potential or apparent conflict should bring it e tattention of the Chair of the Corporat®®udit Committee, and if appropriate, a supery
manager or other appropriate personnel within tbgpQration, or consult the procedures describe8edantion XV of this Code of Busine
Conduct and Ethics.

IV. INSIDER TRADING

Employees, officers and directors who have acaesomfidential information are not permitted to useshare that information 1
stock trading purposes or for any other purposegixihe conduct of our business. All nomblic information about the Corporation shoul
considered confidential information. To use nomluinformation for personal financial benefit t» “tip” others who might make
investment decision on the basis of this infornrai® not only unethical but also illegal. If yoave any questions about this subject, pl
consult the Corporatios’ corporate secretary. You are reminded that thigpd@ation has a separate and distinct Insider ifigafolicy, tc
which each of our employees, officers, and directersubject. Please refer to that policy and engaur compliance with it as it relates
insider trading.

V. CORPORATE OPPORTUNITIES
Employees, officers and directors are prohibitednftaking for themselves personally opportunities eire discovered through the

of corporate property, information or position vaith the consent of the Board of Directors. No eyeé, officer or director may use corpo
property, information, or position for improper penal gain, and no employee may compete with thepdZation directly c



indirectly. Employees, officers and directors oaveluty to the Corporation to advance its legitimaterests when the opportunity to dc
arises.

VI. COMPETITION AND FAIR DEALING

We seek to outperform our competition fairly anchéstly. We seek competitive advantages throughrgupgerformance, nev
through unethical or illegal business practicetealing proprietary information, possessing tragerat information that was obtained with
the owners consent, or inducing such disclosures by pagr@sent employees of other companies is prohibilEth employee, officer a
director should endeavor to respect the rightsuod, deal fairly with, the Corporation’s competitarsd employees.

No employee, officer or director shodlike unfair advantage of anyone through manipulat@mncealment, abuse of privile
information, misrepresentation of material factsany other intentional unfair-dealing practice.

The purpose of business entertainment and gifssaommercial setting is to create good will andnsbworking relationships, not
gain unfair advantage over competitors. No gifteatertainment should ever be offered, given, predidr accepted by any Corpora
employee, officer or director or family member of e@mployee, officer or director or agent unlesglj:is not a cash gift the value of wh
does not exceed $[100] (employees should neverpaazesh from brokers, vendors or other persons busginess relationship with 1
Corporation); (2) is consistent with customary bess practices; (3) cannot be construed as a @ripayoff; and (4) does not violate any I
or regulations. Please discuss with your supenasy gifts or proposed gifts that you are notaiarare appropriate. Employees are gene
required to refrain from accepting gifts from brokevendors, or other persons in a business rakdtip with the Corporatiorprovided,
however, that customary business lunches, dinners andtaimiment may be accepted. In addition, corporakigo items of nominal valt
(under $100) may be accepted. All gifts with aueain excess of $100 presented to an employee dsiveuteported to the corporate secre
within 2 business days of receiving any such gift.

VII. DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT

The diversity of the Corporatios’employees is a tremendous asset. We are firomynttted to providing equal opportunity in
aspects of employment and will not tolerate argggll discrimination or harassment or any kind. rapdes include derogatory comments b
on racial or ethnic characteristics and unwelcomeial advances.

VIIl. HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Corporation strives to provide each employeé wisafe and healthful work environment. Each leyge has responsibility fc
maintaining a safe and healthy workplace for alplyees by following safety and health rules aratcpces and reporting accidents, inju
and unsafe equipment, practices or conditions.

Violence and threatening behavior are not permittechployees should report to work in conditiorprform their duties, free frc
the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol. The v$dlegal drugs in the workplace will not be todéed.

IX. RECORD-KEEPING

The Corporation requires honest and accurate ragprdnd reporting of information in order to makesponsible busine
decisions. For example, only the true and actuailyer of hours worked should be reported.

Many employees regularly use business expense ais;omhich must be documented and recorded acturdfeyou are not sul
whether a certain expense is legitimate, ask yopewisor or your controller. Rules and guidelirsge available from the Corporatian’
Corporate Secretary.

All of the Corporations books, records, accounts and financial statenmeuss be maintained in reasonable detail, mustcgpjately
reflect the Corporation’s transactions and mustfmon both to applicable legal requirements andhe €Corporatiors system of intern
controls. Unrecorded or “off the book&inds or assets should not be maintained unlessiibed by applicable law or regulation, and fi
disclosed to the Corporation’s Board of Directors.

Business records and communications often becorbécpand we should avoid exaggeration, derogatemarks, guesswork,
inappropriate characterizations of people and conegathat can be misunderstood. This applies Bgtealamong other things, reail, interna
memos, text messages, voice mail messages, megsasgfes to social networking or other internet vitelss and formal reports. Recao
should always be retained or destroyed accordintheoCorporation's record retention policies, iff are in place at the relevant time.
accordance with those policies, in the event @diion or governmental investigation it is essantd follow the advice of the Corporatian’
legal counsel. Whenever litigation or an invedtmais pending or threatened every potentiallevaht document must be preserved ul
destruction has been approved by the Corporatlega counsel.

X. CONFIDENTIALITY

Employees, officers and directors must maintaincivgfidentiality of confidential information entitiesl to them by the Corporation
its customers, except when disclosure is authorizgdhe Corporatiors legal counsel or required by laws or regulatio@snfidentia
information includes all nopublic information that might be of use to compmst or harmful to the Corporation or its customef
disclosed. It also includes information that costos have entrusted to us. The obligation to pveseonfidential information continues e



after employment ends.
Xl. PROTECTION AND PROPER USE OF CORPORATION ASSETS

All employees, officers and directors should endeatw protect the Corporatiom’assets and ensure their efficient use. 1
carelessness and waste have a direct impact dddiporations profitability. Any suspected incident of fraudtbeft should be immediate
reported for investigation. All Corporation asssit®uld be used for legitimate business purpo€esporation equipment should not be t
for non-Corporation business, though incidentaspeal use may be permitted.

The obligation of employees, officers and directorprotect the Corporatios’'assets includes its proprietary information. pFiegary
information includes intellectual property suchtale secrets, patents, trademarks and copyrighteiell as business, marketing and se
plans, engineering and manufacturing ideas, desigasabases, records, salary information and arguhlished financial data a
reports. Unauthorized use or distribution of thiermation would violate Corporation policy. lbald also be illegal and result in civil or e
criminal penalties.

Xll. PAYMENTS TO GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act prohibitgrgg anything of value, directly or indirectly, aificials of foreign governments
foreign political candidates in order to obtainretain business. It is strictly prohibited to malkegal payments to government officials of .
country. In addition, the U.S. government has elper of laws and regulations regarding businestigies that may be accepted by
government personnel. The promise, offer or defite an official or employee of the U.S. governmeha gift, favor or other gratuity
violation of these rules would not only violate @oration policy but could also be a criminal offensState and local governments, as we
foreign governments, may have similar rules. tbepGration’s outside legal counsel can provide gn@b to you in this area.

XIll. DISCLOSURE POLICY

It is the Corporatiors policy to provide full, fair, accurate, timely dannderstandable disclosure in all documents reduiv be file
with or furnished or submitted to the Securitied &xchange Commission and in all other public comigations. The Corporation expects
employees, officers and directors to act in a matimegt supports this policy. You are reminded that Corporation has a separate disclc
policy for compliance with Regulation FD, and yae asked to please refer to the policies set tbeehein. In addition, employees, officers
directors are prohibited from directly or indirgcthking any action to fraudulently influence, amermanipulate or mislead the Corporatson’
independent auditors for the purpose of rendehiedginancial statements of the Corporation mislegdi

XIV. WAIVERS OF THE CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Any waiver of this Code of Business Conduct anddstimay be made only by the Board of Directors acoamittee of the Board
Directors and will be promptly disclosed to stockless as required by law or stock exchange regulati

XV. REPORTING ANY ILLEGAL OR UNETHICAL BEHAVIOR

Employees are encouraged to openly and honeskiytdahe Chair of the Audit Committee of the BoafuDirectors, any other non-
management member of the Board of Directors, sigms; managers or other appropriate personneltatioserved illegal or unethic
behavior and when in doubt about the best coursetdn in a particular situation. It is the pgliaf the Corporation not to allow retaliation
reports of misconduct by others made in good fhithemployees. Employees, officers and directoes espected to cooperate in inte
investigations of misconduct. You are reminded tha Corporation has adopted a Policy Regardimgidrlent or Dishonest Conduct, refe
to as the “Whistleblower Policy”, and you are aski@g@lease refer to the guidelines set forth threrei

XVI. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES
We must all work to ensure prompt and consistetiba@gainst violations of this Code of Business)@act and Ethics. However,
some situations it is difficult to know right fromrong. Since we cannot anticipate every situatiiat will arise, it is important that we hav
way to approach a new question or problem. Thest¢ha steps to keep in mind:

» Make sure you have all the factdn order to reach the right solutions, we musabdully informed as possible.

« Ask yourself: What specifically am | being askeddtw? Does it seem unethical or impropefhis will enable you to foci
on the specific question you are faced with, anel afternatives you have. Use your judgment andntom sense;
something seems unethical or improper, it probéb!

« Clarify your responsibility and role.In most situations, there is shared responsibiltre your colleagues informed? It n
help to get others involved and discuss the proh

« Discuss the problem with your supervisorhis is the basic guidance for all situations.imany cases, your supervisor wil
more knowledgeable about the question, and wilregipte being brought into the decisimaking process. Remember
it is your superviscs responsibility to help solve problen

« Seek help from Corporation resourcesn the rare case where it may not be approptiatédiscuss an issue with y«




supervisor, or where you do not feel comfortablprapching your supervisor with your question, ytowdd feel free t
discuss an issue with the Chair of the Audit Corteritof the Board of Directors, or any other nmoanagement member
the Board of Directors. If you prefer to write aaddress your concerns internally to: G. Hunter HBAsSecretary, Orch
Island Capital, Inc., 3305 Flamingo Drive, Vero BeaFlorida 32963. If you prefer to write and agklr your concerns to
individual who is not an officer of the Corporatjoplease do so to: Audit Committee of the Board Dbfectors
Attention: Chair, c/o Orchid Island Capital, In8305 Flamingo Drive, Vero Beach, Florida 329

» You may report ethical violations in confidence avithout fear of retaliation. If your situation requires that your identity
kept secret, your anonymity will be protected. Twporation does not permit retaliation of anydkagainst employees
good faith reports of ethical violatior

« Always ask first, act later:If you are unsure of what to do in any situatiseek guidance before you act

XVIl. ACCOUNTABILITY

You will be accountable for adherence to this CofiBusiness Conduct and Ethics. Violations of thade of Business Conduct ¢
Ethics may result in a variety of disciplinary act$, including termination of employment and cavilcriminal penalties.

XVII. CERTIFICATION

This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics was duytyaved and adopted by the Board of the Corporatiothe 14th day of
February, 2013 .



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert E. Cauley, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ céimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | agsponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and praesdaor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b)  designed such internal control over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbis report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in thgesteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationteyhal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material Weess in the design or operation of internal cdrver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefmaincial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ises management or other employees who have disagttirole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 22, 201

/s/ Robert E. Caule

Robert E. Caule

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and Presider




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, G. Hunter Haas IV, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ céimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | agsponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and praesdaor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b)  designed such internal control over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbis report our conclusions about

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in thgesteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationteyhal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material Weess in the design or operation of internal cdrver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefmaincial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ises management or other employees who have disagttirole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 22, 201

/s/ G. Hunter Haas I
G. Hunter Haas I\

President and Chief Financial
Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fKOechid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) fdret period ended December 31, 2012 to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio or about the date hereof (the "Report”), Ib&t E. Cauley, Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certjjursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934

March 22, 2013 /s/ Robert E. Caule
Robert E. Cauley,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fKOechid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) fdret period ended December 31, 2012 to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio or about the date hereof (the "Report”), IHanter Haas 1V, Chief Financial Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 90éhefSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. SedR’s0, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangedh 1934

March 22, 2013 /s/ G. Hunter Haas I

G. Hunter Haas 1V,
Chief Financial Office




